SE5-02

ILLINOIS HEALTH FACILITIES AND SERVICES REVIEW BOARSZ ECE 'VED
APPLICATION FOR PERMIT MAY 7 1 2025

SECTION I. IDENTIFICATION, GENERAL INFORMATION, AND CERTIFICATION , _ v« FACUTIES &
Wov_gu NEVIEW 300D
This Section must be completed for all projects.

Facility/Project Identification

Facility Name: Hillsboro Health

Street Address: 1200 E. Tremont Street

City and Zip Code: Hitlsboro, IL 62049

County: Montgomery Health Service Area: 3 Health Planning Area: E-02

Applicant(s) [Provide for each applicant (refer to Part 1130.220)]

Exact Legal Name: Hillsboro Area Hospital Inc. d/b/a Hillsboro Health

Street Address: 1200 E. Tremont Street
City and Zip Code:  Hillsboro, IL 62049
Name of Registered Agent: Alex Nazarian

Registered Agent Street Address: 1200 E. Tremont Street

Registered Agent City and Zip Code: Hillsboro, IL 62049

Name of Chief Executive Officer; Michael Alexander
CEO Street Address: 1200 E. Tremont Street
CEO City and Zip Code: Hillsboro, Il. 62049
CEO Telephone Number: 217-532-4187

Type of Ownership of Applicants

[ Non-profit Corporation In Partnership
1 For-profit Corporation O Governmental
O Limited Liability Company [ Sole Proprietorship OJ Other

o Corporations and limited liability companies must provide an lllinois certificate of good
standing.

o Partnerships must provide the name of the state in which they are organized and the name and
address of each partner specifying whether each is a general or limited partner.

APPEND DOCUMENTATION AS ATTACHMENT 1 IN NUMERIC SEQUENTIAL ORDER AFTER THE LAST PAGE OF THE
APPLICATION FORM.

Primary Contact [Person to receive ALL correspondence or inquiries]

Name: Joe Qurth

Title: Partner

Company Name: Saul Ewing LLP

Address: 161 N. Clark, Suite 4200, Chicago, iL 60601
Telephone Number: 312-876-7815

E-mail Address: joe.ourth@saul.com

Fax Number:

Additional Contact [Person who is also authorized to discuss the application for permit]

Name:

Title:

Company Name:

Address:

Telephaone Number:

E-mail Address:

Fax Number:

554758825
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ILLINOIS HEALTH FACILITIES AND SERVICES REVIEW BOARD
APPLICATION FOR PERMIT

SECTION 1. IDENTIFICATION, GENERAL INFORMATION, AND CERTIFICATION
This Section must be completed for all projects.

Facility/Project Identification

Facility Name: Hilisboro Health

Street Address: 1200 E. Tremont Street

City and Zip Code: Hillsboro, IL 62049

County:  Montgomery Health Service Area: 3 Health Planning Area: E-02

Applicant({s) [Provide for each applicant (refer to Part 1130.220)]

Exact Legal Name: Hillsboro Area Systems NFP d/b/a Hillsboro Health Systems

Street Address: 1200 E. Tremont Street

City and Zip Code:  Hillsboro, IL 62049

Name of Registered Agent: Alex Nazarian

Registered Agent Street Address:

1200 E. Tremont Street

Registered Agent City and Zip Code:

Hillsboro, IL 62049

Name of Chief Executive Officer:

Michael Alexander

CEOQO Street Address:

1200 E. Tremont Street

CEQO City and Zip Code:

Hillsboro, IL 62049

CEQ Telephone Number:

217-532-4187

Type of Ownership of Applicants

[ Non-profit Corporation O Partnership

] For-profit Corporation a Governmental

] Limited Liability Company Od Sole Proprietorship ] Other
o Corporations and limited liability companies must provide an lllinois certificate of good

standing.
Partnerships must provide the name of the state in which they are organized and the name and
address of each partner specifying whether each is a general or limited partner.

APPEND DOCUMENTATION AS ATTACHMENT 1 IN NUMERIC SEQUENTIAL ORDER AFTER THE LAST PAGE OF THE
APPLICATION FORM.

Primary Contact [Person to receive ALL correspondence or inquiries]

Name: Joe Ourth

Title: Partner

Company Name: Saul Ewing LLP

Address: 161 N. Clark, Suite 4200, Chicago, IL 60601

Telephone Number:  312-876-7815

E-mail Address: joe.ourth@saul.com

Fax Number:

Additional Contact [Person who is also authorized to discuss the application for permit]

Name:

Title:

Company Name:

Address:

Telephone Number:;

E-mail Address:

Fax Number:

55475882 5
Page 2




Post Permit Contact
[Person to receive all correspondence after permit issuance-THIS PERSON MUST BE EMPLOYED BY
THE LICENSED HEALTH CARE FACILITY AS DEFINED AT 20 ILCS 3960]

Name: Michael Alexander

Title: CEO

Company Name; Hillsboro Health

Address: 1200 E. Tremont Street, Hillshoro, IL 62049

Telephone Number: 217-532-4187

E-mail Address: malexander@HHealth.us

Fax Number:

Site Ownership
[Provide this information for each applicable site]

Exact Legal Name of Site Owner.  Hillsboro Area Hospital, Inc., d/b/a Hillsboro Health

Address of Site Owner: 1200 E. Tremont Street, Hillsboro, IL 62046

Street Address or Legal Description of the Site:
Proof of ownership or control of the site is to be provided as Attachment 2. Examples of proof of ownership
are property tax statements, tax assessor's documentation, deed, notarized statement of the corporation

attesting to ownership, an option to lease, a letter of intent to lease, or a lease.

APPEND DOCUMENTATION AS ATTACHMENT 2, IN NUMERIC SEQUENTIAL ORDER AFTER THE LAST PAGE OF THE
APPLICATION FORM. } 4

Operating Identity/Licensee
[Provide this information for each applicable facility and insert after this page.]

Exact Legal Name:

Address:

O Non-profit Corporation O Partnership

O For-profit Corporation ] Governmental

O Limited Liability Company O Sole Proprietorship O Other

o Corporations and limited liability companies must provide an lllincis Certificate of Good Standing.

o Partnerships must provide the name of the state in which organized and the name and address of
each partner specifying whether each is a general or limited partner.

o Persons with 5 percent or greater interest in the licensee must be identified with the % of
ownership.

APPEND DOCUMENTATION AS ATTACHMENT 3, IN NUMERIC SEQUENTIAL ORDER AFTER THE LAST PAGE OF THE
APPLICATION FORM.

Organizational Relationships

Provide (for each applicant) an organizational chart containing the name and relationship of any person or
entity who is related (as defined in Part 1130.140). If the related person or entity is participating in the
development or funding of the project, describe the interest and the amount and type of any financial
contribution.

APPEND DOCUMENTATION AS ATTACHMENT 4, IN NUMERIC SEQUENTIAL ORDER AFTER THE LAST PAGE OF THE
APPLICATION FORM.

55475882.5
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Flood Plain Requirements
[Refer to application instructions |

Provide documentation that the project complies with the requirements of lllinois Executive Order #2006-5
pertaining to construction activities in special flood hazard areas. As part of the flood plain requirements,
please provide a map of the proposed project location showing any identified floodplain areas. Floodplain
maps can be printed at www.FEMA.gov or www.illinoisfloodmaps.org. This map must be in a
readable format. In addition, please provide a statement attesting that the project complies with the
requirements of lllinois Executive Order #2006-5 (http://iwww.hfsrb.illinois.gov). NOTE: A
SPECIAL FLOOD HAZARD AREA AND 500-YEAR FLOODPLAIN DETERMINATION
FORM has been added at the conclusion of this Application for Permit that must be

completed to deem a project complete.

APPEND DOCUMENTATION AS ATTACHMENT 6, IN NUMERIC SEQUENTIAL ORDER AFTER THE LAST PAGE OF THE
APPLICATION FORM.

Historic Resources Preservation Act Requirements
Refer to application instructions.]

Provide documentation regarding compliance with the requirements of the Historic Resources
Preservation Act.

APPEND DOCUMENTATION AS ATTACHMENT 6, IN NUMERIC SEQUENTIAL ORDER AFTER THE LAST PAGE OF THE
APPLICATION FORM.

DESCRIPTION OF PROJECT

1. Project Classification
[Check those applicable - refer to Part 1110.20 and Part 1120.20(b)]

Part 1110 Classification :

(| Substantive

X Non-substantive

554758825
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2, Narrative Description o

In the space below, provide a brief narrative description of the project. Explain WHAT is to be done in
State Board defined terms, NOT WHY it is being done. If the project site does NOT have a street
address, include a legal description of the site. Include the rationale regarding the project’s classification

as substantive or non-substantive.

Hillsboro Area Hospital (“Hillsboro Health™) is a 25-bed critical access hospital located in
Hillsboro Illinois and has been serving patients since 1914. Hillsboro is a community of
approximately 6,000 residents equidistant between Springfield and St. Louis. Approximately
half the patients using hospital services other than Hillsboro Health travel to Springfield (50
miles) and the other half to the St. Louis area (65 miles).

The current hospital building was constructed 50 years ago and is in need of improvements. In
2023 Hillsboro Health completed a Master Facility Plan that outlined an extensive list of needed
improvements, more than could be feasibly undertaken at one time. After careful review, it
prioritized three elements that comprise the improvements in this project.

The project has three primary components, including (i) replacing aging mechanical equipment,
(i1) constructing an entrance canopy, and (iii) constructing an 11,341-foot addition to replace its
two existing operating rooms (the “Project”). The addition will also create one non-sterile
procedure room, replace post-surgery recovery rooms and central sterilization.

The Project creates no new categories of service and adds no beds and is classified as “non-
substantive” under the Review Board’s regulations.

554758825
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Project Costs and Sources of Funds

Complete the following table listing all costs (refer to Part 1120.110) associated with the project. When a

project or any component of a project is to be accomplished by lease, donation, gift, or other means, the
fair market or dollar value (refer to Part 1130.140) of the component must be included in the estimated
project cost. If the project contains non-reviewable components that are not related to the provision of
health care, complete the second column of the table below. Nate, the use and sources of funds must be

equal.

Project Costs and Sources of Funds

USE OF FUNDS CLINICAL NONCLINICAL TOTAL

Preplanning Costs $183,162 $180,902 $364,064
Site Survey and Soil Investigation 65,000 0 65,000
Site Preparation 128,000 248,076 376,076
Off Site Work 0 0 0
New Construction Contracts 9,537,363 731,514 10,268,877
Modemization Contracts 25,000 10,619,165 10,644,165
Contingencies 654,535 685,284 1,339,809
Architectural/Engineering Fees 766,762 879,238 1,646,000
Consulting and Other Fees 828,550 281,300 1,109,850
Movable or Other Equipment {not in construction contracts) 1,829,083 0 1,829,083
Bond Issuance Expense (project related) o] 0 0
Net Interest Expense During Construction (project related) 224,025 252,623 476,648
Fair Market Value of Leased Space or Equipment 0 o 0
Other Costs to Be Capitalized 305,400 200,200 505,600
Acquisition of Building or Other Property (excluding land) 0 0 0
TOTAL USES OF FUNDS $14,546,880 $14,078,302 $28,625,182

SOURCE OF FUNDS CLINICAL NONCLINICAL TOTAL
Cash and Securities $13,625,182
Pledges
Gifts and Bequests
Bond Issues (project related)
Mortgages $15,000,000
Leases (fair market value)
Governmental Appropriations
Grants
Other Funds and Sources
TOTAL SOURCES OF FUNDS $28,625,182

NOTE: ITEMIZATION OF EACH LINE ITEM MUST BE PROVIDED AT ATTACHMENT 7, IN NUMERIC SEQUENTIAL ORDER AFTER

THE LAST PAGE OF THE APPLICATION FORM.

Related Project Costs

Provide the following information, as applicable, with respect to any land related to the project that
will be or has been acquired during the last two calendar years:

535475882.5
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Land acquisition is related to project ] Yes X] No
Purchase Price: $
Fair Market Value: $

The project involves the establishment of a new facility or a new category of service

] Yes X No
If yes, provide the dollar amount of all non-capitalized operating start-up costs (including
operating deficits) through the first full fiscal year when the project achieves or exceeds the target
utilization specified in Part 1100.

Estimated start-up costs and operating deficit cost is $ N/A

Project Status and Completion Schedules

For facilities in which prior permits have been issued please provide the permit numbers.

Indicate the stage of the project’s architectural drawings:
(] None or not applicable [ Preliminary
X Schematics [] Final Working

Anticipated project completion date (refer to Part 1130.140): August 31, 2027

Indicate the following with respect to project expenditures or to financial commitments (refer to
Part 1130.140):

[ 1 Purchase orders, leases or contracts pertaining to the project have been executed.
[] Financial commitment is contingent upon permit issuance. Provide a copy of the
contingent “certification of financial commitment” document, highlighting any language
related to CON Contingencies

J Financial Commitment will occur after permit issuance.

APPEND DOCUMENTATION AS ATTACHMENT 8, IN NUMERIC SEQUENTIAL ORDER AFTER THE LAST PAGE OF THE
APPLICATION FORM.

State Agency Submittals [Section 1130.620(c)]

Are the following submittals up to date as applicable?
[[] Cancer Registry *
X] APORS
[X] All formal document requests such as IDPH Questionnaires and Annual Bed Reports
been submitted
< All reports regarding outstanding permits
Failure to be up to date with these requirements will result in the application for
permit being deemed incomplete.

* The Applicant is working with IDPH on a plan of Correction to become current on the Cancer
Registry

55475882 5
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Cost Space Requirements

Provide in the following format, the Departmental Gross Square Feet (DGSF) or the Building Gross
Square Feet (BGSF) and cost. The type of gross square footage either DGSF or BGSF must be
identified. The sum of the department costs MUST equal the total estimated project costs. Indicate if any
space is being reallocated for a different purpose. Include outside wall measurements plus the
departments or area’s portion of the surrounding circulation space. Explain the use of any vacated
space.

Not Reviewable Space [i.e., non-clinical]: means an area for the benefit of the palients, visitors, staff. or employees of a health
care facility and not directly related to the diagnosis, treatment, or rehabilitation of persons recerving services from the health care
facility. "Non-ciivical service areas” include, but are not limited lo, chapels, gift shops, newsstands, computer systems, tunnels,
walkways, and elevators; telephone systems; projects to comply with life safety codes, educational facilities, student housing,
patient, employee, staff, and visitor dining areas; administration and volunteer offices; modemization of structural components (such
as roof replfacement and masonry work); boiler repair or replacement; vehicle maintenance and storage facilities. parking facilities;
mechanical systems for heating. venlilation, and air conditioning, loading docks, and repair or replacement of carpeting, tile, wall
covenngs, window coverings or treatments. or fumiture. Solely for the purpose of this definition, "non-clinical service area” does not
inciude health and fitness centers, [20 ILCS 3960/3)

Gross Square Feet Amount of Propose_lc_ih:tt::;! Gross Square Feet

New Vacated

Dept. / Area Cost Existing | Proposed Const. Modernized | Asls Space

REVIEWABLE

Medical Surgical

Intensive Care

Diagnostic
Radiology

MRI

Total Clinical

NON-
REVIEWABLE

Administrative

Parking

Gift Shop

Total Non-clinical

TOTAL

APPEND DOCUMENTATION AS ATTACHMENT 8, IN NUMERIC SEQUENTIAL ORDER AFTER THE LAST PAGE OF THE
APPLICATION FORM.

554758825
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Facility Bed Capacity and Utilization

Complete the following chart, as applicable. Complete a separate chart for each facility that is a part of
the project and insert the chart after this page. Provide the existing bed capacity and utilization data for
the latest Calendar Year for which data is available. Include observation days in the patient day
totals for each bed service. Any bed capacity discrepancy from the Inventory will result in the

application being deemed incomplete.

FACILITY NAME: Hillsboro Health

CITY: Hillsboro

REPORTING PERIOD DATES:

From: January 1, 2024 to: December 31, 2024

Category of Service Authorized Admissions | Patient Days | Bed Proposed
Beds Changes Beds
Medical/Surgical 25 234 1,593 0 25
Obstetrics 0 0 0 0 0
Pediatrics 0 0 0 0 0
Intensive Care 0 0 0 0 0
Comprehensive Physical
Rehabilitation 0 0 ¥ 0 0 0
Acute/Chronic Mental lliness 0 0 0 0 0
Neonatal Intensive Care 0 0 0 0 0
General Long-Term Care 0 0 0 0 0
Specialized Long-Term Care 0 0 0 0 0
Long Term Acute Care * N 83 | 79 0 o
Other ({identify) 0 0 0 0 0
TOTALS: 25 297 2,389 0 25
* LTC Swing

554758825
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CERTIFICATION

The Application must be signed by the authorized representatives of the applicant entity. Authorized
representatives are:

o in the case of a corporation, any two of its officers or members of its Board of Directors.

o in the case of a limited liability company, any two of its managers or members (or the sole
manager or member when two or more managers or members do not exist).

o inthe case of a partnership, two of its general partners (or the sole general partner, when two or
more general partners do not exist).

o in the case of estates and trusts, two of its beneficiaries (or the sole beneficiary when two or more
beneficiaries do not exist); and

o in the case of a sole proprietor, the individual that is the proprietor.

This Application is filed on the behalf of Hillsboro Area Health Systems NFP di/b/a Hillsboro
Health System *

in accordance with the requirements and procedures of the llinois Health Facilities Planning Act.
The undersigned certifies that he or she has the authority to execute and file this Application on
behalf of the applicant entity. The undersigned further certifies that the data and information
provided herein, and appended hereto, are complete and correct to the best of his or her
knowledge and belief. The undersigned also certifies that the fee required for this application is
sent herewith or will be paid upon request.

ML Sl

SIGNATURE SIZGNATURE

dloctnel Hdpmetle “ohn £ Foans
PRINTED NAME PRINTED NAME ‘

CED 4&,&#{{ Chacrman
PRINTED TITLE PRINTED TITLE
Notarization: Notarization:

Subscribed and sworn_to befo Sub ;kgd and sworn to before me
this _§rH¥day of M this day of _{¥ }&a QQ&S

Signature of Notary Signature of Notary
oL OFFICIAL SEAL Seal
o STARHELE, (ERTIA R B
' NOIS .
*InserSthdhe XRiPR NOTARY PUBLIC, STATE OF ILLINOIS !
55475882.1
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CERTIFICATION

The Application must be signed by the authorized representatives of the applicant entity. Authorized
representatives are:

o inthe case of a corporation, any two of its officers or members of its Board of Directors.

o inthe case of a limited liability company, any two of its managers or members (or the sole
manager or member when two or more managers or members do not exist).

o inthe case of a partnership, two of its general partners (or the sole general partner, when two or
more general partners do not exist).

o in the case of estates and trusts, two of its beneficiaries {(or the sole beneficiary when two or more
beneficiaries do not exist); and

o in the case of a sole proprietor, the individual that is the proprietor.

This Application is filed on the behalf of Hillsboro Area Hospital, inc., d/b/a Hillsboro Health *

in accordance with the requirements and procedures of the Illinois Health Facilities Planning Act.
The undersigned certifies that he or she has the authority to execute and file this Application on
behalf of the applicant entity. The undersigned further certifies that the data and information
provided herein, and appended hereto, are complete and correct to the best of his or her
knowledge and belief. The undersigned also certifies that the fee required for this application is

sent herewith or w‘illbeyiduon request.
%

IGNATURE SIGNATURE
j({'mz & Elacl- Hithre! Aedipmclon
PRINTED NAME PRINTED NAME
e  Chaivr CE®
PRINTED TITLE PRINTED TITLE
Notarization: Notarization:

Subscribed and sworn to before me Subscribed and sworn to befare me
this _Q™ day of _m_ﬂ:a_Q_Q_QS this _§ ™ day of m%_%

Signature of Notary Signature of Notary
= OFFICIAL SEAL Sl EAL
KRISTINA R MCLEAN KRETNA NG |
NOTARY PUBLIC, STATE OF ILLINOIS  NOTAR .
. 4 Y PUBLIC, STATE OF HLINOIS
Insert the PR A My Commission Expires 050212026

554758821
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SECTION lll. BACKGROUND, PURPOSE OF THE PROJECT, AND ALTERNATIVES -
INFORMATION REQUIREMENTS

This Section is applicable to all projects except those that are solely for discontinuation with no project
costs.

1110.110(a) — Background of the Applicant

READ THE REVIEW CRITERION and provide the following required information:

BACKGROUND OF APPLICANT

1. Alisting of all health care facilities owned or operated by the applicant, including licensing, and certification if
applicable.

2. A listing of all health care facilities currently owned and/or operated in Illinois, by any corporate officers or
directors, LLC members, partners, or owners of at least 5% of the proposed health care facility.

3. For the following questions, please provide information for each applicant, including corporate officers or
directors, LLC members, partners, and owners of at least 5% of the proposed facility. A health care facility
is considered owned or operated by every person or entity that owns, directly or indirectly, an ownership
interest.

a. A certified listing of any adverse action taken against any facility owned and/or operated by the
applicant, directly or indirectly, during the three years prior to the filing of the application.

b. A certified listing of each applicant, identifying those individuals that have been cited, arrested,
taken into custody, charged with, indicted, convicted, or tried for, or pled guilty to the commission of
any felony or misdemeanor or violation of the law, except for minor parking violations; or the
subject of any juvenile delinquency or youthful offender proceeding. Unless expunged, provide
details about the corwiction, and submit any police or court records regarding any matlers
disclosed.

c. A certified and detailed listing of each applicant or person charged with fraudulent conduct or any
act involving moral turpitude.

d. A certified listing of each applicant with one or more unsatisfied judgements against him or her.

e. A cerified and detailed listing of each applicant who is in default in the performance or discharge of
any duty or obligation imposed by a judgment, decree, order or directive of any court or
governmental agency.

4. Authorization permitting HFSRB and DPH access to any documents necessary to verify the information
submitted, including, but not limited to official records of DPH or other State agencies; the licensing or
certification records of other states, when applicable; and the records of nationally recognized accreditation
organizations. Failure to provide such authorization shall constitute an abandonment or withdrawal
of the application without any further action by HFSRB.

5. If, during a given calendar year, an applicant submits more than one application for permit, the
documentation provided with the prior applications may be utilized to fulfill the information requirements of
this criterion. In such instances, the applicant shall attest that the information was previously provided, cite
the project number of the prior application, and certify that no changes have occurred regarding the
information that has been previously provided. The applicant can submit amendments to previously
submitted information, as needed, to update and/or clarify data.

APPEND DOCUMENTATION AS ATTACHMENT 11, IN NUMERIC SEQUENTIAL ORDER AFTER THE LAST
PAGE OF THE APPLICATION FORM. EACH ITEM (1-4) MUST BE IDENTIFIED IN ATTACHMENT 11.

554758825
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Criterion 1110.110(b) & (d)

PURPOSE OF PROJECT - S

1. Document that the project will provide health services that improve the health care or well-being of the |
market area population to be served,

2. Define the planning area or market area, or other relevant area, per the applicant's definition.

3. ldentify the exisling problems or issues that need to be addressed as applicable and appropriate for the
project.

4. Cite the sources of the documentation.

5. Detail how the project will address or improve the previously referenced issues, as well as the population's |
health status and well-being.

6. Provide goals with quantified and measurable objectives, with specific timeframes that relate to achieving
the stated goals as appropriate.

For projects involving modernization, describe the conditions being upgraded, if any. For facility projects, include
statements of the age and condition of the project site, as well as regulatory citations, if any. For equipment being
replaced, include repair and maintenance records.

NOTE: Information regarding the “Purpose of the Project” will be inciuded in the State Board Staff Report.

APPEND DOCUMENTATION AS ATTACHMENT 12, IN NUMERIC SEQUENTIAL ORDER AFTER THE LAST
_ PAGE OF THE APPLICATION FORM. EACH ITEM (1-6) MUST BE IDENTIFIED IN ATTACHMENT 12.

ALTERNATIVES
1) Identify ALL the alternatives to the proposed project:
Alternative options must include:
A) Proposing a project of greater or lesser scope and cost.

B) Pursuing a joint venture or similar arrangement with one or more providers or
entities to meet all or a portion of the project's intended purposes; developing
alternative settings to meet all or a portion of the project's intended purposes.

C) Utilizing other health care resources that are available to serve all or a portion of
the population proposed to be served by the project; and

D) Provide the reasons why the chosen alternative was selected.

2) Documentation shall consist of a comparison of the project to alternative options. The
comparison shall address issues of total costs, patient access, quality, and financial benefits in
both the short-term (within one to three years after project completion) and long-term. This may
vary by project or situation. FOR EVERY ALTERNATIVE IDENTIFIED, THE TOTAL PROJECT
COST AND THE REASONS WHY THE ALTERNATIVE WAS REJECTED MUST BE
PROVIDED.

3) The applicant shall provide empirical evidence, including quantified outcome data that verifies
improved quality of care, as available.

APPEND DOCUMENTATION AS ATTACHMENT 13, IN NUMERIC SEQUENTIAL ORDER AFTER THE LAST
PAGE OF THE APPLICATION FORM.
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SECTION IV. PROJECT SCOPE, UTILIZATION, AND UNFINISHED/SHELL SPACE
Criterion 1110.120 - Project Scope, Utilization, and Unfinished/Shell Space

READ THE REVIEW CRITERION and provide the following information:

SIZE OF PROJECT:

1. Document that the amount of physical space proposed for the proposed project is necessary and not
excessive. This must be a narrative and it shall include the basis used for determining the space and
the methodology applied.

2. If the gross square footage exceeds the BGSF/DGSF standards in Appendix B, justify the discrepancy by
documenting one of the following:

a. Additional space is needed due to the scope of services provided, justified by clinical or operational
needs, as supported by published data or studies and certified by the facility’s Medical Director.

b. The existing facility's physical configuration has constraints or impediments and requires an
architectural design that delineates the constraints or impediments.

c. The project involves the conversion of existing space that results in excess square footage.

d. Additional space is mandated by governmental or certification agency requirements that were not in
existence when Appendix B standards were adopted.

Provide a narrative for any discrepancies from the State Standard. A table must be provided in the
following format with Attachment 14.

SIZE OF PROJECT
DEPARTMENT/SERVICE PROPOSED STATE DIFFERENCE MET
BGSF/DGSF STANDARD STANDARD?

APPEND DOCUMENTATION AS ATTACHMENT 14, IN NUMERIC SEQUENTIAL ORDER AFTER THE LAST PAGE OF THE
APPLICATION FORM.

PROJECT SERVICES UTILIZATION:

This criterion is applicable only to projects or portions of projects that involve services, functions, or equipment
for which HFSRB has established utilization standards or occupancy targets in 77 lll. Adm. Code 1100.

Document that in the second year of operation, the annual utilization of the service or equipment shall meet or exceed the
utilization standards specified in 1110.Appendix B. A narrative of the rationale that supports the projections must be
provided.

A table must be provided in the following format with Attachment 15.

UTILIZATION
DEPT./ HISTORICAL | PROJECTED | STATE MEET
SERVICE | UTILIZATION | UTILIZATION | STANDARD | STANDARD?
(PATIENT DAYS)
(TREATMENTS)
ETC.
YEAR 1
YEAR 2

APPEND DOCUMENTATION AS ATTACHMENT 18, IN NUMERIC SEQUENTIAL ORDER AFTER THE LAST PAGE OF THE

APPLICATION FORM,

L .
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'UNFINISHED OR SHELL SPACE:
Provide the following information:
1. Total gross square footage (GSF) of the proposed shell space.

2. The anticipated use of the shell space, specifying the proposed GSF to be allocated to each
department, area, or function,

3. Evidence that the shell space is being constructed due to:
a. Requirements of governmental or certification agencies; or
b. Experienced increases in the historical occupancy or utilization of those areas proposed |
to occupy the shell space.

4. Provide:
a. Historical utilization for the area for the latest five-year period for which data is available;
and
b. Based upon the average annual percentage increase for that period, projections of future
utilization of the area through the anticipated date when the shell space will be placed
into operation.

APPEND DOCUMENTATION AS ATTACHMENT 16, IN NUMERIC SEQUENTIAL ORDER AFTER THE LAST PAGE OF THE
APPLICATION FORM.

i =

ASSURANCES:
Submit the following:
1. Verification that the applicant will submit to HFSRB a CON application to develop and utilize the
shell space, regardless of the capital thresheids in effect at the time or the categories of service
involved.

2. The estimated date by which the subsequent CON application (to develop and utilize the subject
shell space) will be submitted; and

3. The anticipated date when the shell space will be completed and placed into operation.

APPEND DOCUMENTATION AS ATTACHMENT 17, IN NUMERIC SEQUENTIAL ORDER AFTER THE LAST PAGE OF THE
APPLICATION FORM.
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M. Criterion 1110.270 - Clinical Service Areas Other than Categories of Service

1. Applicants proposing to establish, expand and/or modernize Clinical Service Areas Other than
categories of service must submit the following information;

2. Indicate changes by Service: Indicate # of key room changes by action(s);

# Existing # Proposed

Service Key Rooms  Key Rooms

(] Surgery - OR 2 2

[] Surgery - Procedure 0 1

L
3. READ the applicable review criteria outlined below and submit the required documentation for

the criteria:

Project Type Required Review Criteria
New Services or Facility or Equipment {b) — Need Determination — Establishment
Service Modernization {c)(1) - Deteriorated Facilities

AND/OR

(c){2) — Necessary Expansion
PLUS

(c)(3)(A) - Utilization — Major Medical Equipment

OR

| (ci3)(B) — Utilization — Service or Facility

1APPEND DOCUMENTATION AS ATTACHMENT 31, IN NUMERIC SEQUENTIAL ORDER AFTER THE LAST PAGE OF THE
APPLICATION FORM. [
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The following Sections DO NOT need to be addressed by the applicants or co-applicants responsible for
funding or guaranteeing the funding of the project if the applicant has a bond rating of A- or better from
Fitch's or Standard and Poor's rating agencies, or A3 or better from Moody's (the rating shall be affirmed
within the latest 18-month period prior to the submittal of the application):

e Section 1120.120 Availability of Funds - Review Criteria
*  Section 1120.130 Financial Viability ~ Review Criteria
+ Section 1120.140 Economic Feasibility - Review Criteria, subsection (a}

VIl. 1120.120 - AVAILABILITY OF FUNDS

The applicant shall document those financial resources shall be available and he equal to or exceed the estimated
total project cost plus any related project costs by providing evidence of sufficient financial resources from the
following sources, as applicable [Indicate the dollar amount to be provided from the following sources]:

$13,625,182 | a) Cash and Securities — statements (e.g., audited financial statements, letters
from financial institutions, board resolutions) as to:

1) the amount of cash and securities available for the project,
including the identification of any security, its value and
availability of such funds; and

2) interest to be earned on depreciation account funds or to be
earned on any asset from the date of applicant's submission
through project completion.

b) Pledges - for anticipated pledges, a summary of the anticipated pledges
showing anticipated receipts and discounted value, estimated timetable of
gross receipts and related fundraising expenses, and a discussion of past
fundraising experience.

c) Gifts and Bequests - verification of the dollar amount, identification of any
conditions of use, and the estimated timetable of receipts.

d) Debt - a statement of the estimated terms and conditions {including the debt
$15,000,000 time, variable or permanent interest rates over the debt time, and the
anticipated repayment schedule} for any interim and for the permanent
financing proposed to fund the project, including:

1) For general obligation bonds, proof of passage of the required
referendum or evidence that the governmental unit has the
authority to issue the bonds and evidence of the dollar amount
of the issue, including any discounting anticipated.

2) For revenue bonds, proof of the feasibility of securing the
specified amount and interest rate.

3) For mortgages, a letter from the prospective lender attesting to
the expectation of making the loan in the amount and time
indicated, including the anticipated interest rate and any
conditions associated with the mortgage, such as, but not
limited to, adjustable interest rates, balloon payments, etc.

4) For any lease, a copy of the lease, including all the terms and
conditions, including any purchase options, any capital
improvements to the property and provision of capital
equipment.

5) For any option to lease, a copy of the option, including ali

55475882 5
Page 17



terms and conditions.

e) Governmental Appropriations ~ a copy of the appropriation Act or ordinance
accompanied by a statement of funding availability from an official of the governmental
unit. If funds are to be made available from subsequent fiscal years, a copy of a
resolution or other action of the governmental unit attesting to this intent.

f) Grants - a letter from the granting agency as to the availability of funds in terms
of the amount and time of receipt.

g) All Other Funds and Sources - verification of the amount and type of any other
funds that will be used for the project.

$28,625,182

TOTAL FUNDS AVAILABLE

APPEND DOCUMENTATION AS ATTACHMENT 34, IN NUMERIC SEQUENTIAL ORDER AFTER THE LAST PAGE OF THE

APPLICATION FORM.

55475882.5
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SECTION Vill. 1120.130 - FINANCIAL VIABILITY

All the applicants and co-applicants shall be identified, specifying their roles in the project funding, or
guaranteeing the funding (sole responsibility or shared) and percentage of participation in that funding.

Financial Viability Waiver

The applicant is not required to submit financial viability ratios if:

1. “A" Bond rating or better

2. All the project’s capital expenditures are completely funded through internal sources

3. The applicant’s current debt financing or projected debt financing is insured or anticipated to be
insured by MBIA {Municipal Bond Insurance Association Inc.) or equivalent

4. The applicant provides a third-party surety bond or performance bond letter of credit from an A
rated guarantor.

See Section 1120.130 Financial Waiver for information to be provided

APPEND DOCUMENTATION AS ATTACHMENT 35, IN NUMERIC SEQUENTIAL ORDER AFTER THE LAST PAGE OF THE
APPLICATION FORM.

The applicant or co-applicant that is responsible for funding or guaranteeing funding of the project shall
provide viability ratios for the latest three years for which audited financial statements are available
and for the first full fiscal year at target utilization, but no more than two years following project
completion. When the applicant’s facility does not have facility specific financial statements and the
facility is a member of a health care system that has combined or consolidated financial statements, the
system's viability ratios shall be provided. If the health care system includes one or more hospitals, the
system's viability ratios shall be evaluated for conformance with the applicable hospital standards.

Historical Projected
3 Years

Enter Historical and/or Projected
Years:

Current Ratio

Net Margin Percentage

Percent Debt to Total Capitalization

Projected Debt Service Coverage

Days Cash on Hand

Cushion Ratio

Provide the methodology and worksheets utilized in determining the ratios detailing the
calculation and applicable line item amounts from the financial statements. Complete a
separate table for each co-applicant and provide worksheets for each,

Variance
Applicants not in compliance with any of the viability ratios shall document that another

organization, public or private, shall assume the legal responsibility to meet the debt
obligations should the applicant default.

APPEND DOCUMENTATION AS ATTACHMENT 36, IN NUMERICAL ORDER AFTER THE LAST PAGE OF THE APPLICATION
FORM.,
55475882 5
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SECTION IX. 1120.140 - ECONOMIC FEASIBILITY

This section is applicable to all projects subject to Part 1120.

A. Reasonableness of Financing Arrangements

The applicant shall document the reasonableness of financing arrangements by
submitting a notarized statement signed by an authorized representative that attests to
one of the following:

1)

2)

That the total estimated project costs and reiated costs will be funded in total with
cash and equivalents, including investment securities, unrestricted funds,
received pledge receipts and funded depreciation; or

That the total estimated project costs and related costs will be funded in total or
in part by borrowing because:

A) A portion or all the cash and equivalents must be retained in the balance
sheet asset accounts to maintain a current ratio of at least 2.0 times for
hospitals and 1.5 times for all other facilities; or

B) Borrowing is less costly than the liquidation of existing investments, and
the existing investments being retained may be converted to cash or
used to retire debt within a 60-day period.

B. Conditions of Debt Financing

This criterion is applicable only to projects that involve debt financing. The applicant shall
document that the conditions of debt financing are reasonable by submitting a notarized
statement signed by an authorized representative that attests to the following, as
applicable:

1)

2)

3)

That the selected form of debt financing for the project will be at the lowest net
cost available.

That the selected form of debt financing will not be at the lowest net cost
available but is more advantageous due to such terms as prepayment privileges,
no required mortgage, access to additional indebtedness, term (years), financing
costs and other factors.

That the project involves (in total or in part) the leasing of equipment or facilities
and that the expenses incurred with leasing a facility or equipment are less costly
than constructing a new facility or purchasing new equipment.

C. Reascnableness of Project and Related Costs

554758825

Read the criterion and provide the following:

Identify each department or area impacted by the proposed project and provide a cost
and square footage allocation for new construction and/or modernization using the
following format (insert after this page).
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COST AND GROSS SQUARE FEET BY DEPARTMENT OR SERVICE

A B C D E F G H
Department Total
(List below) Cost/Square Foot Gross Sq. Ft. Gross Sq. Ft. Const. $ Mod. $ Cost
New Mod. New Circ.* | Mod. Circ.* (A xC) (B x E) (G+H)
Contingency
|| ToTALs

* Include the percentage (%) of space for circulation

D. Projected Operating Costs

The applicant shall provide the projected direct annual operating costs (in current dollars per
equivalent patient day or unit of service) for the first full fiscal year at target utilization but no

more than two years following project completion. Direct cost means the fully allocated costs of
salaries, benefits and supplies for the service.

E. Total Effect of the Project on Capital Costs

, The applicant shall provide the total projected annual capital costs (in current dollars per |
equivalent patient day) for the first full fiscal year at target utilization but no more than two years |
following project completion.

| APPEND DOCUMENTATION AS ATTACHMENT 37, IN NUMERIC SEQUENTIAL ORDER AFTER THE LAST PAGE OF THE
| APPLICATION FORM.
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SECTION X. SAFETY NET IMPACT STATEMENT

SAFETY NET IMPACT STATEMENT that describes all the following must be submitted for ALL SUBSTANTIVE

PROJECTS AND PROJECTS TO DISCONTINUE HEALTH CARE FACILITIES [20 ILCS 3960/5.4]:

1. The project's material impact, if any, on essential safety net services in the community, including the
impact on racial and health care disparities in the community, to the extent that it is feasible for an
applicant to have such knowledge.

2. The project's impact on the ability of another provider or health care system to cross-subsidize safety
| net services, if reasonably known to the applicant.

3. How the discontinuation of a facility or service might impact the remaining safety net providers in each
community, if reasonably known by the applicant.

Safety Net Impact Statements shall also include ail the following:

1. For the 3 fiscal years prior to the application, a certification describing the amount of charity care
provided by the applicant. The amount calculated by hospital applicants shall be in accordance with the
reporting requirements for charity care reporting in the lllinois Community Benefits Act. Non-hospital
applicants shall report charity care, at cost, in accordance with an appropriate methodology specified by
the Board.

| 2. For the 3 fiscal years prior to the application, a certification of the amount of care provided to Medicaid

patients. Hospital and non-hospital applicants shall provide Medicaid information in a manner consistent
i with the information repoerted each year to the lllinois Department of Public Health regarding "Inpatients
and Outpatients Served by Payor Source” and "Inpatient and Outpatient Net Revenue by Payor Source”
as required by the Board under Section 13 of this Act and published in the Annual Hospital Profile.

3. Any information the applicant believes is directly relevant to safety net services, including information
regarding teaching, research, and any other service.

A table in the following format must be provided as part of Attachment 37.

[ Safety Net Information per PA 96-0031
CHARITY CARE
Charity (# of patients) Year Year Year
Inpatient
Qutpatient
Total
Charity (cost in dollars)
Inpatient
Qutpatient
Total
MEDICAID
Medicaid (# of patients) Year Year Year
Inpatient
Qutpatient
Total
Medicaid (revenue)
Inpatient

554758825
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Outpatient

Total

ENTATION AS A UM 'QUENTIAL ORDER AFTER THE LAST PAGE O

554758825
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SECTION X. CHARITY CARE INFORMATION

Charity Care information MUST be furnished for ALL projects [1120.20(c)].

1. All applicants and co-applicants shall indicate the amount of charity care for the latest three
audited fiscal years, the cost of charity care and the ratio of that charity care cost to net patient
revenue.

2. If the applicant owns or operates one or more facilities, the reporting shall be for each individual

facility located in Illinois. If charity care costs are reported on a consolidated basis, the applicant
shall provide documentation as to the cost of charity care; the ratio of that charity care to the net
patient revenue for the consolidated financial statement; the allocation of charity care costs; and
the ratio of charity care cost to net patient revenue for the facility under review.

3. If the applicant is not an existing facility, it shalt submit the facility's projected patient mix by payer
source, anticipated charity care expense and projected ratio of charity care to net patient revenue
by the end of its second year of operation.

Charity care” means care provided by a health care facility for which the provider does not expect
to receive payment from the patient or a third-party payer (20 ILCS 3960/3). Charity Care must be
provided at cost.

A table in the following format must be provided for all facilities as part of Attachment 39.

CHARITY CARE

Year Year Year

Net Patient Revenue

Amount of Charity Care (charges)
Cost of Charity Care

APPEND DOCUMENTATION AS ATTACHMENT 39, IN NUMERIC SEQUENTIAL ORDER AFTER THE LAST PAGE OF THE
APPLICATION FORM.
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SECTION XI -SPECIAL FLOOD HAZARD AREA AND 500-YEAR FLOODPLAIN DETERMINATION FORM

In accordance with Executive Order 2006-5 (EO 5), the Health Facilities & Services Review Board (HFSRB) must
determine if the site of the CRITICAL FACILITY, as defined in EO 5, is in a mapped floodplain (Special Flood Hazard
Area) or a 500-year floodplain. All state agencies are required to ensure that before a permit, grant or a development is
planned or promoted, the proposed project meets the requirements of the Executive Order, including compliance with
the National Flood Insurance Program (NFIP) and state floodplain regulation.

1. Applicant:
(Name) {Address})
{City) (State) {ZIP Code) {Telephone Number)
2. Project Location:
{Address) (City) (State)
{County) o (Townshipﬁ'Seé-tion)

3. You can create a small map of your site showing the FEMA floodplain mapping using the FEMA Map Service
Center website (https://msc fema.gov/portallhome) by entering the address for the property in the Search bar. If
a map, like that shown on page 2 is shown, select the Go to NFHL Viewer tab above the map. You can print a

&y,
°]

copy of the floodplain map by selecting the il icon in the top corner of the page. Select the pin tool icon
and place a pin on your site. Print a FIRMETTE size image.

If there is no digital floodplain map available select the View/Print FIRM icon above the aerial photo. You will
then need to use the Zoom tools provided to locate the property on the map and use the Make a FIRMette tool
to create a pdf of the floodplain map.

IS THE PROJECT SITE LOCATED IN A SPECIAL FLOOD HAZARD AREA: Yes___ No ?

IS THE PROJECT SITE LOCATED IN THE 500-YEAR FLOOD PLAIN?

If you are unable to determine if the site is in the mapped floodplain or 500-year floodplain, contact the county or the
local community building or planning department for assistance.
If the determination is being made by a local official, please complete the following:

FIRM Panel Number: Effective Date:
Name of Official; Title:
Business/Agency: Address:
_(City) (State) {ZIP Code) (Telephone Number)
Signature: Date:

NOTE: This finding only means that the property in question is or is not in a Special Flood Hazard Area or a 500-year
floodplain as designated on the map noted above. It does not constitute a guarantee that the property will or will not be
flooded or be subject to local drainage problems.

If you need additional help, contact the lllinois Statewide Floodplain Program at 217/782-4428

554758825



Floodplain Map Example

The image below is an example of the floodplain mapping required as part of the IDPH swimming facility construction
permit showing that the swimming pool, to undergo a major alteration, is outside the mapped floodplain.
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After paginating the entire completed application indicate, in the chart below, the page numbers for the
included attachments:

| identified with the % of ownership. -
4 Organlzatlonal Relationships (Organizational Chart) Certificate of T 38-39

INDEX OF ATTACHMENTS
ATTACHMENT
NO. PAGES
[ | Applicant Identification including Certificate of Good Standing | 28-31 |
2 K Slte Ownership | 32-36 |
' 3 | Persons with 5 percent or grealer interest in the licensee must be | 37

Good Standing Etc. |
5 F!ood Plain Requirements 40-43
6 | Historic Preservation Act Requirements | 44-49
7 | Project and Sources of Funds ltemization I 50-57
8 | Financial Commitment Document if required N/A
9 | Cost ‘Space Requirements 58
10 | Dtscontlnuatlon N/A
1 Background of the Applicant 59-63
12 1 Purpose of the Project 1 64- 81
13 al Alternatives to the Project 1 82-96
! Size of the Project | 87-94
15 2 Project Service Utilization 1 95 96
6 Unfinished or Shell Space 1 N/A
17 1 Assurances for Unfinished/Shell Space | N/A
: Service Specific: i
18 2. Medical Surgical Pediatrics, Obstetrics, ICU 1
8| Comprehensive Physical Rehabilitation Il
20 Acute Mental lliness !
Open Heart Surgeq il
I Cardiac Catheterization |
23 In-Center Hemodialysis |
24 Z Non- Hosp|ta| Based Ambulatory Surgery Il

J[ Selected Organ Transplantation
Kidney Transplantation

27 Subacute Care Hospital Model

28 I Commumtx -Based Residential Rehabilitation Center
29 | Long Term Acute Care Hospital

30 | Clinical Service Areas Other than Categories of Service i
31 | Freestanding Emergency Center Medical Services | 97-113
32 i Birth Center

Flnanclal and Economlc Feasibility:

o’ r—r"""—T—T-T—TITT°
AN VS SN N N N N A NN S [ S S [ U N S DU G U DU S S S S S S S S S R v DR N S S S

33 : Availability of Funds 1

34 | Financial Waiver 1 114-181
35 Financial Viability 1] 182

36 | Economlc Feasibility 1 183 185
37 1 Safety Net Impact Statement 1 186-189
38 | Charity Care Information 190
39 | Flood Plain Information | 191
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Section I. Type of Ownership of Applicant/Co-Applicant

Attachment 1

Hillsboro Area Hospital, Inc. d/b/a Hillsboro Health (“Hillsboro Health™) is an Illinois not-for-
profit corporation. A copy of a Certificate of Good Standing is attached.

ATTACHMENT 1
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File Number 0988-524-2

To all to whom these Presents Shall Come, Greeting:

I, Alexi Giannoulias, Secretary of State of the State of Illinois, do
hereby certify that I am the keeper of the records of the

Department of Business Services. I certify that

HILLSBORO AREA HOSPITAL, INC., A DOMESTIC CORPORATION, INCORPORATED
UNDER THE LAWS OF THIS STATE ON APRIL 03, 1906, APPEARS TO HAVE COMPLIED
WITH ALL THE PROVISIONS OF THE GENERAL NOT FOR PROFIT CORPORATION ACT

OF THIS STATE. AND AS OF THIS DATE, IS IN GOOD STANDING AS A DOMESTIC
CORPORATION IN THE STATE OF ILLINOIS

InTestimony Whereof, 1 hereto set

my hand and cause to be affixed the Great Seal of
the State of Illinois, this 6TH

day of MAY A.D. 2025

Authentication #: 2512602040 venfiable unti! 05/06/2028 4 a ‘ L] & ‘
Authenlicate at: https Jhwww isos gov

555452594

SECRETARY OF STATE
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Section I. Type of Ownership of Applicant/Co-Applicant
Attachment 1

Hillsboro Area Health System NFP d/b/a Hillsboro Health System is an Illinois not-for-profit
corporation. A copy of a Certificate of Good Standing is attached.

ATTACHMENT 1
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File Number 6309-416-1

: @

.!\\‘j;- 'F&]Hf

To all to whom these Presents Shall Come, Greeting:

I, Alexi Giannoulias, Secretary of State of the State of Illinois, do
hereby certify that I am the keeper of the records of the

Department of Business Services. I certify that

HILLSBORO AREA HEALTH SYSTEM NFP, A DOMESTIC CORPORATION,
INCORPORATED UNDER THE LAWS OF THIS STATE ON SEPTEMBER 12, 2003, APPEARS
TO HAVE COMPLIED WITH ALL THE PROVISIONS OF THE GENERAL NOT FOR PROFIT
CORPORATION ACT OF THIS STATE, AND AS OF THIS DATE, IS IN GOOD STANDING AS
A DOMESTIC CORPORATION IN THE STATE OF ILLINOIS.

InTestimony Whereof, I hereto set

my hand and cause to be affixed the Great Seal of
the State of Illinois, this 6TH

day of MAY A.D. 2025

i
Authentication #: 2512002288 verifiabte untl 05/040/2020 4 6 L ﬂ ‘
Authenticate at: hitps fiwww.isos.gov

SECRETARY OF STATE

ATTACHMENT 1
31
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Section L. Site Ownership

Attachment 2

Attached is information from the Montgomery County Assessor’s office evidencing that
Hillsboro Health owns the real estate at the location of the project.

ATTACHMENT 2
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5/6/25, 3.50 PM

Beacon - Monigomery County, IL - Parcel Report. 16-12-400-001

Montgomery County, IL

Summary
Paccel ID 16-12-400-001
Property Addeess 1200 € TREMONT ST
Township HILLSBORO

Briaf Legal Descrsption  PT SE EX RR LANDS CORP UMITS HILLSBORO D3 KET MO 84-48-91 8-4-1294 512 TO8 R4
[Note Mot to be uned on ega doduments]

Gross Acres 804
Class 0090
Tax District Code 08000
Taxing Districts COUNTY COMMUNITY MENTAL HEALTH
COUNTY TAX
HILLSBORO AREA PUBLIC LIBRARY
HILLSBORO CORP
HILLSBORO ROADDIST
HILLSBORO TWP
HILLSBORO UNIT 2
LUNCOLNLAND COLLEGE
Owners
1200 E Tremont St
Hillsboro IL 62049
2023 Exemptions
Owmer Ocoupied N
Howme Impr ovement Exemption: N
Drainage Exemption: N
Sendor Citizen Homestead Exemption: N
Senior Citizen A Fewere b d Exemnpy N
Fraternal Fraeze Empmption: Ll
Vrteran Facility Ememption: N
Dizabled Veteran Exemption: N
For exemption information please contact the Supervisor of Assessments Office 217-532-9593
Tax History
Tax Bill Ml Tox HULSBORO HOSPITAL ASSOC
1200 E TREMONT 5T
HILLSBORC IL 620490000
Tax Your: 2024
Tax Rate: 033094
Amount
instatiment 1: $000
nstaliment 2 2000
Tax Year Fora
Tax Rate: 8.74041
Amourt
Instaliment 1. $000
instalimemt 2 000
For payment information please contact the Treasurers Offce. 217:332.9321
Sketches

555452594
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W6/25, 3:50 PM

A

Beacon - Mentgomery County, IL - Parcel Report: 16-12-400-001

Adw wddlion
EILELYE]

Bk i1 by A Bl ™

DevNet Property Tax Inquiry
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500.0 ¢f
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56725, 3:52 PM

Beacon - Montgomery County, iL - Parcel Report; 16-12-2556-021

Montgomery County, IL

Summary
Parcel ID 16-12-256-021
Proparty Addeeis 1200E TREMONT 5T
Tovmnship HILLSBORO

Brinf Legal Description  PT E 177 EX AR LANDS CORS LIMITS HILLSBORO DOCKET NO 14-68-12 8-4-228A 512 TOS R4
[Note Mot to be Lsed on egal docunenis)

Gross Acres 168
Class 0090
Tax District Code 08003
Taxing Districts COUNTY COMMUNITY MENTAL HEALTH
COUNTY TAX
HILLSBORD AREA PUBLIC LIBRARY
HILLSBORO CORP
HILLSBORO ROAD DIST
HILLSBORO TWP
HILLSBORO UNIT 3
LINCOLNLAND CO{LEGE
Owners
i E
1200 E Tremot St
Hillsbano IL 62049
2023 Exemptions
Crwmer Occupied
Home Improvement Enemption:
Drainage Exemption.
Senior Citizen H d Exemp
Senlor Citiren Assessment Freeze Homestead Exemption:
Fraternal Freeze Exermnption:
Veteran Facility Exemption:
Disabled Veteran Exemption
Tax History
Tax Bl Mail Tox HILLSBORO HOSPMTAL ASSOC
$200E TREMONT T
HILLSBORO IL 4 20490000
Tax Yeur: 2024
Tax Raty: 233074
Amount
Instaliment 1 $0.00
It sl 2 000
Tax Year: 201
Tax Rate 874041
Amount
Instaliment 1 $0.00
Instafiment 2- $0.00

For exemption information pleste contact the Supervisor of Assessments Office. 217-532-%595

For payment nnfor mation plesse contact the Treasurer's Offce 217-532-9521

DeviNet Property Tax Inquiry

55545259 4
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5625, 352 PM Beacon - Montgomery County, IL - Parcel Report: 16-12-256-021

Map
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Section I. Operating Identity/Licensee
Attachment 3

Hillsboro Area Hospital, Inc. d/b/a Hillsboro Health is an Illinois not-for-profit corporation and
the licensed operator of the facility.

ATTACHMENT 3
33
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Section 1. Organizational Relationships
Attachment 4

A copy of the organizational chart for Hillsboro Area Hospital, Inc., d/b/a Hillsboro Health is
attached.

ATTACHMENT 4
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1.

HILLSBORO-AREA-HEALTH-SYSTEM-CORPORATE-STRUCTUREY|

Hillsboro Area Health System NFP
d/b/a Hillsboro Health System

|
| ] ]
Hillsboro Area Hillsboro Area Health Hillsboro Area Health
Hospital, Inc, Foundation, Inc. Services, Inc.
d/b/a d/b/a d/b/a
Hillsboro Health Hillsboro Health Foundation Hillsboro Health Fitness &
Aquatics

- Hillsboro-Area-Health-System-{“System”)is-a-501{c){3)corporationthatisthe-parent-entity-of the'Hillsboro-Area-Health-System.--

The-System-also-owns-the-Medlcal-Office-/-Classroom-Building-located-at-1204-East-Tremont-Street-in-Hillsboro,-lliinois.-- The-
use-of-that-building-is- described-in-Paragraph-6- of-the- Affidavit- of Use-submitted-in-connection-with- property-identification-
numbers-{PINs)-16-12-400-001-and-16-12-256-021.9)

Hillsboro- Area-Hospital- (“HAH")-Is a-501(c)(3) corporation-that-owns-and-operates- a-not-for-profit-critical- access-hospital-in-
Hillsboro, llinois.~The-System-is-thesole-corporate-member-of- HAH.~Numerous-members-of the.community-are-alsomembers.
The'properties-owned by'HAH-are-used-for-the-charitable:purposes-described-in-the-Affidavits-of-Use-submitted-in-connection-
with-the-applications-for-property-tax-exemptions-with-respect-to-property-identification-numbers-16-12-400-001,-16-12-256-
021,-16-12-256-036,-and-08-23-158-019.9]

Hillsboro-Area-Health-Foundation, Inc.{the*'Foundation”}-is-a-501(c}(3)-corporation-that-receives-charitable<contributions-used-
to-support-the-charitable-activities-of-the-members-of the-System.-The-System-is-thesole-member-of the-Foundation.q

Hilisboro: Arear Health- Services, Inc.: (“Services”) is- a- 501{c){3) corporation- that- owns- and- operates- the- Fitness- &- Aquatics-
building-and,-in-that-regard,-engages-in-the-charitable-activities-described-in-the-Affidavit-of-Use'submitted-in‘connection-with-
PINs-16-12-400-001-and-16-12-256-021.- The Systern-is-the-sole:-member-of-Services.q)
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Section I. Flood Plain Requirements
Attachment 5

Attestation that the site of the Project is not located in a flood plain and that the Project complies
with the Flood Plain Rules under Illinois Executive Order #2005-5 is attached.
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SECTION-XI--SPECIAL-FLOOD-HAZARD-AREA-AND-500-YEAR -FLOODPLAIN-DETERMINATION-FORMY

1
In- accordance- with- Executive- Order- 2006-5- (EQ- 5),- the- Health- Facilities- &- Services- Review- Board (HFSRB} must

determine if-the site-of the CRITICAL-FACILITY -as-defined-in-EQ5, i5-in-a-mapped-floodplain-(Special- Flood-Hazard
Area)-or-a-500-year-floodplain.--All-state-agencies-are-required-10 ensure-that-before-a-permit,-grant-or-a-development is
planned-or-promoted, the proposed-project meets-the-requirements of the Executive-Order,-including compliance with-
the-National-Flood Insurance-Program-(NFIP)-and-state-floodplain-regulation. -

1.+ Applicant. Hillsboro Health-------------- A el 1200 E.-Tremont-Street -+ 1
+ -+ (Name) -+ (Address)]
Hillshorg 1L 62049 - - (217}-532-6111 )|
O (City) .......... (State) [ REECETPEREPERY (Z'PCode) - (Telephoﬂe Numberm
1
2 - PrOjeciLocallon 1200E Tremont.su-eet..............................Hiﬂsboro...... ................_.......“_ - ﬁ
- - (AArass) oo (City) > wesseae (State)]
- + (County) - -+ {TownshipsSection) = {

3. - You-can-create-a-small- map-of-your-site showing-the-FEMA floodplain-mapping -using the-FEMA-Map-Service-
Center website-(hiips /msc.fema.gov/portal/home)-by-entering the address for the property-in-the Search bar If
a-map, like that-shown on-page-2-is-shown -selectthe-Go-to-NEHL -Viewertab-above-the-map.-You can-print-a
copy-of the floodplain-map by~selecﬁng-the--icon-in-the~top-corner-of-the-page.-SeIect-ﬂxepin-tool-icon- L

and-place-a-pin-on-your-site.-Print-a- E|RMETTE -size-image.

If-there-is-no-digital floodplain-map-available select the-View/Print-FIRM-icon-above the-aerial-photo.-Y ou -will-

then-need-to-use the-Zoomtools provided 1o-locate the-property-on the map-and-use the Make-a-EIEMette tool

to-create a pdf-of the floodplain-map.q

IS'THE-PROJECT-SITE-LOCATED IN-A-SPECIAL-FLOOD-HAZARD-AREA:-Yes:_-_‘Ng X 21
1
1S:THE-PROJECT-SITE-LOCATED-IN-THE-500-YEAR-FLOOD-PLAIN?-Noj

If-you-are unable to-determineg-if the-site is-in-the - mapped-floodplain-or 500-year floodplain, -contact the county-or the:
local-community building or planning department for-assistance.-{
If-the -determination-is -being made by-a local official, please complele the following

FIRM-Panel-Number: = = Effective:Date: = - 1

Name of Official; > 2 Title:-: - =) 4]

Business/Agency = Address : - 1
{City) - (State) > (ZIP-Code) - (Telephone -Number)f}

Signature:- - - Date -+ 1

NQTE: -This-finding-only means that-the property in-question is-or-is-not-in-a-Special-Flood-Hazard Area-or a 500-year-
floodplain-as-designated-on-the-map- noled-above. It does-not-conslitute a- guarantee that the property will or will-not be-
flooded or be subject to local drainage problems

Hyou-need-additional-help,-contact-the-llinois- Statewide-F loodplain-Program-at-217/782-4428Y
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Section I. Historic Resources Preservation Act Requirements
Attachment 6

Attached is a letter to the Illinois Department of Natural Resources requesting confirmation that
no historic, architectural or archaeological sites exists within the Project area.
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Anpa Pantik
Phooe: (311) 876-6958

SAUL EWING ik e s

wnw. saul com

May 13, 2025
VIA EMAITL

Carey L. Mayer, AIA

Deputy State Historic Preservation Officer
IIhneis Department of Natural Resources
One Natural Resources Way

Springfield, Ilinois 62701-1271

E-mail: SHPO Rewi OIS

RE: Review to Determine Impact Upon Historic Resources
1200 E. Tremont Street, Hillsboro, [Hinois 62049
Certificate of Need Application

Dear Ms. Mayer:

This letter requests vour comments as to whether a proposed project has histoncal, architectural
or archeolopical impact. This request is made in connection with a Certificate of Need application to be
filed soon with the Nllmois Health Facilities and Services Review Board.

The project will have three pnmary components, including (1) constructing an 11,341 foot
addition for surgerv and related services, (i1} replacing aging mechanical equipment, and (1ii) constructing
an entyance canopy (the “Project™).

Enclosed please find a map showing the property together with a street view and satellite photos.

We would appreciate a letter in response that we can include as part of the CON application. If
vou have questions or comments, or need additional information, please contact me at (312) 876-6938.

I appreciate your assistance.

Very truly yours,

Ama Pawhk
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Section I. Project Costs and Source of Funds
Attachment 7

Section 1120.110, Project Costs and Sources of Funds
Project Costs and Sources of Funds

Complete the following table listing all costs (refer to Part 1120.110) associated with the project.
When a project or any component of a project is to be accomplished by lease, donation, gift, or
other means, the fair market or dollar value (refer to Part 1130.140) of the component must be
included in the estimated project cost. If the project contains non-reviewable components that
are not related to the provision of health care, complete the second column of the table below.
Note, the use and sources of funds must be equal.
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Project Costs and Sources of Funds

USE OF FUNDS CLINICAL NONCLINICAL TOTAL

Preplanning Costs $183,162 $180,902 $364,064
Site Survey and Soil Investigation 65,000 0 65,000
Site Preparation 128,000 248,076 376,076
Off Site Work 0 0 0
New Construction Contracts 9,637,363 731,514 10,268,877
Modemization Contracts 25,000 10,619,165 10,644,165
Contingencies 654,535 685,284 1,339,809
Architectural/Engineering Fees 766,762 879,238 1,646,000
Consulting and Other Fees 828,550 281,300 1,109,850
Movable or Other Equipment (not in construction contracts) 1,829,083 0 1,829,083
Bond Issuance Expense (project related) 1] 0 0
Net Interest Expense During Construction (project related) 224,025 252,623 476,648
Fair Market Value of Leased Space or Equipment 0 o 0
Other Costs to Be Capitalized 305,400 200,200 505,600
Acquisition of Building or Other Property (excluding land) 0 0 0
TOTAL USES OF FUNDS $14,546,880 $14,078,302 $28,625,182

SOURCE OF FUNDS CLINICAL NONCLINICAL TOTAL
Cash and Securities $13,625,182
Pledges
Gifts and Bequests
Bond Issues (project related)
Mortgages $15,000,000
Leases (fair market value)
Governmental Appropriations
Grants
Other Funds and Sources
TOTAL SOURCES OF FUNDS $28,625,182

NOTE: ITEMIZATION OF EACH LINE ITEM MUST BE PROVIDED AT ATTACHMENT 7, IN NUMERIC SEQUENTIAL ORDER AFTER

THE LAST PAGE OF THE APPLICATION FORM.

55545259.4
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Attachment 7 - Detail

Description Total Clinical Non-Clinical
Preplanning Costs $ 364,064 | $§ 1831621 $ 180,902
Site Survey and Soil Investigation $ 65,000 | $ 65,000 | & -
Site Preparation $ 376,076 | $ 128,000 | § 248,076
Qff Site Work $ - |3 - $ -
New Construction Contracts $ 10268877 )% 9537363 | % 731,514
Modernization Contracts $ 10,644,165 ( § 25,000 | $ 10,619,165
Contingencles $ 1339819|% 654535|3% 685284
Architectural/Engineering Fees $ 1646000)% 766762 )% 879,238
Net Interest Expense During Construct.on (project reiated) $ 476,648 | $§ 224025 | $ 252,623
Total $ 25,180,649 | $11,583,847 | § 13,596,802
Consulting & Other Fees
IDPH Fees $ 25,665 [ $ 12,048 | $ 13,617
CON Consulting Fee $ 70,000 | $ 40,000 | $ 30,000
CON Fee $ 66,170 | $ 31,100 | & 35,070
Building Permits $ 26400 [$ 12570 )¢ 13830
Test & Balance $ 8,835 |4 5452 | & 3,383
Commissioning $ 20,000 | $§ 12,000 | $ 8,000
Fire Alarm $ 81,220 |$ 70,220 | § 11,000
Nurse Call $ 140,410 | $ 140,410
Tele/Data $ 183,930 | $ 175530 | $ 8,400
Access Control $ 106,920 1 $ 81,920 | $ 25,000
CCTV $ 95220 |$ 70,220 ) % 25,000
Paging/PA $ 35420 |$ 269201 $ 8,500
Telemetry $ 35,110 | $ 35,110
Clocks $ 14050 | $ 14,050
Legal $ 35,000 |$ 25,0001 $ 10,000
Furniture and Fixtures Consultant $ 15,500 | § 5500 | $ 10,000
Loan Initiation Fee $ 150,000 | $ 70,500 | § 79,500
Total $ 1,109,850 | $ 828550 % 281300
Other Costs To Be Capitalized
IT $ 350,600 [$ 225400 |$ 125,200
Artwork $ 100,000 | $ 50,000 | $ 50,000
Signage $ 55,000 | $ 30,000 | $ 25,000
Total $ 505,600 | $ 305400 § 200,200
Mavable or Other Equipment (Nat in Construction Cantract)
Cabinet, Warming, Dual, Freestanding $ 9,877 | § 9,877 1% -
Defibrillator, Monitor, w/iPacing $ 289611% 28961 ($ -
Cart, Procedure, Resuscitation $ 1622 |8 1622 | $
ATTACHMENT 7
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Pump, Suctlon/Aspirator, General, Portable $ 319 | § 319 | $ .
Sink, Scrub, 1-Bay, Stainless Steel $ BA457 | $ 8457 | $ -
Dispenser, Hand Sanitizer, Wall Mount $ 151 % 151 | % g
Sink, Scrub, 2-Bay, Stainless Steel $ 9,963 | $ 9,963 | §
Dispenser, Hand Sanitizer, Wal! Mount s 151 | $ 151 | $ -
Waste Can, 03-19 Gallon $ 127 [ § 127 [ $ &
Cart, Supply, Chrome, 48 inch $ 1,043 | $ 1,043 | $ -
Waste Can, Open Top $ 291§ 2914 -
Ice Machine, Dispenser, Nugget, Countertop $ 6371 ¢ 6,371 $ -
Refrigerator, Domestic with Freezer $ 1274 | § 1,274 | $ -
Qven, Commercial, Microwave $ 1,043 | $ 1043 | § -
Coffee Maker, Single Cup, Plumbed $ 463 | $ 463 | % -
Water Treatment System, Ice Maker, Wall Mount $ 358 | $ 359 | § 0
Waste Can, 03-19 Gallan $ 127 1 § 127 | $ -
Cart, Supply, Chrome, 48 inch $ 2,085 | $ 2,085 | $§ -
Cart, Supply, Chrome, 60 inch $ 1,332 | $ 1,332 | $ -
Waste Can, Open Top $ 291 % 298 -
Shelving, Allawance, Suppty, High Denslty (Movable] $ 13,901 | 13,901 | .
Cart, Supply, Chrome, 48 inch $ 3,128 | $ 3128 | $ -
Board, Peg, General 3 22591 % 22591 % -
Waste Can, Open Top $ 291 ¢ 291 % -
Waste Can, 03-19 Gallon $ Bl 35($ -
Washer/Disinfector, Steam $ 127428 |$ 127,428 | $ -
Sink, Clean-up Workstation [3-sink) $ 55,953 | $ 55,953 | § -
Pass-thru, Window $ 15,291 | $ 15,291 | § -
Cabinet, OR Console, Supply 3 11,005 | $ 11,005 | $
Table, Work, Stainless, 72-78 inch $ 2549 | $ 2549 [ & S
Table, Work, Stalnless, 48 inch $ 2,085]% 2,085 (%
Cart, Utility, Stainless $ 695 | $ 695 | $ -
Cart, Supply, Chrome, 24 inch $ 521| % 521 | $ -
Hamper, Linen $ 290 | $ 290 | § -
Waste Can, Bio-Hazardous, 32-55 Gallon $ 1451 $ 145 | § -
Waste Can, 44-55 Gallon 4 1391 $ 139 | $ -
Waste Can, 03-19 Gallon $ 127 1 $ 127 1§ -
Dispenser, Glove, Triple Box $ 93| $ 93| $ -
Disposal, Sharps, Wall Mount $ 52| $ 52|% -
Dispenser, Disinfectant Wipes, Wall Mount $ 358 3B|$ -
Waste Can, Open Top $ 29| % 29(% -
Sink, Clean-up Warkstation {2-sink) $ 9,963 | $ 9963 | § -
Table, Instrument, 45-48 inch $ 927 | % 927 | $ -
Waste Can, Bio-Hazardous $ 127 { $ 127 | § -
Dispenser, Glove, Triple Box $ 93 | % 93|% -
Dispenser, Disinfectant Wipes, Wall Mount $ 3518 351($ =
Waste Can, Open Top $ 29]% 290% &
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Waste Can, Open Top $ 29| % 2908 -
Cart, Housekeeping, Palymer $ 869 (% 869 | $
Dispenser, Cleaning Solution $ 695] % 695 $
Rack, Maps / Brooms $ 145 ] $ 145 | $
Waste Can, 44-55 Gallon $ 139 | § 139 | $
Cart, Cylinder, D&E, Multi $ 811§ 811] $
Rack, Cylinder, Wall Mount $ 261 | $ 2611 8% -
Hamper, Linen $ 200 )% 2901 $ -
Boom, Anesthesla $ 60,239 | § 60,239 | §
Integration System, Surgical, Video $ 46,338 | $ 45338 | § =
Cabinet, OR Console, Supply $ 33,016 | $ 33016 | § =
Baorn, Utility $ 20,273 (8 20273 %
Monitor, Video, 52 - 58 inch, Disptay $ 3475 % 347518 -
Table, Work, Stainless, 72-78 inch $ 2549 | % 2549 [ § 5
Stand, Mayo, Foot-Operated $ 1,101 | $ 1,101 | $
Stool, Step $ 956 | $ 956 | $ -
Bracket, Television, Wall, Flat Panel $ 41718 417 | §
Cable Management, Gas $ 405 $ 4051 %
Waste Disposal, Pharmaceutical, Container $ 2038 203|%
Dispenser, Glove, Triple Box $ 185 | $ 185 | $ -
Board, Patient Transter Device $ 174 | $ 174§ =
Dispenser, Disinfectant Wipes, Wall Mount $ 701% 70| $ -
Disposal, Sharps, Wall Mount $ 521% 521% -
Waste Disposal, Pharmaceutical, Secure, Wall $ 5218% 521§ -
Bracket, Patient Transfer Device, Wall Mount $ 29| % 29} $ -
Boom, Anesthesla $ 60,239 | $ 60,239 | §
Integratton System, Surgical, Video $ 46,338 | 46,338 | § -
Cabinet, OR Console, Supply $ 33,016 |§ 33016 (% -
Boom, Utility $ 20,273 | $ 20,273 | § s
Monitor, Video, 52 - 58 inch, Display $ 3475 | § 3475 $ &
Table, Work, Stainless, 72-78 inch $ 2549 | § 2549 | $
Pump, Infusion, Syringe $ 1,738 { § 1,738 | §
Stand, Mayo, Foot-Operated $ 1,101 1% 1,101 | $ -
Stool, Step $ 956 { § 956 | §
Bracket, Television, Wall, Flat Panel $ 17| $ 417 $ -
Cable Management, Gas $ 405 $ 405 | $ -
Waste Disposal, Pharmaceutical, Container $ 203 | $ 2031 %
Dispenser, Glove, Tripke Box $ 185 § 185 | $ -
Board, Patient Transfer Device $ 174 | $ 1741 § &
Dispenser, Disinfectant Wipes, Wall Mount 3 7018 70613 -
Disposal, Sharps, Wall Mount $ 521% 52§
Waste Disposal, Pharmaceutical, Secure, Wall $ 521 52 |% -
Bracket, Patient Transter Device, Wall Mount $ 201 % 29| % -
Monitor, Physiologic, Bedside $ 194618 |$ 194618 (% -
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Stretcher, Procedure / Recovery $ 152914 [$ 152,914 { § -

Cart, Computer, Laptop, w/o Power $ 20,389 | § 20,389 | § -

Bracket, Monitor, Wall $ 6,024 | $ 6,024 | § -

Table, Overbed, General $ 5097 | § 5097 | § -

Stand, IV, Chrome $ 4170 | $ 41701 $ -

Waste Can, Blo-Hazardous $ 1,019 % 1,019 | $ -

Dispenser, Glave, Triple Box $ 741 | $ 741 | § -

Flowmeter, Oxygen $ 5561 % 556 | § -

Dispenser, Emesis Bag, Wall Mount $ 463 | § 463 | $ 5

Disposal, Sharps, Wall Mount $ 417 1% 417 | § &

Dispenser, Disinfectant Wipes, Wall Mount $ 2781 $ 278 | & -

Dispenser, Tlssue Paper, Wall Mount $ 278 | $ 278 | $ -

Waste Can, Open Top $ 232 | % 232 1% -

Monitor, Physlologic, Bedside $ 24,327 | $ 24,327 | § -

Stretcher, Procedure / Recovery $ 19,114 | § 19,114 | $ -

Table, Overbed, General $ 637 | $ 637 | § -

Stand, IV, Chrome $ 521 )% 521 | $ -

Waste Can, Bio-Hazardous $ 1271 $ 127 | § -

Dispenser, Gtove, Triple Box $ 93| $ 931$ -

Flowmeter, Oxygen $ 701% 70| 8 -

Dispenser, Emesis Bag, Wall Mount $ 581¢% S8 | % -

Disposal, Sharps, Wall Mount $ 5218 5218 -

Dispenser, Disinfectant Wipes, Wall Mount $ 351$ Bls o

Dispenser, Tissue Paper, Wall Mount $ 35| $ 35($ -

Waste Can, Qpen Top $ 29| % 29 |% -

Ice Machine, Dispenser, Nugget, Countertop $ 6,371 | 6371 | % -

Refrigerator, Medical Grade, Undercounter w/Freezer $ 20271$ 2,027 | § -

Qven, Commercial, Microwave $ 5211 % 521 | % -

Water Treatment System, Ice Maker, Wall Mount $ 359 | $ 359 | $ -

Dispenser, Cup, Wall Mount $ a8 | $ o8| $ -

Waste Can, Open Top $ 87]$ 87|% -

Waste Disposal, Pharmaceutical, Secure, Wall $ s2|$ 52 |% -

Manitor, Physiologic, Bedside $ 81,091|% 810018 -

Stretcher, Procedure / Recovery $ 38228 | ¢ 8228 | % -

Compression Unit, Extremity Pumap, Intermittent $ 6,024 1% 6,024 | § S

Bracket, Monitor, Wall $ 1,506 | $ 1,506 | $ -

Waste Can, Bio-Hazardous $ 2551 % 255 | & -

Dispenser, Glove, Tripie Box $ 185 | $ 185 | § -

Flowmeter, Oxygen $ 139 | § 139 | § -

Dispenser, Emesis Bag, Wall Mount $ 116 | $ 116 | § -

Disposal, Sharps, Wall Mount $ 104 | $ 104 | § -

Dispenser, Disinfectant Wipes, Wall Mount $ 70| § 70(% &

Waste Can, Open Top $ 58] % 581% -

Stand, IV, Chrome $ 1,043 (% 1,043 | § S
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Dispenser, Medication, Host {Main), Countertop $ 40,545 | § 40,545 | $
Waste Disposal, Pharmaceutical, Secure, Watl $ 52 % 52| 8% -
‘Waste Can, Open Top $ 29 (% 291% -
Cart, Computer, Laptop, w/o Power $ 2549 % 2549 | $ -
Anesthesia Machine, General $ 127,428 | $ 127,428 | $ -
_ Light, Surgical, Dual, Ceiling [ 28,961 | $ 28,961 | § .
Cabinet, OR Console, Supply $ 11,005 | $ 11,005 | § -
Cant, Anesthesia, 6-drawer $ 4,055 | $ 4,085 | $ -
Pump, Infusion, Syringe $ 1,738 | $ 1,738 | § S
Table, Wark, Stainless, 60 inch $ 1,622 | § 1622 | % -
Stand, IV, Chrome $ 1,043 | $ 1,043 | § -
Hamper, Linen $ 5791 % 579 | $ .
Stand, Mayo, Faot-Operated $ 550 | 8 550 | $ -
Cable Management, Gas $ 405 ) § 405 | § -
Waste Disposal, Pharmaceutical, Container $ 203 (% 203|8% &
Dispenser, Glove, Triple Box $ 185 | $ 185 | $ -
Disposal, Sharps, Wall Mount 5 52 1% 52 1% -
Waste DIsposal, Pharmaceutical, Secure, Wall $ 52| % 52 % -
Dispenser, Disinfectant Wipes, Wall Mount $ 35|08 3]s -
Cable Management, Gas $ 3244 | $ 3244 | & -
Cart/ Truck, Linen, Bulk $ 388 |4 288 | $ -
Waste Can, Rollout $ 180 $ 80| $ -
Dispenser, Glove, Triple Box $ 931% 93|s -
Waste Can, Bio-Hazardous $ 751 8% 75| % -
Dispenser, Disinfectant Wipes, Wall Mount $ 35| % 3518 -
Waste Can, QOpen Top $ 87| $ 87 1% -
Cabinet, Warming, Dual, Freestanding $ 8,688 | $ 8,688 | $ -
Cart, Supply. Chrome, 48 Inch $ 3,128 | $ 3128 | $ -
Pump, Suction/Aspirator, General, Portable $ 319 $ 319 | % -
Dispenser, Glove, Triple Box $ 931]% 93| $ -
Disposal, Sharps, Wall Mount $ 52| $ 5218 -
Waste Disposal, Pharmaceutical, Secure, Wall $ 52| $ 52 | % -
Waste Can, Open Top $ 29| % 2% &
Sterilizer, Steam, Recessed $ 243272 |$ 243272 | % -
Cart, Sterilizer, Floor Loading $ 34,753 | $ 34,753 | $ -
Cabinet, OR Console, Supply $ 11,005 | $ 11,005 | $ -
Table, Instrument, Assembly $ 9,847 | § 9,847 | & -
Cart, Supply, Sterile Wrap $ 5213 | $ 5213 | & -
Sealer, Heat, Packaging $ 3707 | $ 3707 | & -
Table, Work, Stainless, 72-78 inch $ 2,549 | § 2549 | $ o
Board, Peg, General $ 753 | $ 753 1% -
Cart, Utility, Stainless $ 695 | § 695 | $ -
Waste Can, 44-55 Galton $ 139 | $ 139 | $ -
Waste Can, 03-19 Gallon $ 127 | & 127 | $ -
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Dispenser, Glove, Triple Box $ 93| $ 93 1% -
Table, Work, Stainless, 72-78 inch $ 2549 | § 2549 | & -
Cart, Supply, Chrome, 48 inch $ 2085]3% 2,085 % &
Board, Peg, General $ 1,506 | $ 1,506 | § -
Rack, Apron, Wall Mount $ 811 |$ 81118 -
Cart, Housekeeping, Polymer $ 869 | $ 869 | $ -
Dispenser, Cleaning Solution $ 695 | § 695§ -
Rack, Mops / Brooms $ 145 | $ 1451 % &

Waste Can, 44-55 Gallon $ 139 ]| § 139]$
Waste Disposal, Surglcal Fluid Disposal $ 17,3771 $ 17,377 1 § -
Cart / Truck, Utility $ 695 | % 695 | & -

Cart / Truck, Linen, Bulk $ 388 | % 38818
Dispenser, Glove, Triple Box $ 93 ($ 3|4 -
Waste Can, Bio-Hazardous $ 75| % 751§ g
Dispenser, Disinfectant Wipes, Wall Mount $ 35|$ 35| % -
Waste Can, Open Top $ 29| % 2918 -
Waste Can, Open Top $ 29 | $ 2|3 &
Cart, Supply. Chrome, 60 inch $ 3,957 | § 3907 | $ -
Wheelchalr, Aduit, Transport $ 12,164 | $ 12,164 | $ -
Hamper, Linen $ 250 $ 290 | & -
Total $ 1829083|5 1,829,083 | % -
Grand Total $ 28,625,182 | $14,546,880 | § 14,078,302
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Section I. Cost Space Requirements

Attachment 9

Cost Space Requirements

555452594

Attachment 9 | [ | |
Gross Square Feet Amount of Propoased Total Gross Square Feet That is:
Department Cost Existing | Proposed New Const.  |Modernized [Asls Vacated Space
CLINCAL
Operating Suite $ 6,342,873 2,113 3.827 3,827 2,113
Procedure Suite $ 1,112,248 883 883
Decontamination & Sterile Processing $ 1,280,442 196 1,073 1,073 196
PACU $ 544,158 1,220 338 456
Pre/Post Opp $ 3.355.176 1,200 1.867, 2,977
Mechanical, Vestibule, Med Gas Storage,
Vendor Drop Off, Back of House Circulation,
Locker Rooms & Break Room $ 1,886,984 562 3.040 2,125 562
Outpatient Testing $25,000 3,493 3,304 3,304
Clinical subtotal $ 14,546,880 8,784 14,332 11,341 3,304 2871
NON-CLINICAL
N/5 Patient Cormdor $ 257,383 1,638 1,638 1,638
Telecom $ 32,958 147 147 147
Entry Canopy $ 441,280 2.755 2.755
Lobby/Reception $ 1,562,335 6.074 6,203 129 6,074
Storefront Canopy $ 105,017 100 100
Surgery Discharge Canopy |1 267,220 1,125 1,125
Central Utility Plant $ 11,209,418 3,455 3.455
Central Utity Plant Connector Canopy $ 212,692 256 256
Non-clinical subtotal $ 14.078,302 11,314 12,224 4,365 11,314
TOTAL $ 28,625,182 20,098 26,556 15,706 14,618 2,871
ATTACHMENT 9
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Section III. Background of Applicant

Attachment 11

Section 1110.230, Background, Purpose of the Project and Alternatives

1.

3.

A listing of all health care facilities owned by the applicant, including licensing, and
certification if applicable.

Hillsboro Area Hospital d/b/a Hillsboro Health owns and operates a critical access hospital.
Copies of the IDPH license and accreditation certification is attached.

A certified listing of any adverse action taken_ against any facility owned and/or
operated by applicant during the three years prior to the filing of the application.

With the signatures on the Certification pages of this Certificate of Need Application, each of
the applicants attests that, to the best of its knowledge, no adverse action has been taken
against any Illinois health care facility owned and/or operated by it during the three years
prior to the filing of this CON Application. Further, with the signatures provided on the
Certification pages of this CON application, each of the applicants authorizes the Health
Facilities and Services Review Board and the Illinois Department of Public Health access to
any documents which it finds necessary to verify any information submitted, including but
not limited to official records of IDPH or other States agencies and records of nationally
recognized accreditation organizations.

Authorization permitting HFSRB and DPH access to documents necessary to verify the
information submitted, including, but not limited to: official records of DPH or other

State agencies; the licensing or certification records of other States; when applicable;
and the records of nationally recognized accreditation organizations.

By its signature to this permit application each of the Applicants hereby grants the Review
Board and the IDPH access to information to verify information in this application.
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DNV

HEALTHCARE CERTIFICATE

This is to certify thal the management system of

Hillsboro Area Hospital
1200 E Tremont St, Hillsboro, IL, 620491912, USA

has been found 1o comply with the requirements of the:
NIAHO® Critical Access Hospital Accreditation Program

Pursuant to the authority granted to DNV Healthcare USA Inc. by the U.S.
Department of Health and Human Services, Centers for Medlcare and Medicald
Services, this organization is deemed in compliance with the Medicare Conditions of
Participation for Specialized Providers - Critical Access Hospitals {42 C.F.R. §485
Subpart F).

For the tssuing offion:

DNV HesRhcare USA Inc.

4435 Aicholtz Road, Sulte 900, Cindnnad,
OM, 45245, USA

Ems L

SR PR At & ETRLAD WK ( Kelly Proctor

Man. R i,
-

Place and dae:
Milford, O, 03 August, 2022

Laxk of fuiment of oxlTons a5 $47 L W i CATTNATn Agshrndnt may réndér I Cartiicae invalid.
ACCAEDITED UMT DMV Haihowe LBA s 4435 Achatz Rosd, Sute 500 Gnoined, OW, 45248 USA - TEL =1 513847 3380 www dvwhsd e e om
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OIS DEPARTMENT OF
PUBLIC HEALTH

8 LICENSE, PERMIT, CERTIFICATION, REGISTRATION

The person, firm or corporation whose name appears on this certificate has complied with the provisions of the
Iinens statutes and/or rules and regulations and 1s hercby authorized to engage in the activity as indicated below

DR. Sameer Vohra
Issued undes 1he authof ity of The

DIRECTOR OF IDPH Ihnots Departrnent of Public Healih
EFFECTIVE DATE EXPIRATION DATE LICENSE NUMBE’.?. - | STATUS
212612025 2/26/2026 5101354 | Active

Category: Assisted Living License

Alzheimer Units: 10 Regular Units 28
Floating Units: Total Units 38
| "LICENSEE NAME HILLSBORO AREA HOSPITAL, INC o i
i
LICENSEE BUSINESS NAME il
TREMONT RIDGE ASSISTED LIVING i
801 E Tremont St Sk
Hillsboro Ithnois 62049 i i
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DNV

August 3, 2022
Program: CAH
CCN: 141332
Rex Brown Survey Type: Medicare Recertification/DNV Reaccreditation
Chief Executive Officer Certificate # C559868
Hillsboro Area Hospital, Inc Survey Dates: June 28-30, 2022
(d/b¥a) Hillshoro Area Hospital Accreditation Decision: Full accreditation
1200 E. Tremont St Date Acceptable Plan of Comection Received. 7/20/2022
Hillshoro, IL 62049 Method of Follow-up: Acceplable Plan of Comection,
Self-Attestation, Document Review
Effective Date of Accreditation; 9/6/2022
Expiration Date of Accreditation: 9%6/2025
Dear Mr. Brown: Term of Accreditation: Three (3) years

Pursuant to the authority granted to DNV Healthcare USA Inc. by the U.S. Depariment of Health and
Human Services, Centers for Medicare and Medicaid Services, Hillsboro Area Hospital, Inc {d/b/a)
Hillsboro Area Hospital is deemed in compiiance with the Medicare Cenditions of Participation for
Critical Access Hospitals (42 C F.R. §485) and awarded full accreditation for a three (3) year term
effective on the date referenced above. DNV Healthcare USA Inc. is recommending your organization
for continued deemed siatus in the Medicare Program

This accreditation is applicable to all facilities operating under the above-referenced CCN number at the
following address{es).

Hillsboro Area Hospital, Inc (d/h/a) Hillsboro Area Hospital - 1200 E. Tremont St - Hillsboro, IL 62049
Hillsboro Area Hespilal Inc. dfiva TeamWork Rehab - 207 West State Street — Nokomis, IL 62075
Hillsboro Area Hespital Inc. dib/a TeamWork Rehab - 120 W. St. John, Suite 2 - Litchfield, IL 62056
Hillsboro Area Hospila! Inc. d/tva TeamWork Rehab - 1200 £ Tremont St - Hilisboro, IL 62049

This accreditation also encompasses the swing beds in place and Hillsboro Area Hospital, Inc (d/h/a)
Hillsboro Area Hoaspital 1s deemed in compliance with the Medicare Conditions of Particpation at 42
C.F_.R §485.645 to meet the special requirements for CAH providers of long-lerm care services ("swing-
beds™).

This accreditation requires an annual survey and the organization’s continual compliance with the
DNVHC Accreditation Process. Failure to complete these actions or otherwise comply with your
Management System Cerlificatio/Accreditation Agreement may result in a change m your
organization's accreditation status.

Congratulations on this significant achievement.

Sincerely,

AL

Ketly Procior
President
¢c. CMS CO and CMS RO V (Chicago)

DNV Healthcare USA Inc. 4435 Aicholtz Road, Suite 900 Cincinnati OH 45245 866-523-6842 www.divecert. com/healthcare
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Section II1. Purpose of Project

Attachment 12

Overview of Purpose

Description of how the project will provide health services that improve health care or
well-being of the market area population to be served.

The purpose of this Project is to make needed improvements to the existing Hillsboro hospital so
that it can continue to provide ongoing access to quality care in the Hillsboro and the
Montgomery County area.

Hillsboro Area Hospital (“Hillsboro Health™) is a 25-bed critical access hospital located in
Hillsboro Illinois and has been serving patients since 1914. Hillsboro is a community of
approximately 6,000 residents equidistant between Springfield and St. Louis. Approximately
half the patients using hospital services other than Hillsboro Health travel to Springfield (50
miles) and the other half to the St. Louis area (65 miles).

The current hospital building was constructed 50 years ago and is in need of improvements. In
2023 Hillsboro Health completed a Master Facility Plan that outlined an extensive list of needed
improvements, more than could be feasibly undertaken at one time. After careful review, it
prioritized three elements that are the basis for these improvements in this Project.

The project has three primary components, including (i) constructing an 11,341-foot addition for
surgery and related services, (ii) replacing aging mechanical equipment, and (iii) constructing an
entrance canopy (the “Project”).

Primary Service Area (PSA)
Hillsboro Health defines its Primary Area (PSA) by zip code and includes the following rural
communities'

Hillsboro

Taylor Springs

Nokomis

Witt

Coffeen

Irving

Raymond

Fillmore

Butler

! Hillsbore Health 2024 Community Health Needs Assessment
ATTACHMENT 12
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Panama
Donnellson
Harvel

This service area, like other rural areas of Illinois and the nation general, face ongoing health
care challenges, including an aging population, a shortage of health care providers, and often
extended travel times for patients to receive care. Approximately 75% of inpatient admissions
are persons aged 65 or older.2 Over 50% of households have a person aged 65 or older living in
the home.> 87% of our inpatients are Medicare and over 10% are Medicaid.® For outpatient
care, 56% are Medicare and 32% are Medicaid.’

Identify the Existing Problems or Issues that Need to be Addressed and How the Issues will
be Addressed

In 2024 Hillsboro Health conducted a Community Health Needs Assessment, reaching out to the
community as to its determination of the most important health needs in the area. The report
concluded — “Priority # 1 - Access to Care. The goal is to increase access to comprehensive,
high quality healthcare services; including primary and specialty care services”.® Hillsboro
Health responded to this identified need by committing to “evaluate further development of an
orthopedic service in the community by partnering with providers from adjacent communities to
do clinics and procedures at Hillsboro Health.”’

Surgical Suite Replacement/Expansion

The most pressing clinical need at the hospital is to replace the two 50-year-old operating rooms.
The Project proposes to construct an 11,341 square foot addition to replace the two existing
operating rooms and to add a room for procedures that do not require a sterile environment.
Attachment 30 of this application details the deteriorated conditions that require replacement,
including the need to remedy humidity control issues. Also, the existing ORs are too small to
perform certain procedures. For example, there is insufficient room in the current two ORs for
the equipment and staff needed to perform orthopedic procedures. Consequently, orthopedic
physicians who see outpatients at Hillsboro Health facilities are unable to perform the procedures
at the hospital.

The Project also proposes a small non-sterile room for minor procedures. This room would
provide a lower cost, more efficient alternative to using operating rooms. This would be
particular useful for our patients needing pain management. We have recently seen a great need
for pain management services, particularly as an alternative to patients on opioids. In the past 14
months we have gone from no procedures to approximately 70 per month. Often these patients
need care every two weeks and previously had to drive at least 50 miles for care. With the

2 Source: Hillsboro Health 2024 Annual Health Questionnaire
3 Source: Hillsboro Health 2024 Annual Health Questionnaire
. Source: Hillsboro Health 2024 Annual Health Questionnaire
3 Source: Hillsboro Health 2024 Annual Health Questionnaire
® Hillsboro Health 2024 Community Health Needs Assessment
i Hillsbore Health 2024 Community Health Needs Assessment
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proposed procedure room these patients could receive care while in their street clothes and
without the need for the process of accessing a sterile OR.

We acknowledge that our surgical volume does not reach the utilization targets in the Board’s
state standards. Lower utilization for surgery or inpatient care is the norm for any critical access
hospital and is to be expected. We believe that the two ORs are necessary. One OR would be
insufficient to allow for more than one concurrent emergency or to provide needed redundancy.
More practically, without a second OR, it would be very challenging to recruit surgeons to use
the hospital. Unlike large hospitals or systems, Hillsboro Health employs no surgeons. Most
surgeons do not live in Hillsboro and schedule days to come to our hospital to perform
procedures. They want to be able to quickly move from one procedure in one OR to another
procedure in a second OR, without waiting while an OR is cleaned and prepared. Requiring a
surgeon to be idle while an OR was being prepared would likely dissuade a physician from
coming to the hospital and consequently would require most patients to travel over 50 miles for

surgery.

Non-Clinical Improvements - Central Utility Plant

The other major component to the Project is the replacement of aging infrastructure, some of
which dates back to the original construction 50 years ago. In addition, a rain canopy will be
constructed at the front entrance patient drop-off and pick-up. Replacement of heating,
plumbing, and electrical equipment is not glamorous, but is necessary if Hillsboro Health is to be
able to continue to care for residents in the community.
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Section II1. Alternatives
Attachment 13
Alternatives

Provide alternatives to the proposed project. The comparison shall address issues of cost,
patient access, quality, and financial benefits in both the short term (within 1-3 years after
project completion) and in the long term.

Hillsboro Health previously engaged BSA Life Structures to conduct an extensive master plan
for its facilities. In that master planning it became evident that the 50-year-old hospital structure
needed considerable improvements or even a replacement hospital. During the master planning
process Hillsboro Health considered and number of alternatives before selecting the proposed
Project:

1. Build a Replacement Hospital on another Site.

The ideal solution would be to construct a new replacement hospital on a new nearby site. This
would allow a modern design and layout and would allow for more efficiencies and energy
savings. The cost in the long run would likely be similar to eventually making all necessary
improvement to the existing building.

Unfortunately, any change in location would mean that Hillsboro Health would lose its
designation as a Critical Access Hospital. Without the Critical Access status, ongoing operations
at Hillsboro Health would not be financially feasible and this alternative could not be pursued.
Consequently, this alternative was not seriously priced out, but would have been estimated to be
approximately $90 million.

Cost:  Approximately $90 million (design and construction only) plus land acquisition
2. Construct a Replacement Hospital on the Current Site

Because of the critical access hospital relocation prohibition, Hillsboro Health gave careful
consideration to trying to construct a replacement hospital on the current site. The present site is
not large enough that there is a “green grass” location on site for a replacement hospital. Instead,
a replacement hospital on site would have involved a complex arrangement of demolishing part
of the hospital for construction of a portion of the new hospital while continuing operations in
the remaining part. Then there would be multiple phases where operations are moved to the new
section, while the remaining old section was demolished to allow for building the second phase
of the replacement hospital. This alternative was given serious consideration and preliminary
cost estimates were reviewed. However, preliminary design work showed that the complexities
resulted in an estimate of well over $95,000,000 dollars which could have been higher than a
replacement hospital on a new site. Ultimately, this alternative was determined to be too
expensive and have serious operational challenges during the construction.
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78

55545259 4



Cost:  Over $95 million for just design and construction (not equipment or other costs).
3. Pursue a Project of Larger Scope

The Master Design Plan identified numerous needed improvements beyond the proposed Project
and Hillsboro Health gave careful consideration to other needed improvements. These included
demolishing and rebuilding a wing of patient rooms and replacing the current lab facilities.
Pricing out other desirable improvements yielded an estimated cost of approximately $38 million
(design and construction only). While these are improvements Hillsboro Health would like to
make, and hopes to eventually, it decided to prioritize replacement of the mechanical equipment
and replacement of the surgery area.

Cost: Approximately $38 million (design and construction only)
4. Pursue a Smaller Scope — Reduce from two ORs to one OR

For purposes of this Alternatives section, Hillsboro Health analyzed reducing from 2 ORs to only
one OR. Doing so, would have allowed the Project to meet the Review Board state standard for
OR utilization. A review of all critical access hospitals, however, shows only one hospital that
has only one OR, and that hospital has an additional procedure room. Some critical access
hospitals have eliminated surgical services entirely and have no ORs, but with only one
exception, every hospital with surgical services has at least two operating rooms. There are good
reasons clinically and operationally to have two or more ORs. A table showing all Illinois
Critical Access Hospitals and the number of ORs, and procedure rooms is included in
Attachment 31.

One OR would be insufficient to allow for more than one concurrent emergency. For example,
one OR would not be adequate in the event of an automobile accident where two victims were
taken to the hospital for treatment. Further, a second OR is important to provide redundancy.
This has been proven to be true at Hillsboro Health where one OR had high humidity and could
not be used so it was necessary to use the second room. More practically, without a second OR,
it would be very challenging to recruit surgeons to use the hospital. Unlike large hospitals or
systems, Hillsboro Health employs no surgeons. Most surgeons do not live in Hillsboro and
schedule days to come to our hospital to perform procedures. They want to be able to quickly
move from one procedure in one OR to another procedure in a second OR, without waiting while
an OR is cleaned and prepared. Requiring a surgeon to be idle while an OR was being prepared
would likely dissuade a physician from coming to the hospital and consequently would require
most patients to travel over 50 miles for surgery.

We also note that there are considerable fixed costs to providing surgical services. These fixed
costs are better spread over two ORs than one.

5. Propose a Project without adding a Procedure Room

The Project could have been proposed without the addition of a separate procedure room. This
alternative was rejected for several reasons, including operating efficiency, cost savings and
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patient convenience. A separate procedure room is not just an alternative OR—it offers several
advantages. The relatively small capital cost of the procedure room is far outweighed by
operating efficiencies.

The IDPH Hospital Licensure Code requires that operating room surgical areas be restricted to
maintain a sterile environment. 77 HLAdmin.Code 250.1300. Street clothes are prohibited and
any person accessing the area must be gowned and wear covering. The proposed procedure
room will be outside the restricted surgery area. Medical staff will not need to gown which will
make staff much more efficient and cost effective, A procedure room will also allow patients to
receive appropriate care without changing out of their street clothes. Pain management patients,
many whom require care every two weeks, would particularly appreciate this convenience.

Cost: Hillsboro Health estimates that the procedure room’s incremental capital cost of only
approximately one million dollars, which it estimates will be quickly recouped from operational
savings.

6. Maintain Status Quo. Doing nothing has no initial cost. However, not replacing the
mechanical systems is not an option. As detailed in Attachment 31, it is necessary to replace
these systems to keep the hospital operational. Similarly, the 50-year-old operating rooms are in
need of replacement. The ORs have air handling and humidity control issues that cannot be
easily remedied without replacement. The rooms are also undersized for modern equipment and
certain procedures, such as orthopedic procedures, cannot be performed.

Cost:  $0 initially, but costs for capital improvements are being deferred.
7. Construct Proposed Project

After careful consideration or various alternatives, the proposed Project was selected as meeting
the hospital’s highest priorities within financial availability.

Cost: $28,625,182
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Project Summary Pros Cons

Construct a Construct a e Ideal from e [fHospital relocates
Replacement Replacement operations it loses it’s Critical
Hospital on New Hospital on a new perspective Access Designation
Site nearby site. e Modern more

Cost; $90 million

efficient design

Construct a
Replacement
Hospital on the
Current Site

Construct a new
replacement
hospital on current
site.

$95,000,000

e Modern more
efficient design

e More energy
efficient

There is no open
space at the current
hospital and there
would need to be
demolition and
construction in
phases

More costly
Complexities and
cost outweigh the
benefits

Pursue a Project of
Larger Scope

Modernize or
replace other areas
of the hospital,
including patient
rooms and
laboratory space

$38 million (design
and construction
only)

e A large project
scope is
desirable and
would
encompass areas
that will need
improvement in
the future

The need to priontize
capital expenditures
requires deferral of
other improvements
at this time

Pursue a smaller
scope — reduce
from2ORsto 1
OR

Cost: $26,500,000

¢ Better meet state
standard for
utilization

We found that every
hospital with surgery
in [llinois has 2 or
more ORs and this
appears the minimum
size clinically,
operationally and
practical

Propose a Project
without adding a
Procedure Room

Cost: $27,500,000

e Better meet state
standards for
utilization

The operational costs
incurred in not
having a procedure
room would far
outweigh the
relatively small
capital cost
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Project

Summary

Pros

Cons

Status Quo — Do
Nothing Now

e No initial cost

¢ No initial
operational
disruption

The proposed project
is essentially
maintaining/replacing
mechanical
equipment and
surgical space that
has outlived its
functional life and
needs to be replaced.
Doing nothing now
would only defer
what needs to be
remedied

Construct
Proposed Project

Cost: $28,625,182

e The proposed
project is the
best compromise
in meeting
priorities for
capital
improvement
with financial
limits

Additional capital
improvements are
being deferred and
will need to be
expended in the
future
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Section IV. Project Scope, Utilization, and Unfinished/Shell Space
Attachment 14
Project Scope, Utilization and Unfinished/Shell Space

The project has three primary components, including (i) replacing aging mechanical equipment,
(ii) constructing an entrance canopy, and (iii) constructing an 11,341-foot addition to replace its
two existing operating rooms (the “Project”). The addition will also create one non-sterile
procedure room, replace post-surgery recovery rooms and central sterilization.

The Project has been designed to meet the State Standard for size. The State Standard for
surgery is 2,750 dgsf per operating room, plus 1,100 dgsf for each procedure room.

SIZE OF PROJECT
DEPARTMENT/SERVICE PROPOSED STATE DIFFERENCE MET
BGSF/DGSF STANDARD STANDARD?
Surgery 6,534 dgsf 6,600 dgsf {66) Yes

Hillsboro Health (Hillsboro Area Hospital) proposes an 11,561 square foot addition to Hillsboro
Hospital, specifically targeting surgery capabilities and volumes and an additional 12,224 square
feet of non-clinical space. Currently, the surgery department is insufficiently sized for the volume
and complexity of surgical cases, as well as the increasing size of equipment and technology
utilized. This project aims to enhance the health care experience and well-being of patients,
visitors, and staff at Hillsboro Health.

To make way for the surgery addition, the existing 1974 West wing of the hospital campus that
houses outpatient testing services will be demolished. The outpatient testing wing contains
outpatient related services such as bone density, blood draw, and nuclear medicine. These rooms
will be relocated to the East in existing phase [I PACU phase II rooms. The PACU phase II
rooms will be temporarily relocated to southern inpatient rooms before being finally housed in
the new surgery addition. Approximately 3,304 square feet of space over fifty years old will be
modernized for the outpatient testing relocation. This modernization of work will be completed
in-house prior to the start of the surgery addition construction.

Hillsboro Health is licensed for twenty-five patient beds. The surgery addition will be removing
three private patient rooms. In preparation for the surgery addition build, the hospital has
designated four existing patient rooms to serve as semi-private to maintain the hospital license
count of twenty-five. These four existing patient rooms are already properly equipped to serve
as semi-private rooms.
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The surgery addition will host two, approximately 600 square-foot class C surgical operating
rooms and a 349 square foot class B surgical procedure suite for outpatient procedures such as
endoscopy and minor interventions not requiring full surgical support. The total space allocation
for the surgical suite is approximately 6,534 DGSF which meets the state standard of 6,600
DGSF. The surgery suite will provide critical access for local and rural patients needing
operative care without referral to tertiary hospitals.

Although the total space allocation for surgical suite falls within the state standards in Illinois,
below are several components that shaped the square footage design.

o The square footage above accounts for:
o Two operating rooms, supported by a centralized sterile core
o Staff lockers, which serve all staff in the surgery addition, are arranged to provide
a one-way traffic pattern so that personnel entering from outside the surgical suite
can change, shower, gown and move directly into the surgical suite®
o Staff Break Room which serves all staff in the surgery suite
Vestibule which serves as an exit discharge for the entire surgery suite
o Med Gas Storage which serves the entire surgery suite. Medical gas storage is
required for storage of nitrous oxide and oxygen cylinders®
o Vendor Drop-Off which serves the entire surgery suite, eliminating traffic flow
through the main lobby/reception
e Operating Rooms are sized to current guidelines. AORN recommended the size of an OR
at 400 to 700 square feet based on types of procedures performed in the room, including the
type of equipment and the number of people present during the procedure. '®
e Each operating room shall have a minimum clear floor area of 400 square feet. The
following minimum clearances shall be provided around the operating table, gurney, or
procedural chair: 8 feet 6 inches on each side and 6 feet at the head. This dimension shall
result in an anesthesia work zone with a clear floor area of 6 feet x 8 feet, and 7 feet at the
foot.!!
¢ Control Station is required to permit direct visual surveillance of all traffic that enters the
operating suite.'” The control station is combined with the supervisor’s office to be
efficient with space.
e Soiled Work Room for the exclusive use of the surgical suite staff is required for the
proper collection and disposal of soiled materials.'

o]

8 | llinois Hospital Licensing Requirements (77 [l Adm. Code 250)

? Minois Hospital Licensing Requirements (77 Ill. Adm. Code 250)

= Facilities Guidelines Institute, 2022 FGI Guidelines for Design and Construction of Hospitals. 2022.
U Facilities Guidelines Institute, 2022 FGI Guidetines for Design and Construction of Hospitals. 2022.
12 Wlinois Hospital Licensing Requirements (77 111. Adm. Code 250}
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e Clean Supply Room is required for storage and distribution of clean and sterile supplies.'*

» Anesthesia Work and Storage Room are required for cleaning, testing and storing
anesthetic gases and anesthesia equipment.'’

e Patients’ Holding Area is required in facilities with two or more operating rooms.'s

e Stretch storage area is required,'’

e Janitor’s Closet is required exclusively for the surgical suite.'®

*  Procedure room maintains a minimum clear floor area of 130 square feet, with the
following minimum clearances around the table, gurney, or procedural chair: 3 feet 6
inches on each side and 3 feet at the head and foot. Where the anesthesia machine and
associated supply carts are used, the layout supplies 6 feet at the head to provide space
for an anesthesia work zone of 6 feet x 8 feet.'

The total space allocation for the surgical suite does not account for the sterile processing
department, which is approximately 1,073 square feet. The sterile processing department (SPD)
is designed to ensure the efficient and safe reprocessing of surgical instruments. SPD is
strategically located within the surgery department to facilitate quick and seamless instrument
turnover. The SPD is responsible for cleaning, decontaminating, inspecting, and sterilizing
instruments used throughout the hospital, with over 40% of the sterile load coming from
departments outside the operating rooms. SPD is an integral to the hospital's infection control
strategy, ensuring that all instruments are processed safely and efficiently to support patient care
and sterile procedures across the hospital.

Two dedicated post-anesthesia recovery phase 1 (PACU) will be located adjacent to the surgical
operating suite. The PACU space makes up approximately 338 DGSF which meets the state
standard of 360 DGSF. The PACU space is dedicated to the surgery addition and not shared with
any other departments. The bays with cubical curtains are universal in design for operational
efficiency and flexibility. The nurses are actively present at the patient’s bedside, providing
direct care during the immediate recovery period after surgery.

Nine post-anesthesia recovery phase II (preparation/recovery rooms) will be located adjacent to
phase I. While a minimum of four recovery stations per operating room are required, the new
surgery addition will have a total of nine recovery stations, one dedicated for isolation patients.
Each recovery station is an individual room with sliding doors, which are larger than bays with
cubical curtains. Private rooms lead to greater patient satisfaction and better infection
prevention. Universal recovery rooms are planned for operational efficiency and flexibility. The

13 \1linois Hospital Licensing Requirements (77 lll. Adm. Code 250)
" \llinois Hospitai Licensing Requirements (77 I1l. Adm. Code 250)
L linois Hospital Licensing Requirements {77 111. Adm. Code 250)
18 | 11inois Hospital Licensing Requirements (77 I1l. Adm. Code 250)
17 Mlinois Hospital Licensing Requirements (77 111. Adm. Code 250)
¥ |inois Hospital Licensing Requirements (77 Ill. Adm. Code 250)

19 Facilities Guidelines Institute, 2022 FGI Guidelines for Design and Construgtion of Hospitals. 2022.
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recovery rooms will aid in accommodating outpatient infusion in addition to its typical standards.
There will be two nurse stations to provide maximum visibility to patients and to facilitate one-
way traffic flow within the recovery space.?® Phase II also includes soiled holding, equipment
alcoves, clean room, patient and staff toilets, making up 3,040 DGSF, which meets the state
standard of 3,600 DGSF.

Circulation throughout the surgery addition makes up approximately 3,542 square feet of the
11,561 square foot addition, allowing for back of house movement, eight-foot corridor width for
patient stretcher movement, and sterile supply movement throughout the department. Circulation
also provides the required life safety egress from the building continuing existing corridors. The
new surgery will abut the imaging department to the north. To maintain helipad access to and
from the existing emergency department through imaging, the addition of the surgery contains a
576 square foot vestibule to provide emergency personnel access into the departments.

In addition to the proposed 11,561 square foot surgery addition, there is an additional 12,224
square feet of non-clinical space. Below are the non-clinical spaces captured in the design.

e Patient corridor running north - south adjacent to the surgery addition
¢ Fire-rated Telcom room, modernizing the existing boiler room. The existing boiler
servicing the emergency department will be demolished and the CUP will house new
boilers
¢ Renovation of the front lobby and reception areas
e New detached entryway canopy at the front entrance of the hospital
e New canopy/awning at the pair of existing storefront doors
e New detached canopy at the south exit of the new surgery suite for patient discharge
o Central Utility Plant (CUP), modernizing the existing material management space
¢ New detached canopy located between the CUP and existing inpatient wing for pipe
routing.
The CUP is undergoing a comprehensive modernization effort to enhance efficiency and meet
the growing demands of the fifty-year-old facility. The existing steam boilers currently serve the
sterilization and heating operations of the hospital. These will remain in place to serve only
existing HVAC equipment. New electric steam generators will be provided and located in the
surgery addition. These are to serve the new SPD and humidification for the surgery addition.
Steam generators will be placed on essential power. This upgrade is essential to ensure reliable
steam production, which is crucial for the sterilization processes in the operating rooms.

The CUP will also include two dual fuel condensing heating water boilers. These will provide
heating for the surgery addition, connection to the emergency department, and some additional
capacity for future expansion into the existing hospital. The boilers will be fully redundant.

20 itinois Haospital Licensing Requirements (77 [Il. Adm. Code 25()
ATTACHMENT 14

g6

55545259.4



Space for a third boiler will be provided in anticipation of future equipment replacement and
working to decommission the existing steam boilers. New pumps will be provided and fully
redundant. These new boilers will reduce energy consumption and maintenance costs.

The cooling plant will include one new water-cooled chiller and cooling tower. Once the new
chilled water system is installed and operational the existing chiller and cooling tower will be
relocated to the new CUP location. Emergency chilled water piping connections will be provided
for connection to a temporary chiller. New pumps will be provided and fully redundant. This
upgrade will help to ensure continuous chilled water service to the building.

In addition to the HVAC upgrades, the electrical systems, which are also 50 years old, are being
updated to support the new surgical modernization efforts. These electrical upgrades will
provide a new electrical infrastructure to replace equipment that has met or exceeded average life
spans. The electrical infrastructure will back feed existing portions of the hospital and
consolidate the number utility connections from three to one. The existing electrical
infrastructure is being upgraded to provide a more robust and reliable power supply, capable of
handling the increased load from the modernized surgical equipment as well as providing
capacity for future improvements to the facility.

The normal power electrical upgrades include new incoming service main distribution board,
new utility meter, new service ground to be connected back to the existing hospital grounding
service and utility transformer.

The essential power electrical upgrades include 2 new emergency generators (96-hour fuel tank
capacity), 4 new automatic transfer switches, and a new emergency main distribution panel.

This comprehensive modernization of the CUP is a critical step in ensuring that our hospital can
continue to provide high-quality care to our patients. The new systems will enhance operational
efficiency, reduce downtime, and support the advanced medical technologies being implemented
in the surgical departments.
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Hillsboro Health's main entrance.
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Location of new surgery suite

Existing outpatient testing wing being
demolished to make way for new
surgery suite.
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Section IV. Project Services Utilization

Attachment 15

Appendix B, Project Services Utilization

1110.120 ¢) Project Size Utilization — For areas for which there are utilization standards as
shown in Appendix B

Document that in the 2nd year of operation, the annual utilization of the service shall meet
or exceed the utilization standards.

The State Standard for surgery is 1,500 hours per each operating room and each procedure room.
Hillsboro Health currently has two operating rooms. The proposed Project will replace the two
existing ORs and add one non-sterile procedure room.

Like all other Critical Access Hospitals (CAH) in Illinois, Hillsboro Health acknowledges that it
does not presently have the volume to meet the state standard and that it similarly will not do so
following project completion. As part of this CON process, Hillsboro Health reviewed the
utilization of the approximately 50 Critical Access Hospitals in Illinois. As the table and
discussion in Attachment 31 shows, not a single CAH meets this standard. Similarly, not a
single CAH meets the bed utilization standard. In almost all cases, its is not even close. This
review also showed that, with one exception, every CAH had a minimum of two ORs.
Attachment 31 also addresses why the need for at least two ORs and a procedure room is
essential to provide the critical access that is the mission of critical access hospitals.

UTILIZATION
DEPT./ HISTORICAL
SERVICE UTILIZATION
PROJECTED STATE
Surgery Surgical Hours | UTILIZATION STANDARD MEET STANDARD?
2021 730 1500 /OR No
2022 650 No
2023 439 No
2024 527 No
2029 2,087 No
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Attachment 31

Criterion 1110.270 - Clinical Service Areas Other than Categories of Service

1. Applicants proposing to establish, expand andfor modernize Clinical Service Areas Other than

categories of service must submit the following information:

2. Indicate changes by Service: Indicate # of key room changes by action(s}):
# Existing # Proposed
Service Key Rooms  Key Rooms
[] Surgery - OR 2 2
[] Surgery — Procedure 0 1
O
3. READ the applicable review criteria outlined below and submit the required documentation for
the criteria:
Project Type Required Review Criteria
New Services or Facility or Equipment (b) = Need Determination — Establishment
Service Modernization (c}{1) - Deteriorated Facilities

AND/OR

(c)(2) — Necessary Expansion

PLUS

{c)(3)(A) - Utilization — Major Medical Equipment

OR

{c)(3)(B) - Utilization — Service or Facility

1APPEND DOCUMENTATION AS ATTACHMENT 31, IN NUMERIC SEQUENTIAL ORDER AFTER THE LAST PAGE OF THE

APPLICATION FORM.
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Attachment 31

Criterion 1110.270 Clinical Service Areas Other Than Categories of Services
A. Deteriorated Facilities

Hillsboro Health is a 25-bed critical access hospital located in Hillsboro. The current hospital
building was constructed 50 years ago and is in need of improvements. In 2023 Hillsboro Health
completed a Master Facility Plan that outlined an extensive list of needed improvements, more
than could be feasibly undertaken at one time. Afier careful review, it prioritized three elements
that are the basis for these improvements in this Project.

The project has three primary components, including (i) constructing an 11,341-foot addition for
surgery and related services, (ii) replacing aging mechanical equipment, and (iii) constructing an
entrance canopy (the “Project™).

Surgical Suite Replacement/Expansion

The most pressing clinical need at the hospital is to replace the two 50-year-old operating rooms.
The existing ORs are too small to perform certain procedures. For example, there is insufficient
room in the current two ORs for the equipment and staff needed to perform orthopedic
procedures. In addition to the need for larger operating rooms there are other deteriorated
facilities as described below.

Deteriorated Surgical and Sterile Processing Areas

1. Sterile Processing Department

The surgical Sterile Processing Department (SPD) at the hospital is currently constrained
by limited space, which significantly impacts its operational efficiency. The department
is too small to accommodate the sterilization cart, necessitating the reliance on sterilized
equipment to cool within the sterilizer. This practice not only prolongs the turnover time
for sterile instruments but also increases the risk of contamination and equipment damage
due to prolonged exposure to high temperatures.

Furthermore, the lack of adequate storage space within the SPD poses additional
challenges. The inability to store supplies within the SPD is due to the aging air handler
being unable to maintain the recommended temperature ranges, which are crucial for
preserving the integrity and functionality of sterile supplies. This limitation forces staff to
frequently retrieve supplies from other storage areas, leading to increased handling.

The absence of sufficient storage space also hampers workflow efficiency, as essential
supplies are not readily available in the working area. This results in delays and
inefficiencies, as staff must constantly leave the working area to fetch necessary items.
Addressing these space constraints by expanding the SPD would enable the proper use of
sterilization equipment, facilitate efficient storage of supplies, and ultimately enhance the
overall sterility and timeliness of instrument turnover, thereby improving patient care and

operational efficiency.
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2. Operating Room Temperature and Humidity

Maintaining the recommended temperature and humidity levels in the aging operating
rooms is a significant challenge that affects the quality and safety of surgical procedures.
The outdated infrastructure of these rooms often fails to provide consistent environmental
control, leading to fluctuations in temperature and humidity that can compromise the
sterility of surgical instruments and the comfort of patients and staff.

During the winter months, the dry air necessitates the use of portable humidifiers to
prevent the relative humidity from dropping below the recommended range. Low
humidity can cause static electricity, which poses an increased risk of surgical electrical
fires, equipment malfunction, and can also lead to the degradation of certain materials
used in surgical procedures. Conversely, in the summer, high humidity levels require the
use of portable dehumidifiers to avoid moisture-related issues that can promote microbial
growth and damage equipment.

The reliance on portable humidifiers and dehumidifiers is not an ideal solution, as these
devices are temporary and can be inconsistent in their performance. They also take up
valuable space within the operating rooms, which are already constrained, and can be
noisy. Additionally, the frequent need to adjust and monitor these devices adds to the
workload of the staff, diverting their attention from other critical tasks.

To address these challenges effectively, it is essential to invest in modernizing the
operating rooms with a dedicated HVAC system specifically designed to maintain
consistent temperature and humidity levels throughout the year. Such a system would
ensure the optimal conditions required for safe and efficient surgical procedures, enhance
the overall comfort and safety of the environment, and ultimately benefit patient
outcomes and operational workflows.

3. Recovery Rooms

The current configuration of the recovery room presents significant challenges that
impact its functionality and the quality of patient care. Currently, the recovery room is
being utilized not only for its intended purpose of monitoring and caring for patients’
post-surgery but also as a storage area for sterile supplies, equipment, and is also utilized
as a workspace for anesthesia personnel. This multiuse of the space leads to
overcrowding and inefficiencies, as essential equipment and supplies are stored in the
same area where patients are recovering. This arrangement may not only pose a threat to
compromise patient privacy and comfort but also increases the risk of contamination and
equipment damage.

Moreover, the recovery room struggles to maintain the recommended temperature and
humidity levels, which are crucial for patient comfort and safety. The inconsistent
environmental conditions necessitate the use of portable humidifiers in the winter and
portable dehumidifiers in the summer. These temporary solutions are not only unreliable
but also take up valuable space, further exacerbating the overcrowding issue. The
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reliance on these devices also adds to the workload of the staff, who must frequently
adjust and monitor them, diverting their attention from patient care.

To address these challenges, it is essential to update the recovery room to create a
dedicated, efficient, and comfortable space for post-operative care. This update should
include the installation of a reliable HVAC system to maintain consistent temperature and
humidity levels, ensuring a safe and comfortable environment for patients. Additionally,
the recovery room should be redesigned to separate storage and workspaces from patient
care areas, enhancing organization and reducing the risk of contamination. By creating a
dedicated recovery room, the hospital can improve patient outcomes, enhance staff
efficiency, and provide a higher standard of care.

4. Increasing Size of Operating Room

Increasing the size of our operating rooms from the existing 400 square feet to the
planned 600 square feet is essential to accommodate larger and more complex procedures
such as orthopedic surgeries, including knee and hip replacements. These larger
procedures require more space to facilitate the movement of surgical teams,
accommodate specialized equipment, and ensure a safe and efficient operating
environment. The additional square footage will provide the necessary room for multiple
surgeons, anesthesia providers, and nurses to work collaboratively without feeling
cramped, thereby enhancing the overall efficiency and safety of the surgical process.
Larger operating rooms also allow for better organization and placement of surgical
instruments and equipment, reducing the risk of contamination and improving the sterility
of the environment. Furthermore, the increased space will enable the use of advanced
imaging and navigation systems that are crucial for precise and successful orthopedic
surgeries. By upgrading to 600 square foot operating rooms, we can improve patient
outcomes, enhance the working conditions for our surgical staff, and position our hospital
as a leader in providing high-quality orthopedic care.

Non-Clinical Improvements - Central Utility Plant

The other major component to the Project is the replacement of aging infrastructure, some of
which dates back to the original construction 50 years ago. The Central Utilities Plant (CUP) at
our 50-year-old critical access hospital needs to undergo a comprehensive modernization to
enhance efficiency and meet the growing demands of the facility. The current infrastructure,
including the 50-year-old boilers that supply steam to the surgery sterilizers, would be replaced
with more efficient equipment. This upgrade is essential to ensure reliable steam production,
which is crucial for the sterilization processes for instrumentation throughout the organization.

In addition to the boiler replacement, the electrical system, which is also 50 years old, would be
updated to support the new surgical modernization efforts. The existing electrical infrastructure
would be upgraded to provide a more robust and reliable power supply, capable of handling the
increased load from the modernized surgical equipment.

ATTACHMENT 31
96

555452594



The modernization project includes the installation of new, high-efficiency boilers. These new
boilers will not only improve the steam supply but also reduce energy consumption and
maintenance costs. The electrical upgrades will include the replacement of old distribution
circuits to ensure a stable and reliable power supply throughout the modernized departments.

This comprehensive modernization of the CUP is a critical step in ensuring that our hospital can
continue to provide high-quality care to our patients. The new systems will enhance operational
efficiency, reduce downtime, and support the advanced medical technologies being implemented
in the surgical departments. The 2023 Master Facility Plan reviewed all the facilities
mechanical, electrical and plumbing system as to their condition. Copied below is the portion of
the Master Plan addressing the condition of the facility infrastructure. Please see Attachment 14
for a detailed description of the planned mechanical improvements.
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Attachment 31

Criterion 1110.270(c)(2)

B. Necessary Expansion — Need for a Procedure Room

The applicable Review Board regulations relative to a Project such as this state that the Project
must me one of the three provisions.

c)

55545259 4

Service Modernization
The applicant shall document that the proposed project meets one of the
following:

1) Deteriorated Equipment or Facilities

The proposed project will result in the replacement of equipment
or_facilities that have deteriorated and need replacement.
Documentation shall consist of, but is not limited to historical
utilization data, downtime or time spent out of service due to
operational failures, upkeep and annual maintenance costs, and
licensure or fire code deficiency citations involving the proposed
project.

2) Necessary Expansion

The proposed project is necessary to provide expansion for
diagnostic treatment, ancillary training or other support services to
meet the requirements of patient service demand. Documentation
shall consist of, but is not limited to historical utilization data,
evidence of changes in industry standards, changes in the scope of
services offered, and licensure or fire code deficiency citations
involving the proposed project.

3) Utilization

A) Major Medical Equipment
Proposed projects for the acquisition of major medical
equipment shall document that the equipment will achieve
or exceed any applicable target utilization levels specified
in Appendix B within 12 months after acquisition.

B) Service or Facility
Projects involving the modernization of a service or facility
shall meet or exceed the utilization standards for the
service, as specified in Appendix B. The number of key
rooms being modernized shall not exceed the number
justified by historical utilization rates for each of the latest
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2 years, unless additional key rooms can be justified per
subsection (c)(2) (Necessary Expansion).

C) If no utilization standards exist, the applicant shall
document in detail its anticipated utilization in terms of
incidence of disease or conditions, or population use rates.

1110.270(¢) (emphasis added)

As discussed above, this application documents that the deteriorated equipment provisions in
subsection (1) above. The Project replaces mechanical equipment servicing the hospital and
replaces two existing operating rooms. The only element of the Project would be considered
“expansion” is the addition of a small non-sterile room for minor procedures. We believe this
Project also satisfied the “Necessary Expansion” element.

The procedure room is not a small alternative to a sterile OR, but rather and alternative means for
providing a different type of care. This room would provide a lower cost, more efficient
alternative to using operating rooms. This would be particular useful for our patients needing
pain management. We have recently seen a great need for pain management services,
particularly as an alternative to patients on opioids. In the past 14 months we have gone from
zero procedures to approximately 70 per month. Often these patients need care every two weeks
and previously had to drive at least 50 miles for that care. With the proposed procedure room
these patients could receive care while in their street clothes and without the need for the process
of accessing a sterile OR. Modernizing two operating rooms and adding a procedure room at
Hillsboro Health, can significantly enhance operational efficiency, patient care, and the hospital's
ability to grow and attract new surgeons. This upgrade allows for increased room turnover by
optimizing the use of space and resources. Surgeons can move seamlessly from one operating
room to another, maximizing their block time and reducing downtime between procedures. The
addition of a dedicated procedure room further supports this efficiency by providing a space for
minor local cases, Gastrointestinal (GI) scopes, and Transesophageal Echocardiogram
(TEE)/Cardioversions. This specialized room ensures that these procedures do not interfere with
major surgeries, thereby maintaining a smooth workflow in the operating rooms.

The need for an additional procedure room in addition to the two operating rooms is crucial to
efficiently manage the increasing demand for specific procedures such as
Esophagogastroduodenoscopy (“EGD”) EGDs, colonoscopies, and pain management. These
procedures are essential for diagnosing and treating various conditions and require dedicated
space to ensure patient safety and procedural efficiency. EGDs and colonoscopies are critical for
detecting gastrointestinal issues, and performing them in-house improves patient access to care,
reduces wait times, and enhances continuity, especially in underserved areas. A separate
procedure room allows for better workflow management, reducing delays and maximizing
resource use, leading to improved patient throughput and satisfaction. It also enables the
simultaneous performance of different types of procedures without interfering with major
surgeries. Economically, this investment can lead to cost savings by reducing off-site referrals
and capturing revenue from these procedures, attracting more patients and healthcare providers,
and enhancing the hospital's reputation and market share. In summary, adding a procedure room
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is essential for meeting the growing demand for these procedures, ensuring patient safety,
improving workflow efficiency, and providing economic benefits. The table below shows the
demand for services best provided in the type of procedure room proposed.
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Attachment 31

Criterion 1110.270(c)(3)(B)
C. Utilization — Service or Facilities

Hillsboro Health believes it meets the deteriorated facilities test and that it also meets the
Necessary Expansion test. The Review Board regulations provide the utilization standards for
key rooms do not apply when the Necessary Expansion provision is met. Because Hillsboro
Health believes it meets that test, it appears the utilization standards test is inapplicable.
Nevertheless, we have analyzed this issue and provide the information below.

First, we believe that the two ORs are necessary. One OR would be insufficient to allow for
more than one concurrent emergency or to provide needed redundancy. More practically,
without a second OR, it would be very challenging to recruit surgeons to use the hospital.
Unlike large hospitals or systems, Hillsboro Health employs no surgeons. Most surgeons do not
live in Hillsboro and schedule days to come to our hospital to perform procedures. They want to
be able to quickly move from one procedure in one OR to another procedure in a second OR,
without waiting while an OR is cleaned and prepared. Requiring a surgeon to be idle while an
OR was being prepared would likely dissuade a physician from coming to the hospital and
consequently would require most patients to travel over 50 miles for surgery.

Like all other Critical Access Hospitals (CAH) in Illinois, Hillsboro Health acknowledges that it
does not presently have the volume to meet the state standard and that it similarly will not do so
following project completion. As part of this CON process, Hillsboro Health reviewed the
utilization of the approximately 50 Critical Access Hospitals in Illinois. As the table and
discussion in Attachment 31 shows, not a single CAH meets this standard. Similarly, not a
single CAH meets the bed utilization standard. In almost all cases, its is not even close. This
review also showed that, with one exception, every CAH had a minimum of two ORs. Also
discussed in Attachment 31, the need for at least two ORs is necessary to provide the critical
access that is the mission of critical access hospitals.

Also attached is a table showing the projected utilization following project completion. These
numbers represent procedures for residents that presently must leave the area for care, and which
could instead be preformed in the new area by physicians choosing to perform procedures in the
hospital.
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Section VII. 1120.120 Availability of Funds

Attachment 34

Audited Financial Statements for years 2022, 2023, and 2024 are attached and show the
availability of funds for the portion of the Project cost to be paid for with cash.
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2= Bank & Trust Joh, Gardnar. Presdent & CEQ
Pana, IL 82557
We Put People First.” ... L L)

April 28, 2025

{llinois Health Facilities and Services Review Board
525 W Jefferson (2™ Floor)
Springfield, IL 62761

RE: Hillsboro Area Hospital, Inc. dba Hillshoro Health Credit Proposal

At il TO Whmn N Mav COﬂC&l‘ﬂZ

e Lt

RN Peoples Bank & Trust (“Lender”) is pleased provide this proposal and indication of
17 e O den credit terms and conditions for the consideration of Hillsboro Area Hospital, inc.
et (“Hillsboro Heatth™ or "Borrower™). We look forward to expanding our relationship with
et Hillsboro Health and assisting in its service to residents of Hillshoro and sumrounding
ohE LY mmunfhes

b Ut N

i The following is a brief description of our proposed terms and conditions for the
. proposed transaction and is intended for discussion only. Lenders commitment
AP ot G ing this and indication of credit teims and conditions is i

Hegsorvs, L0

= subject 0 safisfactory underwriling, due difigence and approval of Lender. The
LA o v following terms and conditions apply:

I'stinty [ %3

e et Project Replacement of west wing of existing hospita! facility with new surgical suite
Fera, LS and mechanical sysiems, including utility plant, generators, HVAC, chillers, boilers,
sk etc., as further describing in Borrower's constniction and architectural plans with an

by e aggregate cost not to exceed $30,000,000.

T Borrower Equity Contribution: Haif of the actual project cost, not to exceed
A $15,000,000.

e et Credit Limit: Half of the actual project cost, not to exceed $15,000,000.

e ATt Credit Structure: Construction — Permanent Structure including straight construction
W M LS ime of credit during the 20 month construction phase and a 240 month permanent
Manp repayment phase.

and; t: 1146 Term: 260 months

Weonlly Transaction Costs and Fees: All transaction costs and lender fees are to be bome
g o oy by the Bormower. Estimated Lender transaction cost is $150,000.

- Rate: Adjusiable monthly to a Rate equal to the Prime Rate defined in the Wall Street
T R Hg Joumal but not less than 5.00% or more than 18.00% and calculated on a 365/360

AL LM basis, indtially 7.50%.

Flore: (BBR) 728-1954 « |ax: (888) 63B-5845
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Repayment Plan: On demand, but if no demand is made, in 20 monthly payments of accrued and
unpaid interest; followed by 239 monthly pnncpal and interest payments of approximately $121,7956
(adjusted from time to time for changes in the variable interest rate), followed by a final payment of all
remaining principal and accrued and unpaid interest at maturity.

Prepayment Penalty. Bommowers agree to pay a prepayment penatty equal to one percent (1.00%) of

the original loan amount if this loan is repaid before the final scheduled payment date in the payment

schedute for any reason. Lender agrees to waive this penalty if Lender in its sole discrelion determines
that the source of the early payments from Bomowers was NOT financing from another financial
institution.

Collateral: Best attainable lien on all personal and real properly of Bormower. In addition, Borrower and

Lender agree:

1. The chattel collateral will be documented with UCC search and possession of relevant collateral
titles acceptable to Lender;

2. The real estate collateral will be documented with environmental, flood, and title insurance
acceptable f¢ Lender;

3. Bomower should provide and maintain evidence of insurance for the collateral naming Lender as
moerigagee for real property and loss payee for insurable personal property insuring against all risks
including fire, theft, and liability at the property's full insurable value.

4. Real and Personal Property collateral will be documented with appraisal(s) acceptable to Lender
indicating a fee simple market value of at least $30,000,000.

Financial Reporting Covenants. The following items will be provided by the Bormower:

1. Complete tax retumns for the previous year end no later than 30 days after applicable filling date

2. In aform acceptable to Lender and as requested from time to {ime by Lender, pericdic and annuat
business planning and other information

3. CPA Audited Financial Statements within 120 days following fiscal year end

4. Managemeni Prepared Financial Statements (balance sheet and income statement) in a form
acceptable to Lender within 30 days after each calendar quarter end

Financial Covenants. Comply with the following covenants and ratios:

1. Working Capital Requirements. Maintain Working Capital in excess of $15,000,000. In addition,
Bomrower shall comply with the following working capital ratio requirements: Current Ratio. Maintain
a Cument Ratio in excess of 2.000 to 1.000. The term "Cument Ratio” means Bomower's total
Current Assets divided by Borrower's total Cumrent Liabilittes. This liquidity ratio should be
maintained at all times and may be evaluated at any time.

2. Minimum Income and Cash flow Requirements. Borrower shall comply with the following cash flow
ratio requirements: Cash Flow / Current Maturity (LTD) Ratio. Maintain a ratio of Cash Flow /
Current Maturity (LTD) in excess of 1.250 to 1.000. The ratio "Cash Flow / Current Maturity (LTD)"
means Borrower's Net Profits plus Depreciation, Depletion and Amortization divided by Bormower's
Current Portion of Long Term Indebtedness. This coverage ratio will be evaluated as of year-end

3. Tangible Net Worth Requirements. Maintain a minimum Tangible Net Worth of not less than:
$50,000,000. In addition, Borrower shall comply with the following wosking capital ratio
requirements: Debt / Worth Ratio. Maintain a ratio of Debt / Worth not in excess of 1.000 to 1.000.
The ratio "Debt / Worth" means Bommower's Total Liabitities divided by Bormrower's Tangible Net
Worth. This leverage ratio should be maintained at all times and may be evaluated at any time.

Frone. (888) 728-1954 « Fax (888) 638-5845
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() Inspecting architect contract (serving as a consultant to Bormower and Lender 1o verify the stage
of consiruction project completion and compliance with plans, specifications, blueprints and |
related building codes) in a form acceptable to Lender

{k) evidence of equity funds deposiied with Lender in construction account totaling. $15,000,000

{I) evidence of debt service reserve funds deposited with Lender (held by Lender to offset potential
future debt service shortfalls) totaling: $400,000. |

Preconstruction meeting between Lender, Borrower, and contraclor is required to confirm loan

terms, draw schedules and plans and specifications.

3. Escrow Conditions. Construction escrow may make disbursements direclly to general contractor

while the project remains on schedule

4. Contract Conditions

(a) Contracctt: require retainage of at least 10% of the first 50% of the {otal amount eamed by the
confractor.

(b) Change orders increasing construction costs must be approved in advance by the Lender and
funded with additional Borrower equity.

{c) Approval is subject to Lender’s approval of contract terms, including proposed draw schedule,
lien waiver requirements and other terms.

(d) Approval is subject to Lender's approval of general contractor, based on financial and historic
construction performance

5. Initial construction draw requires:

(a) initial application for payment including details of all cosis incumred up to the first draw for
materiats purchased and labor supplied,

(b) partial lien waivers to date from contractor, subcontractor's and material supplier's;

(c) physical inspections by Lender and inspecting architect / construction inspector including
photos, analysis of the requirements of the plans and specifications, and the percent complete
of each primary requirement.

(d) titte policy update

(e) spot survey verifying construction is located on the real estate and set back requirements are
met

N

6. Interim construction draws require:
(a) application for payment including detaits of all costs incurred for materials purchased and labor
supplied; Interim
{b} partial lien waivers to date from contractor, subcontractor's and material supplier's; Intenim
{c) physical inspections by Lender and inspecling archilect / construction inspector including
photos, analysis of the requirements of the plans and specifications, and the percent complete
of each primary requirement. Interim
{d) title policy update Intenm
7. Final construction draws require:
(a) final application for payment including details of all costs incumed for matenals purchased and
labor supplied;
{b) final lien waivers from genera! contractor, subcontractors and suppliers; Final
{c) physical inspections by Lender and inspecting architect / construction inspector including
photos, analysis of the requirements of the plans and specifications, and the percent complete
of each primary requirement. Final
{(d) title policy update Final

Phore: (888) 728-1954 ¢ Fax: (B88) 638-5845
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Other Covenants:

Maintain primary deposit accounts of Borrower with Lender

Escrow a Debt Service Reserve with Lender of $400,000.

Limit annual cumulative capital purchases and leases of fixed assets {o the lesser of an amount that
wilt not cause the loan to otherwise be in default

Other conditions ordinarily imposed by Lender and included in Lender's standard Business Loan
Agreement between Bomrower and Lender are conditions of this proposal.

H WN -

Approvals: Loans are specificaily subject to loan approva! of Lender’s Board of Directors

Additional Information and Financial Due Diligence: This proposal is subject to Lender's
independent credit analysis. In order to complete this analysis, Borrower agrees to provide Lender with
due diligence documentation, as reasonably requested:

Expiration: This proposal expires September 1, 2025, if not accepled in writing by Borrower before
that date or extended in writing by Lender before that date.

Please contact me fo answer any questions you may have regarding this proposal and indication of
credit terms. Thank you for considenng Peoples Bank & Trust for your credit needs!

Sincerety,

Q}u%o@m

John Gardner
President & CEO

Phone. (888) 728-1954 » Fax (888) 638-5845
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WIPFLI

Independent Auditor's Report

Board of Directors
Hillsboro Area Hospitat, Inc. d/b/a Hillsboro Health
Hillsboro, Mlinois

Opinion

We have audited the financial statements of Hilisboro Area Hospital, Inc. d/b/a Hillsboro Health {the "Hospital”},
which comprise the balance sheets as of June 30, 2024 and 2023, and the related statements of operations,
changes in net assets, and cash flows for the years then ended, and the related notes to the financial statements.

In our opinion, the accompanying financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all materiat respects,
the financial position of the Hospital as of lune 30, 2024 and 2023, and the results of its operations and its cash
flows for the years then ended in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of
America ["GAAP").

Basis for Opinion

We conducted our audits in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of
America ("GAAS"). Our responsibilities under those standards are further described in the Auditor’s
Responsibilities for the Audit of the financial staterents section of our report. We are required to be
independent of the Hospital and to meet our other ethical responsibilities, in accordance with the relevant ethical
requirements relating to our audits. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and
appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinion.

Responsibilities of Management for the financial statements

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of the financial statements in accordance
with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America, and for the design, implementation,
and maintenance of internal control relevant to the preparation and fair presentation of financial statements that
are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error,

In preparing the financial statements, management is required to evaluate whether there are conditions or
events, considered in the aggregate, that raise substantial doubt about the Hospital's ability to cantinue as a going
concern for one year after the date the financial statements are available to be issued.

ATTACHMENT 34
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Auditer's Responsibilities for the Audit of the financial statements

Cur objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance whether the financial statements as a whole are free from
material misstatement, whether due to fraud or esror, and to issue an auditor’s report that includes our opinion.
Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance but is not absolute assurance and therefore is not a guarantee
that an audit conducted in accordance with GAAS will always detect a material misstatement when it exists. The
risk of not detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, as
fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal control.
Misstatements are considered material if there is a substantial likelihood that, individually or in the aggregate,
they would influence the judgment made by a reasonable user based on the financial statements.

in performing an audit in accordance with GAAS, we:

s Exercise professional judgment and maintain professional skepticism throughout the audit.

e |dentify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or
error, and design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks. Such procedures include
examining, on a test basis, evidence regarding the amounts and disclosures in the financial statements,

¢ Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit procedures that
are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness
of the Hospital's internal control. Accordingly, no such opinion is expressed.

* Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of significant accounting
estimates made by management, as welt as evaluate the overall presentation of the financial statements.

* Conclude whether, in our judgment, there are conditions or events, considered in the aggregate, that raise
substantial doubt about the Hospital’s ability to continue as a going concern for a reasonable period of
time,

We are required to communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the
planned scope and timing of the audit, significant audit findings, and certain internal control-related matters that
we identified during the audit.

W%',a LLP
wipfli LLP

Eau Claire, Wisconsin
December 2, 2024
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Hillsboro Area Hospital, inc.
d/b/a Hillsboro Health

Balance Sheets

June 30, 2024 2023

ASSETS

Current assets:

Cash and cash equivalents $ 3,445,664 $ 459,704
Short-term investments 21,050,433 17,305,727
Patient accounts receivabie - Net 4,750,884 3,234,630
Amounts receivable from State of Illinois health care programs 16,761 16,761
Other receivables 353,511 285,417
tnventories 605,602 950,821
Prepaid expenses and other 631,772 658,411

Total current assets 30,854,627 22,911,471

Assets limited as to use:
Board designated for capital expenditures - Not designated as funded

depreciation 10,470,128 9,245,033
Restricted by donors 478,401 461,185
Total assets limited as to use 10.948,529 9,706,218
Property and equipment - Net 11,526,826 11,036,382

Other assets:
Interest in net assets of Hillsboro Area Health Foundation, inc. 656,645 552,472
Long-term investments 9,015,000 11,785,780
investment in unconsolidated affiliate 93,537 98,361
Total other assets 9,765,182 12,436,613
Total assets $ 63,095,164 $ 56,030,684

3
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Hillsboro Area Hospital, Inc.
d/b/a Hillsboro Health

Balance Sheets (Continued)

June 30, 2024 2023

LIABILITIES AND NET ASSETS

Current liabilities:

Current maturities of long-term debt s 359,316 § 373,729
Accounts payable and accrued expenses 3,149,657 3,004,730
Accrued payroll and payrofl deductions 401,664 305,644
Accrued vacation pay 531,302 535,026
Accrued medical claims payable 400,000 200,000
Amounts payable to third-party reimbursement programs 1,602,907 321,894
Deferred revenue 39,607 176,123

Total current liabilities 6,484,453 4,917,146

Ltong-term liabilities:

Long-term debt - Less current maturities 2,711,542 3,070,997
Asset retirement obligation 81,638 81,638
Total long-term liabilities 2,793,180 3,152,635
Total liabilities 9,277,633 8,069,781
Net assets:
without donor restrictions 52,685,699 47,009,938
With donor restrictions 1,131,832 1,010,965
Total net assets 53,817,531 48,020,903
Total liabilities and net assets $ B3095164 S 56090684

See accompanying notes to financial statements.
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Hillsboro Area Hospital, inc.
d/b/a Hillsboro Health

Statements of Operations

Years Ended june 30, 2024 2023

Revenue:
Net patient service revenue $ 36,523,872 § 31,039,836
Other operating revenue 451,085 542,852
Total revenue 36,974,957 31,582,688
Expenses:
Salaries and wages 12,462,742 11,233,668
Employee benefits 3,512,362 3,361,625
Physician services 3,623,139 3,286,195
Other professional services 5,525,521 5,163,839
supplies and pharmaceuticals 3,523,312 3,186,215
Other 3,263,088 3,196,813
Depreciation 1,368,724 1,245,512
Interest 123,969 136,241
Total expenses 33,402,857 30,810,108
Income from operations 3,572,100 772,580

Other income (loss):

Investment Income 2,587,361 1,380,896
Loss on disposal of property and equipment (2,626} (6.806)
Revenue in excess of expenses 6,156,835 2,146,670

Other changes in net assets without donor restrictions

Contributions for property and equipment additions 18,926 -
Transfers to Hillsboro Area Health System NFP {500,000) (500,000)
Total other changes in net assets without donor restrictions [481,074) (500,000)

Increase in net assets without donor restrictions S 5,675,761 $ 1,646,670

See accompanying notes to financial statements.
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d/b/a Hillsboro Health

Statements of Changes in Net Assets

Hillsboro Area Hospital, Inc.

Years Ended June 30,

2029 2023

Net assets without donor restrictions:

Revenue in excess of expenses s 6,156,835 S 2,146,670
Other changes:
Contributions for property and equipment additions 18,926 -
Transfers to Hillsboro Area Health System NFP {500,000) {500,000)
Increase in net assets without donor restrictions 5,675,761 1,646,670
Net assets with donor restrictions:
Investment income 17,216 8,721
Net assets released from restrictions {522} {1,199)
Change in interest in net assets of Foundation 104,173 (3,332)
Increase in net assets with donar restrictions 120,867 4,190
Increase in net assets 5,796,628 1,650,860
Net assets, beginning of year 48,020,903 46,370,043
Net assets, end of year § 53,817531 § 48,020,903

See accompanying notes to financial statements.

555452594
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Hillsboro Area Hospital, Inc.
d/b/a Hillsboro Health

Statements of Cash Flows

Years Ended june 30, 2024 2023

Increase {decrease} in cash and cash equivalents:

Cash flows from operating activities:
Increase in net assets S 5.796,628 & 1,650,860
Adjustments to reconcile increase in net assets to net cash provided by [used

in} operating activities:

Depreciation 1,368,724 1,245,512
Lass on disposal of property and equipment 2,626 6,306
Accretion of asset retirement obligation - 2,323
Net unrealized gain on investments {755,214) (491,855)
Change in eguity of unconsolidated affiliate 4,824 1,639
Undistributed change in interest in net assets of Foundation {104,173) 3,332
Transfers to Hillsboro Area Health System NFP 500,000 500,000
Changes in operating assets and liabilities:
Patient, State of Illinois, and cther accounts receivable {1,584,348) {969,981}
Inventories, prepaid expenses, and other current assets 371,858 (229,052)
Accounts payable 144,927 (375,287)
Accrued compensation and other 292,29 (288,504)
Deferred revenue {136,516) 47,256
Amounts payable to third-party reimbursement programs 1,281,013 (1,877,552)
Total adjustments 1,386,017 {2,425,363)
Net cash provided by (used in) operating activities 7,182,645 (774,503)
Cash flows from investing activities:
Increase in investments [973,928) (1,302,936)
Increase in assets fimited as to use (487,097) {188,526)
Purchases of property and equipment - Net {1,861,794) (1,242,346)
Net cash used in investing activities {3,322,817) (2,733,808}
Cash flows from financing activities:
Principal payments on long-term debt {373,868} (361,595}
Transfers to Hilisboro Area Health System NFP {500,000} {500,000)
Net cash used in financing activities {873,868} (861,595)
Net increase (decrease) in cash and cash equivalents 2,985,960 (4,369,906}
Cash and cash equivalents, beginning of year 459,704 4,829,610
Cash and cash equivalents, end of year S 3,445,664 S 459,704

Supplemental cash flow information:
Cash paid for interest 5 123,969 § 136,241

See accompanying notes to financial statements.
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Hillsboro Area Hospital, Inc. d/b/a Hillsboro Health

Notes to Financial Statements

Note 1: Summary of Significant Accounting Policies

The Entity

Hillsboro Area Hospital, Inc. d/b/a Hillsbaro Health {the “Hospital”} is a not-for profit llinois corporation
which operates a 25-bed Critical Access Hospital ("CAH"} primarily providing inpatient and outpatient health
care services to patients in Hillsboro, lllinois and surrounding communities, The Hospital also operates an
assisted living facility in Hillsboro, Nlinois which provides services to residents in the same gecgraphic area.
Hillsboro Area Health System NFP, a not-for-profit lllinois corporation, is the sole corporate member of the
Hospital.

Financial Statement Presentation
The Hospital follows accounting standards set by the Financial Accounting Standards Board (FASB) Accounting
Standards Codification (ASC). The ASC is the single source of authoritative accounting principles generally

accepted in the United States {(GAAP} to be applied to nongovernmental entities in the preparation of
financial statements in confarmity with GAAP.

Use of Estimates

The preparation of the accompanying financial statements in conformity with GAAP requires management to
make certain estimates and assumptions that directly affect the reported amounts of assets and liabilities
and disclosure contingent assets and liabilities at the date of the financial statements, Estimates also affect

the reported amounts of revenue and expenses during the reporting period. Actual results may differ from
these estimates,

Cash and Cash Equivalents

The Hospital considers all highly liquid debt instruments with an original maturity of three months or less to
be cash equivalents, excluding amounts included in assets limited as to use.

Investments, Assets Limited as to Use, and Investment Income

Investments, including assets limited as to use, are recorded at fair value in the accompanying balance
sheets,

Assets limited as to use consist of assets designated by the Board of Directors for future capital
improvements, over which the Board of Directors retains control and may at its discretion subsequently be
used for other purposes, and amounts restricted by donors.
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Hillsboro Area Hospital, Inc. d/b/a Hillsboro Health

Notes to Financial Statements

Note 1: Summary of Significant Accounting Policies {Continued)

Investments, Assets Limited as to Use, and Investment Income {Continued)

Investment income or loss (including realized gains and losses on investments, interest, and dividends) is reported
as other income (loss) and is included in revenue in excess of expenses unfess the income is restricted by donor or
law. During 2024, the Hospital evaluated its investment portfolios and determined the investments are
considered to be trading securities and, as such, effective July 1, 2022 through retrospective review and
application, all unrealized gains and losses are included in revenue in excess of expenses. Realized gains or losses
are determined by specific identification.

The Hospital monitors the difference between the cost and fair value of its investments. If investments
experience a decline in value that the Hospital determines is other than temporary, the Hospital records a realized
loss in investment income,

Fair Value Measurements

Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability in an ordinary
transaction between market participants at the measurement date. The Hospital measures fair value of its
financial instruments using a three-tier hierarchy that prioritizes the inputs used in measuring fair value. These
tiers include Level 1, defined as observable inputs such as quoted market prices in active markets; Level 2, defined
as inputs other than quoted market prices in active markets that are either directly or indirectly observable; and
Level 3, defined as unobservable inputs in which little or no market data exists, therefore requiring an entity to
develop its own assumptions. The asset's or liability's fair value measurement level within the fair value hierarchy
is based on the lowest level of any input that is significant to the fair value measurement.

Patient Accounts Receivable and Credit Policy

Patient accounts receivable is reported at the amount that reflects the consideration to which the Hospital
expects to be entitled, in exchange for providing patient care services. Patient accounts receivable are recorded in
the accompanying balance sheets net of contractual adjustments and implicit price concessions which reflects
management's estimate of the transaction price. The Hospital estimates the transaction price based on
negotiated contractual agreements, historical experience, and current market conditions. The initial estimate of
the transaction price is determined by reducing the standard charge by any contractual adjustments, discounts,
and implicit price concessions and is recorded through a reduction of gross revenue and a credit to patient
accounts receivable. Subsequent changes to the estimate of the transaction price are generally recorded as
adjustments to patient service revenue in the period of the change.

The Hospital does not have a policy to charge interest on past due accounts.
Inventories

Inventories consist primarily of medical supplies, general supplies, and pharmaceuticals used in the delivery of
health care services. inventories are stated at the lower of cost or net realizable value.
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Hillsboro Area Hospital, Inc. d/b/a Hillsboro Health

Notes to Financial Statements

Note 1: Summary of Significant Accounting Policies {Continued)
Property, Equipment, and Depreciation

Property and equipment acquisitions are recorded at cost. Depreciation is provided over the estimated
uselul life of each class of depreciable asset and is computed using the straight-line method. Estimated
useful lives range from three to twenty years for major mavable equipment and from five to forty years for
land improvements and buildings.

Gifts of long-lived assets such as land, buildings, or equipment are reported as unrestricted support and are
excluded from revenue in excess of expenses, unless explicit donor stipulations specify how the donated
assets must be used. Gifts of long-lived assets with explicit restrictions that specify how the assets are to be
used and gifts of cash or other assets that must be used to acquire fong-lived assets are reported as restricted
support. Absent explicit donor stipulations about how long those long-fived assets must be maintained,
expirations of donor restrictions are reported when the donated or acquired long-lived assets are placed in
service.

Impairment of Long-Lived Assets

The Hospital evaluates the recoverability of its long-lived assets, which consist primarily of property and
equipment with estimated useful lives, whenever events or changes in circumstance indicate that the carrying
value may not be recoverable. If the recoverability of these assets is unlikely because of the existence of factors
indicating impairment, an impairmnent analysis is performed using a projected undiscounted cash flow method.
Management must make assumptions regarding estimated future cash flows and other factors to determine the
fair value of these respective assets. If the carrying amounts of the assets exceed their respective fair values, the
carrying value of the underlying assets would be adjusted to fair value and an impairment loss would be
recognized. During 2024 and 2023, the Hospital determined that no evaluations of recoverability were necessary.

Interest in Net Assets of Hillsboro Area Health Foundation

Accounting guidance establishes standards of financial accounting and reporting for transactions in which an
entity makes contributions to another entity or an entity that accepts contributions from a donor and agrees to
use those assets on behalf of or transfer those assets and the return on those assets to another entity. Hillsboro
Area Health Foundation, Inc. (the "Foundation") holds and accepts contributions on behalf of the Hospital, and
accordingly the Hospital recognizes its interest in the net assets of the Foundation for specific funds the
Foundation holds which are designated for the benefit of the Hospital, and adjusts that interest for its share of the
change in the net assets of the Hospital's designated funds held by the Foundation.

Investment in Unconsolidated Affiliate

Investments in an unconsolidated affiliate are recorded on the equity method.
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Hillsboro Area Hospital, Inc. d/b/a Hillsboro Health

Notes to Financial Statements

Note 1: Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (Continued)

Asset Retirement Obligation

Management annually assesses its existing properties to determine if there is a need to recognize a liability
for a conditional asset retirement, specifically as it relates to its legal obligation to perform asset retirement
activities, such as asbestos removal, on its existing properties. The asset retirement obligation represents the
obligation to dispose of assets that are legally required to be removed at a future date. This obligation is
recorded at the net present value using a risk-free interest rate and an inflationary rate. The liability will be
adjusted annually over the term of the estimated life of the asset.

Net Assets

Net assets without donor restrictions consist of investments and otherwise unrestricted amounts that are
available for use in carrying out the mission of the Hospital. Net assets with donor restrictions are those
whose use by the Hospital has been limited by donors to a specific time period or purpose, or those assets
restricted by donors to be maintained by the Hospital in perpetuity.

Revenue in Excess of Expenses

The accompanying statements of operations and statements of changes in net assets include the
classification revenue in excess of expenses, which is considered the operating indicator. Changes in net
assets, which are excluded from the operating indicator, would include contributions for property and
equipment, unrealized gains and losses on certain types of investments other than trading securities,
permanent transfers to and from affiliates for other than goeds and services, and contributions of long-lived
assets acquired using contributions which by donor restriction were to be used for the purpose of acquiring
such assets.

Net Patient Service Revenue

Patient service revenue is reported at the amount that reflects the consideration to which the Hospital expects to
be entitled in exchange for providing patient care. These amounts are due from patients, third-party payors
{(including health insurers and government programs}, and others and include variable consideration for
retroactive revenue adjustments due to settlement of audits, reviews, and investigations. Generally, the Hospital
bills the patients and third-party payors several days after the services are performed or the patient is discharged
from the facility. Revenue is recognized as performance obligations are satisfied.

Performance obligations are determined based on the nature of the services provided. Revenue from
performance obligations satisfied over time is recognized based on actual charges incurred in relation to total
expected {or actual) charges. Generally, the majority of patient care services provided in or by the Hospital, the
performance obligation is satisfied as the patient simultaneously receives and consumes the benefits provided as
the services are performed and recognition of the obligation over time yields the same result as recognizing the
obligation at a point in time. The Hospitat believes that this method provides a faithful depiction of the transfer of
services over the term of the performance obligation based on the inputs needed to satisfy the obligation.
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Hillsboro Area Hospital, Inc. d/b/a Hillsboro Health

Notes to Financial Statements

Note 1: Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (Continued)

Net Patient Service Revenue {Continued)

Because the Hospital’s performance obligations relate to contracts with a duration of less than one year, the
Hospital has elected to apply the optional exemption and therefore is not required to disdose the aggregate
amount of the transaction price allocated to performance obligations that are unsatisfied or partially unsatisfied
at the end of the reporting period. The unsatisfied or partially unsatisfied performance obligations referred to
above are primarily related to inpatient acute care services at the end of the reporting period. The performance
obligations for these contracts are generally completed when the patients are discharged, which generally occurs
within days or weeks of the end of the reporting period.

The Hospital uses a portfolio approach to account for categories of patient contracts as a collective group rather
than recognizing revenue on an individual contract basis. The Hospital used the following factors to develop
portfolios: major payor classes and type of service (e.g., inpatient, outpatient, emergency, assisted living, etc.) and
geographical location. Using historical collection trends and other analysis, the Hospital evaluated the accuracy of
its estimates and determined that recognizing revenue by utilizing the portfolio approach approximates the
revenue that would have been recognized if an individual contract approach was tised.

The nature, amount, timing, and uncertainty of revenue and cash flows are affected by several factors that the
Hospital considers in its recognition of revenue. Following are some of the factors considered:

« Payors (for example, Medicare, Medicaid, managed care, other insurances, patients, etc.) have different
reimbursement/payment methodologies

¢ Length of the patient's or resident's service/episode of care
e Geography of the service location
e Lines of business that provided the service (for example, hospital, assisted living, etc.)

The Hospital determines the transaction price, which involves significant estimates and judgment, based on
standard charges for goods and services provided, reduced by contractual adjustments provided to third-party
payars, discounts provided to uninsured patients in accordance with the Hospital's policy, and implicit price
concessions provided to patients. The Hospital determines its estimates of contractual adjustments and discounts
based on contractual agreements, its discount policy, and historical experience. The Hospital determines its
estimate of implicit price concessions based on its historical collection experience for each patient portfolic based
on payor class and service type.
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Hillsboro Area Hospital, Inc. d/b/a Hillsboro Health

Notes to Financial Statements

Note 1: Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (Continued)

Net Patient Service Revenue {Continued)

The Hospital has agreements with third-party payors that provide for reimbursement at amounts that vary from
its established rates. A summary of the basis of reimbursement with major third-party payors follows for hospital
services:

e Medicare: The Hospital is designated as a critical access hospital (CAH). As such, all inpatient, swing bed,
and outpatient hospital services are paid based on a cost-reimbursement methodology, except for certain
types of laboratory, radiclogy, and professional services provided to Medicare beneficiaries, which are
reimbursed on prospectively determined fee schedules.

¢ Medicaid: Hospital services rendered to lllinois Public Aid beneficiaries are paid at prospectively
determined rates based on a patient classification system. These rates are not subject to retroactive
adjustment; however, in order to receive proper reimbursement, the Hospital must file a cost report
annuaily with the State of lliinois.

On Novernber 21, 2006, the Centers for Medicare & Medicaid Services (CMS} approved state of
Hlinois {the “State”) legislation for a Medicaid Hospital Assessment Program (the “Program®}. The
Program was extended through June 30, 2019, and a redesigned program has been approved and
extended through June 30, 2024. Under the Program, the Hospital receives additional Medicaid
reimbursement from the State. Additional funding and reimbursement, through sharing in cost
savings in the Medicaid program, was also available and distributed to participating hospitals through
the development by the State of an Accountable Care Entity ("ACE") which started in 2017. Total
reimbursement revenue recognized by the Hospital relating to the Program amounted to $1,820,116
and 51,961,319 during 2024 and 2023, respectively, and is included in net patient service revenue in
the accompanying statements of operations. During 2024 and 2023, the Hospital incurred expense of
$614,835 and $572,954, respectively, related to amounts paid to the state of Ilinois for participation
in the Program, and these amounits are included in supplies and other expenses in the accompanying
statements of operations.

s Other: Payment agreements with certain commercial insurance carriers, health maintenance
organizations, and preferred provider organizations provide for payment using prospectively determined
rates per discharge, discounts from established charges, prospectively determined daily rates, and fee
schedules.

Laws and regulations concemning government programs, including Medicare and Medicaid, are complex and
subject to varying interpretation. Because of investigations by governmental agencies, various healthcare
organizations have received requests for information and notices regarding alleged noncompliance with those
laws and regulations, which, in some instances, have resulted in organizations entering into significant settlement
agreements. Compliance with such laws and regulations may also be subject to future government review and
interpretation as well as significant regulatory action, including fines, penalties, and potential exclusion from the
related programs. There can be no assurance that regulatory authorities will not challenge the Hospital’s
compliance with these laws and regulations, and it is not possible to determine the impact (if any) such claims or
penalties would have upon the Hospital.
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Hillsboro Area Hospital, Inc. d/b/a Hillsboro Health

Notes to Financial Statements

Note 1: Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (Continued)

Net Patient Service Revenue (Continued)

The Centers for Medicare and Medicaid Services [CMS) uses recovery audit contractors (RACs) to search for
potentially inaccurate Medicare payments that may have been made to healthcare providers and were not
detected through existing CMS program integrity efforts. Once the RAC identifies a claim it believes is inaccurate,
the RAC makes a deduction from or addition to the provider's Medicare reimbursement in an amount estimated
to equal the overpayment or underpayment. The Hospital has not been notified by the RAC of any potential
significant reimbursement adjustments. In addition, contracts the Hospital has with third-party payors also
provide for retroactive audit and review of claims.

Settlements with third-party payars for retroactive adjustments due to audits, reviews, or investigations are
considered variable consideration and are included in the determination of the estimated transaction price for
providing patient care. These settlements are estimated based on the terms of the payment agreement with the
payor, correspondence from the payor, and the Hospital's historical settlement activity, including an assessment
to ensure that it is probable that a significant reversal in the amount of cumulative revenue recognized will not
occur when the uncertainty associated with the retroactive adjustment is subsequently resolved. Estimated
settlements are adjusted in future periods as adjustments become known (that is, new information becomes
available), or as years are settled or are no longer subject to such audits, reviews, and investigations.

Generally, patients who are covered by third-party payors are responsible for related deductibles and
coinsurance, which vary in amount. The Hospital also provides services to uninsured patients and offers those
uninsured patients a discount, either by policy or law, from standard charges. The Hospital estimates the
transaction price for patients with deductibles and coinsurance and from those who are uninsured based on
historical experience and current market conditions. The initial estimate of the transaction price is determined by
reducing the standard charge by any contractual adjustments, discounts, and implicit price concessions.
Subsequent changes to the estimate of the transaction price are generally recorded as adjustments to net patient
service revenue in the period of the change. Subsequent changes that are determined to be the result of an
adverse change in the patient's ability to pay are recorded as bad debt expense. Bad debt expense for the years
ended June 30, 2024 and 2023, was not significant.

Consistent with the Hospital's mission, care is provided to patients regardless of their ability to pay. Therefore,
the Hospital has determined it has provided implicit price concessions to uninsured patients and patients with
other uninsured balances (for example, copays and deductibles). The implicit price concessions included in
estimating the transaction price represent the difference between amounts billed to patients and the amounts the
Hospital expects to collect based on its collection history with those patients. The Hospital's policy provides for
approximately 10% discounts from established charges to uninsured patients for making prompt pay for services
rendered, and after this initial discount, further discounts are available for patients that qualify through the
hospital's charity care or financial assistance policy. The uninsured prompt pay discount percentage remained
consistent in 2024 and 2023.
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Hillsboro Area Hospital, Inc. d/b/a Hillsboro Health

Notes to Financial Statements

Note 1: Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (Continued)
Net Patient Service Revenue (Continued}

For uninsured patients who do not qualify for charity care, the Hospital recognizes revenue on the basis of its
standard rates for services provided (or on the basis of discounted rates, if negotiated or provided by policy). On
the basis of historical experience, a significant portion of the Hospital’s uninsured patients will be unable or
unwilling to pay for the services provided. Thus, the Hospital includes price concessions related to uninsured
patients in the period the services are provided.

The promised amount of consideration from patients and third-party payors has not been adjusted for the effects
of a significant financing component due to the Hospital’s expectation that the period between the time the
service is pravided to a patient and the time that the patient or a third-party payor pays for that service will be
one year or less. However, the Hospital does, in certain instances, enter into payment agreements with patients
that allow payments in excess of one year. For those cases, the financing component is not deemed to be
significant to the contract.

Allincremental customer contract acquisition costs are expensed as they are incurred as the amortization period
of the asset that the Hospital ctherwise would have recognized is one year or less in duration.

Charity Care

The Hospital provides care to patients who meet certain criteria under its charity care/uninsured patient discount
policy without charge or at amounts less than its established rates. Eligible patients are identified based on
analysis of financial information obtained from the patients. The Hospital maintains records to identify the
amount of charges forgone for services and supplies furnished under the charity care/uninsured patient discount
policy. Because the Hospital does not pursue collection of amounts determined to qualify as charity care, they are
not reported as net patient service revenue in the accompanying statements of operations.

Contributions and Donor-Restricted Gifts
Contributions are considered available for unrestricted use unless specifically restricted by the donor.

Unconditional promises to give cash and other assets to the Hospital are reported at fair value at the date the
promise is received. Conditional promises to give and indications of intentions to give are reported at fair
value at the date the gift is received. The gifts are reported as donor-restricted contributions if they are
received with donor stipulations that limit the use of the donated assets. When a donor restriction expires,
that is, when a stipulated time restriction ends or purpose restriction is accomplished, net assets with donor
restrictions are reclassified as net assets without donor restrictions and reported as net assets released from
restrictions.

Donor-restricted contributions whose restrictions are met within the same year as received are reported as
contributions without donor restrictions.
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Hillsboro Area Hospital, Inc. d/b/a Hillsboro Health

Notes to Financial Statements

Note 1: Summary of Significant Accounting Policies {Continued)

Income Taxes

The Hospital is a not-for-profit corporation as described in Section 501{c){3) of the Internal Revenue Code
{the "Code") and is exempt from federal income taxes on related income pursuant to Section 501{a) of the
Code. The Hospital is also exempt from state income taxes on related income under similar state laws.

Advertising Costs

Advertising costs are expensed as incurred.

Real Estate Taxes

The State of Illinois previously enacted legislation that clarifies when hospitals are eligible to receive
exemption from property tax requirements. As part of the legislation, hospitals, including the Hospital, must
submit to the State of Illinois annual property tax exemption applications, which include information on the
amount of benefits provided to low-income, charity care, and lllinois Public Ald (Medicaid) beneficiaries. As
of June 30, 2024, the majority of the real estate of the Hospital has been granted property tax exemption by

the State of lllinois.
Subsequent Events

Subsequent events have been evaluated through December 2, 2024, which is the date the financial
statements were available to be issued.
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Hillsboro Area Hospital, Inc. d/b/a Hillsboro Health

Notes to Financial Statements

Note 2: Available Resources and Liquidity

The Hospital does not have a formal liquidity policy but generally strives to maintain financial assets in liguid form
such as cash and cash equivalents for at least three to six months of operating expenses. Other funds, included in
long-term investments and assets limited as to use in the accompanying bafance sheets, are considered available
for operational or capital needs, except for investments with restrictive redemption requirements. Occasionally,
the Board of Directors designates a portion of operating surplus to be appropriated at its discretion for future
operational initiatives and capital expenditures. These funds, at the discretion of the Board of Directors, could be
released immediately or sold and redeemed prior to their maturity and are not considered available under the
Hospital's general liquidity management. At June 30, 2024 and 2023, the balance of these funds was $10,470,128
and $9,245,033, respectively.

Financial assets available for general expenditure, such as operating expenses, and purchases of property and
equipment, within one year of the balance sheet date, comprise the following at June 30:

2024 2023
Cash and cash equivalents $ 3445664 S 459,704
Short-term investments 21,050,433 17,305,727
Patient accounts receivable - Net 4,750,884 3,234,630
Amounts receivable from State of lllinois health care programs 16,761 16,761
Other receivables 353,511 285,417
Totals $ 29,617,253 $ 21,302,239

Patient accounts receivable - net becomes available as an available resource to the Hospital generally as operating
cash as it is billed and collected based on the policies and procedures described in Note 1, and its opening balance
at July 1, 2022 was $2,451,177.

Note 3: Investments and Assets Limited as to Use
Investments

Investments consisted of the following at June 30:

2024 2023

Shart-term investments - Certificates of deposit $ 10,018,780 $ 6,359,998
Short-term investments - U.S. Treasury securities 10,632,764 10,945,729
Short-term investments - Mututal funds 398,889 -
Long-term investrents - Certificates of deposit 9,015,000 11,785,780
Total investments $ 30,065,433 § 29,091,507
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Hillsboro Area Hospital, Inc. d/b/a Hillsboro Health

Notes to Financial Statements

Note 3: Investments and Assets Limited as to Use (Continued)

Assets Limited as to Use

Assets limited as to use consisted of the following at June 30:

2024 2023
Board designated for capital expenditures - Not designated as funded
depreciation;
Money market funds [ 120,480 $ 152,222
Certificates of deposit 5,209,383 4,997,383
Common stock 35 35
Mutual funds 5,099,121 4,071,782
Accrued interest receivable 41,109 23,611
Total board designated for capital expenditures - Not designated as
funded depreciation 10,470,128 9,245,033
Rastricted by donors:
Money market funds 25,804 12,567
Certificates of deposit 445,614 445,614
Accrued interest receivable 6,983 3,004
Total restricted by donors 478,401 461,185
Total assets limited as to use S 10,948,529 § 9,706,218

Investment Income

Investment income, including realized and unrealized gains and losses on investments and assets limited as to use,
consisted of the following for the years ended june 30:

2024 2023
Interest and dividends S 1,832,147 § 889,041
Interest on restricted net assets with donor restrictions 17,216 8,721
Change in net unrealized gain on investments 755,214 491,855
Total investment income S 2,604,577 S 1,389,617
18
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Hillsboro Area Hospital, Inc. d/b/a Hillsboro Heaith

Notes to Financial Statements

Note 3: Investments and Assets Limited as to Use (Continued)

Management assesses individual investment securities as to whether declines in market value are other than
temporary and result in impairment. For equity securities and mutual funds, the Hospital considers whether it has
the ability and intent to hold the investment until a market price recovery. Evidence considered in this includes
the reasons for the impairment, the severity and duration of the impairment, changes in value subsequent to
year-end, the issuer’s financial condition, and the general market condition in the geographic area or industry in
which the investee operates. For debt securities, if the Hospital has made a decision to sell the security, orif it is
more likely than not the Hospital will sell the security before the recovery of the security’s cost basis, an other-
than-temporary impairment is considered to have occurred. if the Hospital has not made a decision or does not
have an intent to sell the debt security, but the debt security is not expected to recover its value due to a credit
loss, an other-than-temporary impairment is considered to have oocurred. At June 30, 2024 and 2023, the
Hospital did not consider any individual investments other than temporarily impaired.

Investments, in general, are exposed to various risks, such as interest rate, credit, and overall market volatility.
Due to the level of risk assaciated with certain investments, it is reasonably possible that changes in the values of
certain investments will occur in the near term and that such changes could materially affect the amounts
reported in the accompanying financial statements.

Note 4: Fair Value Measurements
The following is a description of the valuation methodologies used for assets measured at fair value:

Money market funds are valued using a net asset value {NAV) of $1.00. Fixed income securities are primarily
invested in U.S. Government securities such as bonds and are valued using quotes from pricing vendors for
identical or similar assets based on recent trading activity and other observable market data. Quoted market
prices are used to determine the fair value of investments in marketable equity securities, which are primarily
invested in common stock. Mutual funds are valued at the daily closing price as reported by the fund. Mutual
funds held by the Hospital are open-end mutual funds that are registered with the Securities and Exchange
Commission. The mutual funds are required to publish their daily NAV and to transact at that price. The mutual
funds held by the Hospital are deemed to be actively traded.

The methods described above may produce a fair value calculation that may not be indicative of net
realizable value or reflective of future fair values, Furthermore, while the Hospital believes its valuation
methods are appropriate and consistent with other market participants, the use of different methodologies
or assumptions to determine the fair value of certain financial instruments could result in a different fair
value measurement at the reporting date.
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Hillsboro Area Hospital, Inc. d/b/a Hillsboro Health

Notes to Financial Statements

Note 4: Fair Value Measurements (Continued)

The following tables set forth by level, within the fair value hierarchy, the Hospital's assets measured at fair
value on a recurring basis as of June 30:

2024
Total Assets at
tevel 1 Level 2 Level 3 Fair Value
Money market funds S -5 146,284 S -8 146,284
Mutual funds - Equity and fixed income 5,498,010 - - 5,498,010
Marketable equity securities - Common stock i5 - - 35
U.S. Treasury securities - 10,632,764 - 10,632,764
Total $ 5,498,045 $ 10,779,048 & - $ 16,277,093
2023
Total Assets at
level 1 Level 2 level 3 Fair Value
Money market funds S -5 164,789 § -5 164,789
Mutual funds - Equity and fixed income 4,071,782 - - 4,071,782
Marketable equity securities - Common stock 35 - - 35
U.5. Treasury securities 10,945,729 & 10,945,729
Total $ 4,071,817 § 11,110,518 § - $ 15,182,335

The assets included in the fair value measurements table above at both June 30, 2024 and 2023, include all assets
within investments and assets limited as to use as described in Note 3, with the exception of certificates of deposit
and accrued interest receivable, which are excluded from the fair value measurement table.
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Hillsboro Area Hospital, inc. d/b/a Hillsboro Health

Notes to Financial Statements

Note 5: Property and Equipment

Property and equipment consisted of the following at June 30:

2024 2023
Land S 330,860 S 330,860
Land improvements 1,848,191 1,828,208
Buildings 18,354,968 18,070,843
Movable equipment 18,843,678 17,316,767
Construction in progress 77,090 139,299
Total property and equipment 39,454,787 37,685,977
Less - Accumulated depreciation 27,927,961 26,649,595
Progeg and equipment - Net $ 11,526,826 $ 11,036,382

Note 6: Interest in Net Assets of Hillsboro Area Health Foundation

Hillsboro Area Health Foundation, Inc. (the "Foundation™) was established to benefit the general public and the
Hospital. The Foundation's Board of Directors determines the amount, timing, and purpose of the distribution of
Foundation funds. The Hosgital recognizes its interest in the net assets held by the Foundation. At June 30, 2024
and 2023, $656,645 and $552,472, respectively, is recognized as the Hospital's interest in the total net assets of
the Foundation, which includes contributions received by the Foundation that are donor restricted to be used for
Hospital purposes.

The Foundation also holds certain funds under terms of an endowment agreement for the benefit of the Hospital
which is included in the amounts above and further described in Note 9.
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Hillsboro Area Hospital, Inc. d/b/a Hillsboro Health

Notes to Financial Statements

Note 7: Investment in Unconsolidated Affiliate

Investment in South Central Hospital Alliance LLC

During 2022, the Hospital became a founding member of the South Central Hospital Alliance LLC {the
*Alliance”) and contributed an initial equity investment of $100,000. As of June 30, 2024, the Alliance has
three other member hospitals. All of the member hospitals are non-profit hospitals located in the South
Centrat region of Hlinois.

The goal of the Alliance is to facilitate the development of a cooperative rural health care network which will
be operated exclusively for the benefit of, to perform functions of, and carry out the respective charitable
missions of the member hospitals. A comman working goal of the members through the Alliance will be to
develop, establish, and operate both dinic and non-clinical shared services and programs as well as other
collaborative functions which are aimed at expanding access to high-quality patient care, improving the
overall quality of patient care, and utilizing economies of scale to increase the efficiencies and lower the costs
of healthcare delivery in the communities served by the member hospitals.

The Hospital accounts for the investment in the Alliance under the equity method of accounting. Earnings or
losses of the Alliance are allocated to the members based on the terms of the operating agreement, and the

Hospital adjusts its investment in the Alliance based on its respective allocated profits and losses. There has been
limited financial activity of the Alliance in both 2024 and 2023.
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Hillsboro Area Hospital, Inc. d/b/a Hillsboro Health

Notes to Financial Statements

Note 8: Long-Term Debt

Long-term debt consisted of the following at June 30:

2024 2023
City of Hillsboro, Iinois, capital Improvermnent Revenue Bonds, Series 2008,
bearing interest at 3.79%. The bonds are payable in monthly installments of
$41,486, including principal and interest. Final principal payment due
October 1, 2031, Secured by the new building construction, which was
completed during the year ended June 30, 2011, and net revenues of the
Hospital. $ 3,070,858 5 3,444,726
Less - Current maturities 359,316 373,729
Long-term maturities $ 2,711,542 § 3,070,997

The Series 2008 bond agreement provides for various restrictive covenants, including required annual financial
reporting.

Scheduled payments of principal on long-term debt at June 30, 2024, including current maturities, are
summarized as follows:

2025 S 359,316
2026 403,111
2027 418,657
2028 434,803
2029 451,571
Thereafter 1,003,400
Total $ 3,070,858
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Hillsboro Area Hospital, Inc. d/b/a Hillsboro Health

Notes to Financial Statements

Note 9: Net Assets with Donor Restrictions and Endowments

Net assets with donor restrictions include assets set aside in accordance with donor restrictions as to time or use.
Net assets with donor restrictions are available for the following purposes at June 30:

2024 2023
Hospital programs including those supporting the treatment of childhood
obesity $ 465,187 § 448,493
Scholarships and education 10,000 10,000
Funds held by Foundation 371,645 267,472
Total $ 846,832 725,965

In addition to the above donor-restricted funds, the Hospital has an endowment of $285,000 as of both
June 30, 2024 and 2023, which has been restricted by donors to be maintained in perpetuity, the income of which
is expendable to support maintenance and equipment needs of the Hospital.

The Hospital's endowment consists of one fund that is invested and maintained by the Foundation in U.S. Treasury
securities at financial institutions. The endowment includes only donor-restricted endowment funds. Net assats
associated with the endowment funds are classified and reported on the existence or absence of donor-imposed
restrictions.

The Board of Directors of the Hospital have interpreted the Uniform Prudent Management of Institutional Funds
Act {UPMIFA), as adopted by the Illinois state legislature, as requiring the preservation of the fair value of the
ariginal gift to an endowment fund absent any explicit donor stipulations that would otherwise dictate the
contributed funds. As a result of this interpretation, the Hospital classifies as permanently restricted net assets
{a} the original value of the donor’s gifts to the parmanent endowment, (b) the original value of a donor's
subsequent gifts to the permanently restricted endowment, and {c} accumulations to the permanent endowment
made in accordance with the direction of the applicable donor gift instrument at the time the accumulation is
added to the fund. The remaining portion of the donor-restricted endowment fund that is not classified in
permanently restricted net assets is classified as temporarily restricted net assets until those amounts are
appropriated for expenditure by the Hospital in a manner consistent with the standard of prudence prescribed by
UPMIFA. The Hospital relies on the adopted investment and spending policies of the Foundation for endowment
assets that attempt to provide a dependable method of funding programs supported by the endowment funds
while seeking to preserve the purchasing power of the endowment assets. Under this policy, the Foundation
invests the endowment assets it maintains for the Hospital only in interest-bearing bank depository accounts that
are not expected to decline in value in the future. This method of investing will maintain the purchasing power of
the endowment assets that are required to be held in perpetuity as well as to provide additional purchasing ability
through new contributions and investment returns.
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Hillsboro Area Hospital, Inc. d/b/a Hillsboro Health

Notes to Financial Statements

Note 12: Net Assets with Donor Restrictions and Endowments [Continued)

Changes in endowment net assets for the years ended June 30 consisted of the following:

Portion Avaifable
Original Gifts With For Appropriation Total
Restrictions to be With Donor Endowment

Held in Perpetuity Restrictions Net Assets
Beginning balance at July 1, 2022 S 285,000 S 148,479 $ 433,479
Interest income - 2,430 2,430
Ending balance as of June 30, 2023 285,000 150,909 435,909
Interest income - 6,113 6,113
Ending balance as of June 30, 2024 $ 285,000 $ 157,022 $ 442,022

Note 10: Net Patient Service Revenue

The compaosition of net patient service revenue based on the geographic region the Hospital aperatesin as
outlined in Note 1, its lines of business, and timing of revenue recognition for the years ended June 30 are as

follows:
2024 2023
Service lines:
Hospital services $ 34,720,320 $ 29,803,820
Assisted living services 1,803,552 1,236,016
=Totals $ 36,523,872 $ 31,039,836

The majority of all patient service revenue was recognized at the time of service by the Hospital during the years
ended June 30, 2024 and 2023 due to the types of hospital and assisted living services provided and their
respective contractual terms.
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Hillsboro Area Hospital, Inc. d/b/a Hillsboro Health

Notes to Financial Statements

Note 10: Net Patient Service Revenue [Continued)

Patient service revenue {net of contractual allowances, discounts, and implicit price concessions) by payor
consisted of the following for the year ended June 30:

2024 2023
Medicare and Medicare Advantage plans $ 13,495,925 $ 12,580,333
Medicaid and Medicaid HMO plans 7,572,902 6,786,252
Other third-party payors 13,888,890 10,756,248
Uninsured patients 1,566,155 917,003
Totals $ 36,523,872 § 31,039,836

Note 11: Charity Care and Community Benefits

The Hospital provides health care services and other financial support through various programs that are
designed, among other matters, to enhance the health of the community, including the health of low-income
patients. Consistent with the missicn of the Hospital, care is provided to patients regardless of their ability to pay,
including providing services to those persons who cannot afford health insurance because of inadequate

resources or who are underinsured.

Patients who meet certain criteria for charity care, generally based on federal poverty guidelines, are provided
care without charge or at a reduced rate, determined based on qualifying criteria as defined in the Hospital’s
charity care/uninsured patient discount policy and from applications completed by patients and their families.
The Hospital is also required to provide additional discounts to uninsured hospital patients under the Hospital
Uninsured Patient Discount Act as required by Illinois state law.

The estimated cost of providing care to patients under the Hospital's charity carefuninsured patient discount
pelicy was approximately $203,000 and $128,000 in 2024 and 2023, respectively. The cost was calcufated by
multiplying the ratio of cost to gross charges for the Hospital times the gross uncompensated charges associated

with providing the charity care.

During each year the Hospital accumulates the amount of shortfalls from payments from providing the services
previously described under its charity carefuninsured patient discount policy, as well as health care services to
patients who are covered under government health insurance programs including the Medicaid program and
patients unable or unwilling to pay a portion or all of their charges to the Hospital which are considered bad debts
to the Hospital. These shortfalls are measured in a method consistent with the determination of the charity care
shortfalls above, less any reimbursement received from patients and others. During 2024 and 2023, the total
costs of providing these services was approximately $1,802,000 and $1,636,000, respectively, and is considered a
significant benefit to the community and surrounding area the Hospital serves.
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Hillsboro Area Hospital, Inc. d/b/a Hillsboro Health

Notes to Financial Statements

Note 11: Charity Care and Community Benefits (Continued)

As a part of its mission to provide health care services to those in need in the community, as well as to support the
general well-being of the community, the Hospital also commits significant time and resources to activities and
services that meet unmet community needs. Many of these actvities are sponsored with the knowledge that they
will not be self-supporting or financially viable. Such programs indude, but are not limited to, health fairs and
events, health screenings and assessments, space for health care occupation classes and daycare programs
offered by the local school system and Lincoln Land Community College, support for vital community services,
trauma care, and various community educational services, The Hospital also participates with Southern lllinois
University (51U} School of Medicine on community research projects, providing funding, information, staffing, and
supplies.

Note 12: Retirement Plan

The Hospital sponsors a defined contribution tax-deferred annuity plan, which covers all employees.
Employees may contribute a percentage of their compensation to the annuity plan on a tax-deferred or after-
tax basis. The Hospital may contribute discretionary amounts up to 50% of employees' tax-deferred
contribution, up to 6% of compensation. Total retirement plan expense was $304,784 and $278,935 for the
years ended June 30, 2024, and 2023, respectively.

Note 13: Self-Funded Health Insurance

The Hospital has a self-funded health care plan to provide medical benefits to employees and their dependents.
Employees share in the cost of health benefits. Health care expense is based upon actual claims paid, reinsurance
premiums, administration fees, and unpaid claims at year-end. The Hospital buys reinsurance to cover
catastrophic individual claims over specific individual and aggregate amounts.

Health care expense totaled $1,998,825 and $1,927,976 in 2024 and 2023, respectively. A liability of $400,000
and $200,000 for claims outstanding for each of the years ended June 30, 2024 and 2023, respectively, has been
recorded in accrued liabilities in the accompanying balance sheets. Management believes this liability is sufficient
to cover estimated claims, including claims incurred but not yet reported, as of June 30, 2024 and 2023.
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Hillsboro Area Hospital, Inc. d/b/a Hillsboro Health

Notes to Financial Statements

Note 14: Malpractice Insurance

The Hospital purchases medical malpractice insurance under a claims-made policy. Under such a policy, only
claims made and reported to the insurer are covered during the policy term, regardless of when the incident
giving rise to the claim occurred. The Hospital would be able to purchase tail coverage from its insurance carrier if
it chose to do so. The Hospital has primary commercial insurance coverage for individual daims up to $1,000,000
and $3,000,000 in the aggregate during the policy period. In addition, the Hospital carries a daims-made hospital
professional liability supplement of $4,000,000 for each daim and in the aggregate. The professional liability
insurance policy is renewable annually and has been renewed by the insurance carrier for the annual period
extending to November 19, 2024.

Under a daims-made policy, the risk for claims and incidents not asserted within the policy period remains with
the Hospital. Although there exists the possibility of claims arising from services provided to patients through
June 30, 2024, which have not yet been asserted even if covered by insurance policies, the Hospital has not been
given notice of any such material possible claims, and accordingly no provision or related insurance recoveries
have been made for them,

Note 15: Functional Classification of Expenses

The accompanying statements of operations present certain expenses that are attributed to more than one
program or supporting function. Therefore, expenses require allocation on a reasonable basis. Employee benefits
are allocated based on factors of either salary expense or actual employee expense. Overhead costs that include
things such as professional services, office expenses, information technology, insurance, and other similar
expenses are allocated on a variety of factors including revenues and departmental expense.

The expenses reported in the statements of operations for the years ended June 30 supported the following
programs and functions:

2024 2023
Healthcare Genera! Healthcare General
Services Administrative Total Services  Administrative Jotal
Salaries and wages $ 10,469,618 S 1,993,124 S 12,462,742 $9,254,479 § 1,979,189 $11,233,668
Employee benefits 2,924,934 587,428 3,512,362 2,712,195 649,430 3,361,625
Physician services 3,623,139 . 3,623,139 3,286,195 - 3,286,195
Other professional services 3,420,530 2,104,991 5,525,521 3,475,804 1688035 5,163,839
Supplies and pharmaceuticals 2,181,079 1,342,233 3,523,312 2,144,656 1,041,559 3,186,215
Other 2,019,989 1,243,099 3,263,088 2,151,789 1,045,024 3,196,813
Depreciation 1,014,874 353,850 1,368,724 923,515 321,997 1,245,512
Interest 123,969 = 123,969 136,241 & 136,241

$ 25,778,132 § 7,624,725 § 33,402,857 $24,084.874 5 6,725,234 $30.,810,108
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Hillsboro Area Hospital, Inc. d/b/a Hillsboro Health

Notes to Financial Statements

Note 16: Concentration of Cradit Risk

Financial instruments that potentially subject the Hospital to credit risk consist principally of patient accounts
receivable and cash deposits in excess of insured limits.

Patient accounts receivable cansist of amounts due from patients, their insurers, or governmental agencies
{primarily Medicare and Medicaid) for health care provided to patients. The majority of the Hospital's
patients are from Hillsboro, Illincis, and the surrounding area.

The mix of receivables from patients and third-party payors is as follows at June 30:

2024 2023
Medicare 36% 39%
Medicaid 23% 19 %
Caommercial insurance 21% 24 %
Self-pay 20 % 18 %
Totals 100 % 100 %
= - m —ere—e..____._--—-—--3

The Hospital maintains depository relationships with area financial institutions that are Federal Deposit
Insurance Corporation {FDIC) insured institutions. Depository accounts are insured by the FDIC up to
$250,000. Operating cash needs often require that amounts on hand exceed FDIC limits. Management has
entered into pledging agreements or obtained additional depository agreements with financial institutions to
provide collateral on amounts in excess of the FDIC-insured limits.

Note 17: Related-Party Transactions

Hillsboro Area Health System NFP ("System”) is the sole corporate member of the Hospital, Foundation, and
Hillsboro Area Health Services, Inc. {"Health Services").

The Hospital leases land, on which the Health Services operates a wellness center, to Health Services for a nominal
amount. The lease term is for 99 years and expires in August 2103, Health Services provides a workplace wellness
program for the benefit of Hospital staff and families. The Hospital paid $125,000 and $125,000 in connection
with this program to Health Services for the years ended June 30, 2024 and 2023, respectively.

The Hospital also leases physical therapy and other clinical space from Health Services on an annual contract basis.
Rental expense paid to Health Services was $38,528 and $40,663 for the years ended June 30, 2024 and 2023,
respectively.

The Hospital transferred $500,000 and $500,000 te the System in the years ended June 30, 2024 and 2023,
respectively. The Hospital also leases and to the System for a specialty clinic facility and classrooms for a nominal
amount. The lease term is for 99 years and expires in May 2112, Finally, the Hospital leases space for certain
administrative and finance services from the System on an annual basis. Total leased space from the system was
$10,282 and $10,306 for the years ended june 30, 2024 and 2023, respectively.
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Hillsboro Area Hospital, Inc. d/b/a Hillsboro Health

Notes to Financial Statements

Note 18: Reclassifications

Certain reclassifications have been made to the 2023 financial statements to conform to the 2024
classifications.
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WIPFLI

Independent Auditor's Report

Board of Directors
Hillsbaro Area Hospital, Inc.
Hillsboro, illinois

Opinion

We have audited the financial statements of Hillsboro Area Hospital, Inc. (the "Hospital”}, which comprise the
balance sheets as of June 30, 2023 and 2022, and the related statements of operations, changes in net assets, and
cash flows for the years then ended, and the related notes to the financial statements.

In our opinion, the accompanying financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material respects,
the financial position of the Hospital as of june 30, 2023 and 2022, and the results of its operations and its cash
flows for the years then ended in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of
America ("GAAP").

Basis for Opinion

We conducted our audits in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of
America ("GAAS"). Our responsibilities under those standards are further described in the Auditor’s
Responsibilities for the Audit of the financial statements section of our report. We are required to be
independent of the Hospital and to meet our other ethical responsibilities, in accordance with the relevant ethical
requirements relating to our audits. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and
appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinion,

Responsibilities of Management for the financial statements

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of the financial statements in accordance
with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America, and for the design, implementation,
and maintenance of internal control relevant to the preparation and fair presentation of finandial statements that
are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the financial statements, management is required to evaluate whether there are conditions or

events, considered in the aggregate, that raise substantial doubt about the Hospital's ability to continue as a going
concern for one year after the date the financial statements are available to be issued.
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Auditor's Responsibilities for the Audit of the financial statements

Qur objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance whether the financial statements as a whole are free from
material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor's report that includes our opinion.
Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance but is not absolute assurance and therefore is not a guarantee
that an audit conducted in accordance with GAAS will always detect a material misstatement when it exists. The
risk of not detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, as
fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal control.
Misstatements are considered material if there is a substantial likelihood that, individually or in the aggregate,
they would influence the judgment made by a reasonable user based on the financial statements

In performing an audit in accordance with GAAS, we:

* Exercise professional judgment and maintain professional skepticism throughout the audit.

» Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or
error, and design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks. Such procedures include
examining, on a test basis, evidence regarding the amounts and disclosures in the financial statements.

e  Obtain an understanding of intemnal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit procedures that
are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness
of the Hospital's intemal control. Accordingly, no such opinion is expressed.

¢ Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of significant accounting
estimates made by management, as well as evaluate the overall presentation of the financial statements.

¢ Conclude whether, in our judgment, there are conditions or events, considered in the aggregate, that raise
substantial doubt about the Hospital's ability to continue as a going concern for a reasonable period of
time.

We are required to communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the
planned scope and timing of the audit, significant audit findings, and certain internal control-related matters that
we identified during the audit.

Wiggte LLP

wipfli LLP
Eau Claire, Wisconsin
QOctober 2, 2023
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Hillsboro Area Hospital, Inc.

Balance Sheets

June 30, 2023 2022

ASSETS

Current assets:
Cash and cash equivalents S 459,704 S 4829610
Short-term investments 17,305,725 22,132,455
Patient accounts receivable - Net 3,234,630 2,451,177
Amounts receivable from State of Illinois health care programs 16,761 16,761
Other receivables 285,417 98,889
Inventories 950,821 808,452
fr_e_paid expenses _a_r_x_:l_ other _ : 658,411 _ 471,698

Total current assets 22,911,469 30,909,072

Assets limited as to use:
Board designated for capital expenditures - Not designated as funded

depreciation 9,245,033 8,569,953
Restricted by donors 461,185 455,884
Total assets limited as to use 9,706,218 9,025,837
Property and equipment - Net 11,036,382 11,046,354

Other assets
Interest in net assets of Hillsboro Area Health Foundation, Inc. 552,472 555,804
Long-term investments 11,785,780 5,656,114
Investment in unconsolidated affiliate 98,361 160,000
Total other assets 12,436,613 6,311,918
Total assets $ 56090682 S 57,293,181
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Hillsboro Area Hospital, Inc.
Statements of Operations

Years Ended June 30, 2023 2022
Revenue:;
Net patient service revenue $§ 31,039,836 5 30,347,462
Other operating revenue 542 852 1,524,313
Tetal revenue 31,582,688 31,871,775
Expenses:
Salaries and wages 11,233,668 10,730,413
Employee benefits 3,361,625 3,175,708
Physician services 3,286,195 2,986,021
Other professional services 5,163,839 4,237,744
Supplies and pharmaceuticals 3,186,215 3,052,244
Other 3,196,813 2,897,064
Deprediation 1,245,512 1,186,744
Interest 136,241 151,412
Total expenses 30,810,108 28,417,350
Income from operations 772,580 3,454,425
Other income
Investment Income 889,041 423,757
Loss on disposal of property and equipment (6,806) -
Revenue in excess of expenses 1,654,815 3,878,182

Other changes in net assets without donor restrictions
Change in net unrealized gain {loss) on investments ather than trading

securities 491,855 {953,125)
Transfers to Hillsboro Area Heatth System NFP {500,000) {500,000)
Total other changes in net assets without donor restrictions (8,145) [1,453,125)
Increase in net assets without donor restrictions S 1646670 S 2,425,057

See accompanying notes to financial statements.
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Hillsboro Area Hospital, Inc.

Statements of Changes in Net Assets

Years Ended June 30, 2023 2022

Net assets without donor restrictions:

Revenue in excess of expenses S 1,654,815 5 3,878,182
COther changes
Change in net unrealized gain (loss) on investments other than
trading securities 491,855 (953,125)
Transfers to Hillsboro Area Health System NFP {500,000) (500,000}
Increase in net assets without donor restrictions 1,646,670 2,425,057

Net assets with donor restrictions:

Investment income 8,721 1,888
Net assets released from restrictions {1,199} {582)
Change in interest in net assets of Foundation (3,332) 9,171
Increase in net assets with donor restrictions 4,190 10,477
Increase in net assets 1,650,860 2,435,534
Net assets, beginning of year 46,370,043 43,934,509
Net assets, end of year S 48,020,903 S 46,370,043

See accompanying notes to financial statements.
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Hillsboro Area Hospital, Inc.

Statements of Cash Flows

Yeors Ended June 30, 2023 2022
Increase (decrease) in cash and cash equivalents:
Cash flows from operating activities
Increase in net assets 1650860 5  2,435534
Adjustments to reconcile increase in net assets to net cash provided by {used
in) operating activities:
Depreciation 1,245,512 1,186,744
Loss on disposal of property and equipment 6,806 =
Accretion of asset retirement obligation 2,323 2,254
Net unrealized gain {loss) on investments other than trading securities {491,855) 953,125
Change in equity of unconsolidated affiliate 1,639 -
Undistributed change in interest in net assets of Foundation 3,332 {9,171)
Transfers to Hillsboro Area Health System NFP 500,000 500,000
Changes in operating assets and liabilities:
Patient, State of lllinois, and other accounts receivable {969,981} 373,161
Inventories, prepaid expenses, and other current assets {229,052) {44,324)
Accounts payable {375,287) 1,474,751
Accrued compensation and other {288,504) 31,457
Deferred revenue 47,256 104,260
Amounts payable to third-party reimbursement programs {1,877,552) (2,173,948)
Total adjustments {2,425,363) 2,398,309
Net cash provided by (used in) operating activities {774,503) 4,833,843
Cash flows from investing activities:
Increase in investrments {1,302,936) (8,317,957)
Increase in assets limited as to use {188,526) {309,100)
Investment in unconsolidated affiliate = (100,000)
Purchases of property and equipment - Net {1,242,346) (908,179)
Net cash used in investing activities (2,733,808) {9,635,246)
Cash flows from financing activities:
Principal payments on long-term debt {361,595} (346,424)
Transfers to Hillsboro Area Health System NFP {500,000) {500,000)
Net cash provided by {used in) financing activities {861,595} (846,424)
Net decrease in cash and cash equivalents {4,369,906) (5,647,827)
Cash and cash equivalents, beginning of year 4 829,610 10,477,437
Cash and cash equivalents, end of year 459,704 S 4,829,610
Supptemental cash flow information:
Cash paid for interest 136,241 S 151,412
See accompanying notes to financial statements.
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Hillsboro Area Hospital, Inc.
Notes to Financial Statements

Note 1. Summary of Significant Accounting Policies

The Entity

Hillsboro Area Hospital, Inc. (the “Hospital”) is a not-for profit lllinois corporation which operates a 25-bed
Critical Access Hospital {"CAH") primarily providing inpatient and outpatient health care services to patients
in Hillsboro, lllinois and surrounding communities. The Hospital also operates an assisted living fadility in
Hillsboro, Illinois which provides services to residents in the same geographic area. Hillsbaro Area Health
System NFP, a not-for-profit Illinois corporation, is the sole corporate member of the Hospital.

Financial Statement Presentation

The Hospital follows accounting standards set by the Financial Accounting Standards Board {FASB) Accounting
Standards Codification (ASC). The ASC is the single source of authoritative accounting principles generally
accepted in the United States (GAAP) to be applied to nongovernmental entities in the preparation of
financial statements in conformity with GAAP.

Use of Estimates

The preparation of the accompanying financia! statements in conformity with GAAP requires management to
make certain estimates and assumptions that directly affect the reported amounts of assets and liabilities
and disclosure contingent assets and liabilities at the date of the financial statements. Estimates also affect

the reported amounts of revenue and expenses during the reporting period. Actual results may differ from
these estimates.

Cash and Cash Equivalents

The Hospital considers all highly liquid debt instruments with an original maturity of three months or less to
be cash equivalents, excluding amounts included in assets limited as to use

Investments, Assets Limited as to Use, and Investment Income

Investments, induding assets limited as to use, are recorded at fair value in the accompanying balance
sheets,

Assets limited as to use consist of assets designated by the Board of Directors for future capital
improvements, over which the Board of Directors retains control and may at its discretion subsequently be
used for other purposes, and amounts restricted by donors.

tnvestment income or loss (including realized gains and losses on investrents, interest, and dividends) is reported
as other income {loss) and is included in revenue in excess of expenses unless the income is restricted by donor or
law. Unrealized gains and losses are excluded from revenue in excess of expenses unless the investments are
trading securities or restricted by donor or law. Realized gains or losses are determined by specific identification.
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Hillsboro Area Hospital, Inc.
Notes to Financial Statements

Note 1: Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (Continued)
Investments, Assets Limited as to Use, and Investment Income (Continued)

The Hospital monitors the difference between the cost and fair value of its investments. If investments
experience a decline in value that the Hospital determines is other than temporary, the Hospital records a realized
loss in investment income.

Fair Value Measurements

Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability in an ordinary
transaction between market participants at the measurement date. The Hospital measures fair value of its
financial instruments using a three-tier hierarchy that prioritizes the inputs used in measuring fair value. These
tiers include Level 1, defined as observable inputs such as quoted market prices in active markets; Level 2, defined
as inputs other than quoted market prices in active markets that are either directly or indirectly observable; and
Level 3, defined as unobservable inputs in which little or no market data exists, therefore requiring an entity to
develop its own assumgtions. The asset's or liability's fair value measurement level within the fair value hierarchy
is based on the lowest level of any input that is significant to the fair value measurement.

Patient Accounts Receivable and Credit Policy

Patient accounts receivable is reported at the amount that reflects the consideration to which the Hospital
expects to be entitled, in exchange for providing patient care services. Patient accounts receivable are recorded in
the accompanying balance sheets net of contractual adjustments and implicit price concessions which reflects
management’s estimate of the transaction price. The Hospital estimates the transaction price based on
negotiated contractual agreements, historical experience, and current market conditions. The initial estimate of
the transaction price is determined by reducing the standard charge by any contractual adjustments, discounts,
and implicit price concessions and is recorded through a reduction of gross revenue and a credit to patient
accounts receivable. Subsequent changes to the estimate of the transaction price are generally recorded as
adjustments to patient service revenue in the period of the change.

The Hospital does not have a policy to charge interest on past due accounts.
Inventories

Inventories consist primarily of medical supplies, general supplies, and pharmaceuticals used in the delivery of
health care services. Inventories are stated at the lower of cost or net realizable value.

Property, Equipment, and Depreciation

Property and equipment acquisitions are recorded at cost. Depreciation is provided over the estimated
useful life of each class of depreciable asset and is computed using the straight-line method. Estimated
useful lives range from three to twenty years for major movable equipment and from five to forty years for
land improvements and buildings.
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Hillsboro Area Hospital, Inc.
Notes to Financial Statements

Note 1: Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (Continued)
Property, Equipment, and Depreciation {Continued)

Gifts of long-lived assets such as land, buildings, or equipment are reported as unrestricted support and are
excduded from revenue in excess of expenses, unless explicit donor stipulations specify how the donated
assets must be used. Gifts of long-lived assets with explicit restrictions that specify how the assets are to be
used and gifts of cash or other assets that must be used to acquire long-lived assets are reported as restricted
support. Absent explicit donor stipufations about how long those long-lived assets must be maintained,
expirations of donor restrictions are reported when the donated or acquired long-lived assets are placed in
service.

Impairment of Long-Lived Assets

The Hospital evaluates the recoverability of its long-lived assets, which consist primarily of property and
equipment with estimated useful lives, whenever events or changes in circumstance indicate that the carrying
value may not be recoverable. If the recoverability of these assets &5 unlikely because of the existence of factors
indicating impairment, an impairment analysis is performed using a projected undiscounted cash flow method.
Management must make assumptions regarding estimated future cash flows and other factors to determine the
fair value of these respective assets. If the carrying amounts of the assets exceed their respective fair values, the
carrying value of the underlying assets would be adjusted to fair value and an impairment loss would be
recognized. During 2023 and 2022, the Hospital determined that no evaluations of recoverability were necessary.

Interest in Net Assets of Hillsboro Area Health Foundation

Accounting guidance establishes standards of financial accounting and reporting for transactions in which an
entity makes contributions to ancther entity or an entity that accepts contributions from a donor and agrees to
use those assets on behalf of or transfer those assets and the return on those assets to another entity. Hillsboro
Area Health Foundation, Inc. {the "Foundation™) holds and accepts contributions on behalf of the Hospital, and
accordingly the Hospital recognizes its interest in the net assets of the Foundation for specific funds the
Foundation holds which are designated for the benefit of the Hospital, and adjusts that interest for its share of the
change in the net assets of the Hospital's designated funds held by the Foundation.

Investment in Unconsolidated Affiliate

Investments in an unconsolidated affiliate are recorded on the equity method.

10
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Hillsboro Area Hospital, Inc.
Notes to Financial Statements

Note 1: Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (Continued)
Asset Retirement Obligation

Management annually assesses its existing properties to determine if there is a need to recognize a liability
for a conditional asset retirement, specifically as it relates to its legal obligation to perform asset retirement
activities, such as asbestos removal, on its existing properties. The asset retirement obligation represents the
obligation to dispose of assets that are legally required to be removed at a future date. This obligation is
recorded at the net present value using a risk-free interest rate and an inflationary rate. The liability will be
adjusted annually over the term of the estimated life of the asset.

Net Assets

Net assets without donor restrictions consist of investments and otherwise unrestricted amounts that are
available for use in carrying out the mission of the Hospital. Net assets with donor restrictions are those
whose use by the Hospital has been limited by donors to a specific time period or purpose, or those assets
restricted by donors to be maintained by the Hospital in perpetuity.

Revenue in Excess of Expenses

The accompanying statements of operations and statements of changes in net assets indude the
classification revenue in excess of expenses, which is considered the operating indicator. Changes in net
assets, which are excluded from the operating indicator, would include contributions for property and
equipment, unrealized gains and losses on certain types of investments other than trading securities,
permanent transfers to and from affiliates for other than goods and services, and contributions of long-lived
assets acquired using contributions which by donar restriction were to be used for the purpose of acquiring
such assets.

Net Patient Service Revenue

Patient service revenue is reported at the amount that reflects the consideration to which the Hospital expects to
be entitled in exchange for providing patient care. These amounts are due from patients, third-party payors
(including health insurers and government programs), and others and include variable consideration for
retroactive revenue adjustments due to settlement of audits, reviews, and investigations. Generally, the Hospital
bills the patients and third-party payors several days after the services are performed or the patient is discharged
from the facility. Revenue is recognized as performance obligations are satisfied.

Performance obligations are determined based on the nature of the services provided. Revenue from
performance obligations satisfied over time is recognized based on actual charges incurred in relation to total
expected (or actual) charges. Generally, the majority of patient care services provided in or by the Hospital, the
performance obligation is satisfied as the patient simultaneously receives and consumes the benefits provided as
the services are performed and recognition of the obligation over time yields the same result as recognizing the
obligation at a point in time. The Hospital believes that this method provides a faithful depiction of the transfer of
services over the term of the performance obligation based on the inputs needed to satisfy the obligation.
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Hillsboro Area Hospital, Inc.
Notes to Financial Statements

Note 1: Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (Continued)

Net Patient Service Revenue (Continued)

Because the Hospital's performance obligations relate to contracts with a duration of less than one year, the
Hospital has elected to apply the apticnal exemption and therefore is not required to disclose the aggregate
amount of the transaction price allocated to performance abligations that are unsatisfied or partially unsatisfied
at the end of the reporting period. The unsatisfied or partially unsatisfied performance obligations referred to
above are primarily related to inpatient acute care services at the end of the reporting period. The performance
obligations for these contracts are generally completed when the patients are discharged, which generally occurs
within days or weeks of the end of the reporting period.

The Hospital uses a portfolic approach to account for categories of patient contracts as a collective group rather
than recognizing revenue on an individual contract basis. The Hospital used the following factors to develop
portfolios: major payor classes and type of service (e.g., inpatient, outpatient, emergency, assisted living, etc.} and
geographical location. Using historical collection trends and other analysis, the Hospital evaluated the accuracy of
its estimates and determined that recognizing revenue by utilizing the portfolio approach approximates the
revenue that would have been recognized if an individual contract approach was used.

The nature, amount, timing, and uncertainty of revenue and cash flows are affected by several factors that the
Hospital considers in its recognition of revenue. Following are some of the factors considered:

* Payors (for example, Medicare, Medicaid, managed care, other insurances, patients, etc.) have different
reimbursement/payment methodologies

¢ Length of the patient's or resident’s service/episode of care
s  Geography of the service location
+ Lines of business that provided the service (for example, hospital, assisted living, etc.)

The Hospital determines the transaction price, which involves significant estimates and judgment, based on
standard charges for goods and services provided, reduced by contractual adjustments provided to third-party
payors, discounts provided to uninsured patients in accordance with the Hospital's policy, and implicit price
concessions provided to patients. The Hospital determines its estimates of contractual adjustments and discounts
based on contractual agreements, its discount policy, and historical experience. The Hospital determines its
estimate of implicit price concessions based on its historical collection experience for each patient portfolio based
on pavyor class and service type.
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Hillsboro Area Hospital, Inc.
Notes to Financial Statements

Note 1: Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (Continued)
Net Patient Service Revenue (Continued)

The Hospital has agreements with third-party payors that provide for reimbursement at amounts that vary from
its established rates. A summary of the basis of reimbursement with major third-party payors follows for hospital
services:

e Medicare: The Hospital is designated as a critical access hospital (CAH). As such, all inpatient, swing bed,
and outpatient hospital services are paid based on a cost-reimbursement methodology, except for certain
types of laboratory, radiology, and professional services provided to Medicare beneficiaries, which are
reimbursed on prospectively determined fee schedules.

¢ Medicaid: Hospital services rendered to Illinois Public Aid beneficiaries are paid at prospectively
determined rates based on a patient dassification system. These rates are not subject to retroactive
adjustment; however, in order to receive proper reimbursement, the Hospital must fife a cost report
annually with the State of lllinois.

On November 21, 2006, the Canters for Medicare & Medicaid Services (CMS) approved state of
lllinois {the "State”) legislation for a Medicaid Hospital Assessment Program (the “"Program”). The
Program was extended through June 30, 2019, and a redesigned program has been approved and
extended through June 30, 2024. Under the Program, the Hospital receives additional Medicaid
reimbursement from the State. Additional funding and reimbursement, through sharing in cost
savings in the Medicaid program, was atso available and distributed to participating hospitals through
the development by the $tate of an Accountable Care Entity ("ACE") which started in 2017. Total
reimbursement revenue recognized by the Hospital relating to the Program amounted to $1,961,319
and $1,713,472 during 2023 and 2022, respectively, and i included in net patient service revenue in
the accompanying statements of operations. During 2023 and 2022, the Hospital incurred expense of
$572,954 and $465,123, respectively, related to amounts paid to the state of lllinois for participation
in the Program, and these amounts are included in supplies and other expenses in the accompanying
statements of operations.

¢ Other: Payment agreements with certain commercial insurance carriers, health maintenance
organizations, and preferred provider organizations provide for payment using prospectively determined
rates per discharge, discounts from established charges, prospectively determined daily rates, and fee
schedules.

Laws and regulations concerning government programs, including Medicare and Medicaid, are complex and
subject to varying interpretation. Because of investigations by governmental agencies, various healthcare
organizations have received requests for information and notices regarding alleged noncompliance with those
laws and regulations, which, in some instances, have resulted in organizations entering into significant settlement
agreements. Compliance with such laws and regulations may also be subject to future government review and
interpretation as well as significant regulatory action, including fines, penalties, and potential exclusion from the
related programs. There can be no assurance that regulatory authorities will not challenge the Hospital’s
compliance with these laws and regulations, and it is not possible to determine the impact {if any) such claims or
penalties would have upon the Hospital.
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Hillsboro Area Hospital, Inc.
Notes to Financial Statements

Note 1: Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (Continued)

Net Patient Service Revenue (Continued)

The Centers for Medicare and Medicaid Services {CMS) uses recovery audit contractors (RACs) to search for
potentially inaccurate Medicare payments that may have been made to healthcare providers and were not
detected through existing CMS program integrity efforts. Once the RAC identifies a claim it believes is inaccurate,
the RAC makes a deduction from or addition to the provider's Medicare reimbursement in an amount estimated
to equal the overpayment or underpayment. The Hospital has not been notified by the RAC of any potential
significant reimbursement adjustments. In addition, contracts the Hospital has with third-party payors also
provide for retroactive audit and review of claims.

Settlements with third-party payors for retroactive adjustments due to audits, reviews, or investigations are
considered variable consideration and are included in the determination of the estimated transaction price for
providing patient care. These settlements are estimated based on the terms of the payment agreement with the
payor, correspondence from the payor, and the Hospital's historical settlement activity, including an assessment
to ensure that it is probable that a significant reversal in the amount of cumulative revenue recognized will not
occur when the uncertainty associated with the retroactive adjustment is subsequently resolved. Estimated
settlements are adjusted in future periods as adjustments become known {that is, new information becomes
available), or as years are settled or are no longer subject to such audits, reviews, and investigations

Generally, patients who are covered by third-party payors are responsible for related deductibles and
coinsurance, which vary in amount. The Hospital also provides services to uninsured patients and offers those
uninsured patients a discount, either by policy or law, from standard charges. The Hospital estimates the
transaction price for patients with deductibles and coinsurance and from those who are uninsured based on
historical experience and current market conditions. The initial estimate of the transaction price is determined by
reducing the standard charge by any contractual adjustments, discounts, and implicit price concessions.
Subsequent changes to the estimate of the transaction price are generally recorded as adjustments to net patient
service revenue in the period of the change. Subsequent changes that are determined to be the result of an
adverse change in the patient’s ability to pay are recorded as bad debt expense. Bad debt expense for the years
ended June 30, 2023 and 2022, was not significant.

Consistent with the Hospital's mission, care is provided to patients regardless of their ability to pay. Therefore,
the Hospital has determined it has provided implicit price concessions to uninsured patients and patients with
other uninsured balances (for example, copays and deductibles). The implicit price concessions included in
estimating the transaction price represent the difference between amounts billed to patients and the amounts the
Hospital expects to collect based on its collection history with those patients. The Hospital's policy provides for
approximately 10% discounts from established charges to uninsured patients for making prompt pay for services
rendered, and after this inttial discount, further discounts are available for patients that qualify through the
hospital’s charity care or financial assistance policy. The uninsured prompt pay discount percentage remained
consistent in 2023 and 2022.
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Hillsboro Area Hospital, Inc.
Notes to Financial Statements

Note 1: Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (Continued)
Net Patient Service Revenue (Continued}

For uninsured patients who do not qualify for charity care, the Hospital recognizes revenue on the basis of its
standard rates for services provided {or on the basis of discounted rates, if negotiated or provided by policy). On
the basis of historical experience, a significant portion of the Hospital's uninsured patients will be unable or
unwilling to pay for the services provided. Thus, the Hospital includes price concessions related to uninsured
patients in the period the services are provided.

The promised amount of consideration from patients and third-party payors has not been adjusted for the effects
of a significant financing component due to the Hospital's expectation that the period between the time the
service is provided to a patient and the time that the patient or a third-party payor pays for that service will be
one year or less. However, the Hospital does, in certain instances, enter into payment agreements with patients
that allow payments in excess of one year. For those cases, the financing component is not deemed to be
significant to the contract.

All incremental customer contract acquisition costs are expensed as they are incurred as the amortization period
of the asset that the Hospital otherwise would have recognized is one year or less in duration.

Charity Care

The Hospital provides care to patients who meet certain criteria under its charity care/uninsured patient discount
policy without charge or at amounts less than its established rates. Eligible patients are identified based on
analysis of financial information obtained from the patients. The Hospital maintains records to identify the
amount of charges forgone for services and supplies furnished under the charity carefuninsured patient discount
policy. Because the Hospital does not pursue collection of amounts determined to qualify as charity care, they are
not reported as net patient service revenue in the accompanying statements of operations.

Contributions and Donor-Restricted Gifts
Contributions are considered available for unrestricted use unless specifically restricted by the donor.

Unconditional promises to give cash and other assets to the Hospital are reported at fair value at the date the
promise is received. Conditional promises to give and indications of intentions to give are reported at fair
value at the date the gift is received. The gifts are reported as donor-restricted contributions if they are
received with donor stipulations that limit the use of the donated assets. When a donor restriction expires,
that is, when a stipulated time restriction ends or purpose restriction is accomplished, net assets with donor
restrictions are reclassified as net assets without donor restrictions and reported as net assets released from
restrictions.

Donor-restricted contributions whose restrictions are met within the same year as received are reported as
contributions without donor restrictions.
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Hillsboro Area Hospital, Inc.
Notes to Financial Statements

Note 1: Summary of Significant Accounting Policies {Continued)

Income Taxes

The Hospital is a not-for-profit corporation as described in Section 501{c}{3) of the Internal Revenue Code
(the "Code"} and is exempt from federal incorne taxes on related income pursuant to Section 501(a) of the
Code. The Hospital is also exempt from state income taxes on related income under similar state laws.

Advertising Costs

Advertising costs are expensed as incurred.

Real Estate Taxes

The State of lllinois previously enacted legislation that clarifies when hospitals are eligible to receive
exemption from property tax requirements. As part of the legislation, hospitals, induding the Hospital, must
submit to the State of Illinois annual property tax exemption applications, which include information on the
amount of benefits provided to low-income, charity care, and Illlinois Public Aid {Medicaid) beneficiaries. As
of June 30, 2023, the majority of the real estate of the Hospital has been granted property tax exemption by
the State of lllinois.

Subsequent Events

Subsequent events have been evaluated through October 2, 2023, which is the date the financial statements
were available to be issued.

Adoption of Accounting Pronouncement

In February 2016, FASB issued Accounting Standards Update {"ASU™) No. 2016-02, Leases (Topic 842). This ASU
modifies lease accounting to increase transparency and comparability by recognizing lease assets and lease
liabilities on the balance sheet and disclosing key information about leasing information. The most significant
change for lessees is the recognition of both a liability to make lease payments (the lease liability} and a right-of-
use asset representing its right to use the underlying asset for the lease term for those leases classified as
operating leases under current GAAP. Certain accounting policy elections are permitted for leases with terms of
12 months of less. FASB ASC Topic 842, Leases, supersedes current lease requirements in FASB ASC Topic 840,
Leases. The Hospital has elected to adopt and apply this accounting pronocuncement effective July 1, 2022, and
applied the adoption of this pronouncement using a modified retrospective approach. The Hospital elected to
utilize practical expedients made available, including the package of practical expedients not to reassess whether
a contract is or contains a iease, the lease classification, and initial direct costs for any existing leases. Adoption of
this standard did not have a material impact on the results of operations reported in the accompanying
statements of operations, and had no impact on accompanying statements of cash flows.
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Hillsboro Area Hospital, Inc.
Notes to Financial Statements

Note 2: COVID-19

Starting in March 2020, the nation in general, and healthcare-related entities specifically, were faced with a global
pandemic. As healthcare entities prepared for the crisis, operational changes were made to delay routine visits
and elective procedures and reevaluate the entire care delivery model to care for patient needs, specifically those
affected by COVID-19. These operational changes continued and adjustments were made in operations and
business plans throughout the pandemic. The dedared public health emergency ended in May 2023 related to the
COViD-19 pandemic, and even with this ending the complete financial impact on the economy in general and
healthcare-related entities specifically still remains undeterminable at this time. Management of the Hospital
continues to note that both operational performance and cash flows for healthcare-related entities have been and
will continue to be impacted into the future even though the declared public health emergency pericd and
pandemic have ended.

The federal and state governments, as well as other agencies, assisted many healthcare organizations to prevent
significant financial constraints by providing supplemental payment programs in the forms of distributions which
are intended to help in offsetting lost revenues as well as the cost of staffing, supplies, and equiprnent from
treating patients impacted by or preparing for the pandemic’s healthcare needs. Through June 30, 2022, the
Hospital received approximately $5,055,000 in funding from these programs and had recognized approximately
$946,000 of these funds as other operating revenue during the year ended lune 30, 2022, in the accompanying
statements of operations. The hospital had also previously recognized approximately 54,109,000 in operating
revenue of these amounts received collectively between 2021 and 2020. No additional funds had been received
from these programs during the year ended June 30, 2023. Funding was primarily received from the US.
Department of Health and Human Services {"HHS") Coronavirus Aid, Relief, and Economic Security ("CARES") and
American Rescue Plan ("ARP") Acts, and the State of lllinois related to COVID-19 assistance.

These funds are subject to various financial and compliance guidelines for intended uses as published by the
federal and state governments. Management is continuing to monitor compliance with the terms and conditions
of these grants as new guidance and clarification is released from HHS, the State of lllinois, and other agencies.
The Hospital has completed all required attestations to the federal government as well as all required audits to
date to or comply with the current terms and conditions of the programs; however, as more information becornes
available or the federal or state government would perform any additional audits in the future, the Hospital's
ability to retain some or all of the distributions received could be impacted.

The Hospital also received approximately $4,481,000 of accelerated and advanced payments from the Medicare
program in 2021 to be repaid interest free over approximately an eighteen month period of time starting in 2022.
During 2023 and 2022, the Hospital repaid approximately $2,002,000 and $2,022,000, respectively, in funds to the
Medicare program from this advance. The Hospital had alsc previously repaid approximately $457,000 in funds to
the Medicare program in 2021. The remaining liabilities from these accelerated and advanced program payments
were included in amounts payable to third-party payor settlements in the accompanying balance sheets at June
30, 2022. No amounts are remaining to be repaid to the Medicare program related to these accelerated and
advanced payments at June 30, 2023.
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Hillsboro Area Hospital, Inc.
Notes to Financial Statements

Note 3: Available Resources and Liquidity

The Hospital does not have a formal liquidity policy but generally strives to maintain financial assets in liquid form
such as cash and cash equivalents for at least three to six months of operating expenses. Other funds, included in
long-term investments and assets limited as to use in the accompanying balance sheets, are considered available
for operational or capital needs, except for investments with restrictive redemption requirements. Occasionally,
the Board of Directors designates a portion of operating surplus to be appropriated at its discretion for future
operational initiatives and capital expenditures. These funds, at the discretion of the Board of Directors, could be
released immediately or sold and redeemed prior to their maturity and are not considered available under the
Hospital’s general liquidity management. At June 30, 2023 and 2022, the balance of these funds was $9,245,033

and $8,569,953, respectively.

Financial assets available for general expenditure, such as operating expenses, and purchases of property and
equipment, within one year of the balance sheet date, comprise the following at June 30:

2023 2022
Cash and cash equivalents S 459,704 $§ 4,829610
Short-term investments 17,305,725 22,132,455
Patient accounts receivable - Net 3,234,630 2,451,177
Amounts receivable from State of lllinois health care programs 16,761 16,761
Other receivables 285,417 98,889
Totals $ 21,302,237 § 29,528,892

Patient accounts receivable - net becomes available as an available resource to the Hospital generally as operating
cash as it is billed and collected based on the policies and procedures described in Note 1, and its opening balance
at July 1, 2021 was $2,759,278.

Note 4: Investments and Assets Limited as to Use

Investments

Investments consisted of the following at June 30:

2023 2022
Short-term investments - Certificates of deposit $ 6,359,998 $ 15,190,001
Short-term investments - U.S. Treasury securities 10,945,727 6,942,454
Long-term investments - Certificates of deposit 11,785,780 1,755,780
Long-term investments - U.S. Treasury securities - 3,900,334
Total investments $ 29,091,505 $ 27,788,569
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Hillsboro Area Hospital, Inc.
Notes to Financial Statements

Note 4: Investments and Assets Limited as to Use (Continued)
Assets Limited as to Use

Assets limited as to use consisted of the fotlowing at June 30:

2023 2022
Board designated for capital expenditures - Not designated as funded
depreciation:
Money market funds S 152,222 S 303,622
Certificates of deposit 4,997,383 4,767,384
Common stock 35 a5
U.5. Treasury securities = 60,984
Mutual funds 4,071,782 3,433,851
Accrued interest receivable 23,611 4,077
Total board designated for capital expenditures - Not designated as
funded depreciation 9,245,033 8,569,953
Restricted by donors:
Money market funds 12,567 9,445
Certificates of deposit 445,614 445,614
Accrued interest receivable 3004 825
Total restricted by donors 461,185 455,884
Total assets limited as to use $ 9,706,218 5 9,025,837

Investment income

Realized investment income, including realized gains and losses on investments and assets limited as to use,
consisted of the following for the years ended June 30:

2023 2022
Interest and dividends s 889,041 § 423,757
Interest on restricted net assets with donor restrictions 8,721 1,888
Total investment income S 897,762 S 425,645
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Hillsboro Area Hospital, Inc.
Notes to Financial Statements

Note 4: Investments and Assets Limited as to Use {Continued)

Management assesses individual investment securities as to whether declines in market value are cther than
temporary and result in impairment. For equity securities and mutual funds, the Hospital considers whether it has
the ability and intent to hoid the investment until a market price recovery. Evidence considered in this includes
the reasons for the impairment, the severity and duration of the impairment, changes in value subsequent to
year-end, the issuer’s financial condition, and the general market condition in the geographic area or industry in
which the investee operates. For debt securities, if the Hospital has made a decision to sell the security, orif itis
more likely than not the Hospital will sell the security before the recovery of the security’s cost basis, an other-
than-temporary impairment is considered to have occurred. If the Hospital has not made a decision or does not
have an intent to sel! the debt security, but the debt security is not expected to recover its value due to a credit
loss, an other-than-temporary impairment is considered to have occurred. At June 30, 2023 and 2022, the
Hospital did not consider any individual investments other than temporarily impaired.

Investments, in general, are exposed to various risks, such as interest rate, credit, and overall market volatility.
Due to the level of risk associated with certain investments, it is reasonably possible that changes in the values of
certain investments will occur in the near term and that such changes could materially affect the amounts

reported in the accompanying financial statements.

Note 5: Fair Value Measurements
The following is a description of the valuation methodologies used for assets measured at fair value:

Money market funds are valued using a net asset value (NAV) of $1.00. Fixed income securities are primarily
invested in U.S. Government securities such as bonds and are valued using quotes from pricing vendors for
identical or similar assets based on recent trading activity and other observable market data. Quoted market
prices are used to determine the fair value of investments in marketable equity securities, which are primarily
invested in common stock. Mutual funds are valued at the daily closing price as reported by the fund. Mutual
funds held by the Hospital are open-end mutual funds that are registered with the Securities and Exchange
Commission. The mutual funds are required to publish their daily NAY and to transact at that price. The mutual

funds held by the Hospital are deemed to be actively traded.

The methods described above may produce a fair value calculation that may not be indicative of net
realizable value or reflective of future fair values. Furthermore, while the Hospital believes its valuation
methods are appropriate and consistent with other market participants, the use of different methodologies
or assumptions to determine the fair value of certain financial instruments could result in a different fair
value measurement at the reporting date.
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Hillsboro Area Hospital, Inc.
Notes to Financial Statements

Note 5: Fair Value Measurements (Continued)

The following tables set forth by level, within the fair value hierarchy, the Hospital's assets measured at fair
value on a recurring basis as of June 30:

2023
Total Assets at
Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Fair Value
Money market funds s -8 164,789 § -5 164,789
Mutual funds:
Blend 1,085,506 - - 1,085,506
Growth 1,550,853 s s 1,550,853
Value 936,123 . - 936,123
Intermediate government 10,247 - - 10,247
International allocation 167,813 - - 167,813
Other international 321,240 - - 321,240
4,071,782 R S 4,071,782
Marketable equity securities - Common stock 35 - - 35
LS. Treasury securities - 10,945,727 & 10,945,727
Total $ 4,071,817 5 11,110,516 § - § 15,182,333
2022
Total Assets at
Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Fair Value
Money market funds s -5 313,067 § -5 313,067
Mutual funds:
Biend 894,255 . = 894,255
Growth 1,272,871 s S 1,272,871
value 826,392 - - 826,392
Intermediate government 10,502 - - 10,502
international allocation 157,538 - - 157,538
Other international 272,293 - - 272,293
3,433,851 s & 3,433,851
Marketable equity securities - Common stock 35 - - 35
U.S. Treasury securities - 10,903,773 - 10,903,773
Total S 3,433886 $ 11,216,840 $ - $ 14,650,726
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Hillsboro Area Hospital, Inc.
Notes to Financial Statements

Note 5: Fair Value Measurements (Continued)

The assets included in the fair value measurements table above at both June 30, 2023 and 2022, include all assets
within investments and assets limited as to use as described in Note 4, with the exception of certificates of deposit
and accrued interest receivable, which are exduded from the fair value measurement table.

Note 6: Property and Equipment

Property and equipment cansisted of the following at June 30

2023 2022
Land $ 330,860 S 355,860
Land improvements 1,828,208 1,814,732
Buildings 18,070,843 17,955,388
Movable equipment 17,316,767 16,208,291
Construction in progress 139,299 122,401
Total property and equipment 37,685,977 36,456,672
Less - Accumulated depreciation 26,649,595 25,410,318
Property and equipment - Net $ 11,036,382 § 11,046,354

Note 7: Interest in Net Assets of Hillsboro Area Health Foundation

Hillsboro Area Heafth Foundation, Inc. (the "Foundation”) was established to benefit the general public and the
Hospital. The Foundation's Board of Directors determines the amount, timing, and purpose of the distribution of
Foundation funds. The Hospital recognizes its interest in the net assets held by the Foundation. At June 30, 2023
and 2022, $552,472 and $555,804, respectively, is recognized as the Hospital's interest in the total net assets of
the Foundation, which includes contributions received by the Foundation that are donor restricted to be used for
Hospital purposes.

The Foundation also holds certain funds under terms of an endowment agreement for the benefit of the Hospital
which is included in the amounts above and further described in Note 9.
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Hillsboro Area Hospital, Inc.
Notes to Financial Statements

Note 8: Investment in Unconsolidated Affiliate
Investment in South Central Hospital Afliance LLC

During 2022, the Hospital became a founding member of the South Central Hospital Alliance LLC (the
“Alliance”) and contributed an initial equity investment of $100,000. As of June 30, 2023, the Alliance had
three other member hospitals. All of the member hospitals are non-profit hospitals located in the South
Central region of Hlinois.

The goal of the Alliance is to facilitate the development of a cooperative rural heaith care network which will
be operated exclusively for the benefit of, to perform functions of, and carry out the respective charitabie
missions of the member hospitals. A common working goal of the members through the Alliance will be to
develop, establish, and operate both clinic and non-clinical shared services and programs as well as other
collaborative functions which are aimed at expanding access to high-quality patient care, improving the
overall quality of patient care, and utilizing economies of scale to increase the efficiencies and lower the costs
of healthcare delivery in the communities served by the member hospitals.

The Hospital accounts for the investment in the Alliance under the equity method of accounting. Eamings or
losses of the Alliance are allocated to the members based on the terms of the operating agreement, and the
Hospital adjusts its investment in the Alliance based on its respective allocated profits and losses. There has been
limited financial activity of the Alliance in both 2023 and 2022.
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Hillsboro Area Hospital, Inc.
Notes to Financial Statements

Note 9: Long-Term Debt

Long-term debt consisted of the following at June 30:

2023 2022
City of Hillsboro, Wlinois, capital Improvement Revenue Bonds, Series 2008,
bearing interest at 3.79%. The bonds are payable in monthly installments of
$41,486, including principal and interest. Final principal payment due
October 1, 2031. Secured by the new building construction, which was
completed during the year ended June 30, 2011, and net revenues of the
Hospital. S 3444726 S 3,806,321
Less - Current maturities 373,729 359,784
Long-term maturities S 3,070,997 S 3,446,537

The Series 2008 bond agreement provides for various restrictive covenants, including required annual financial
reporting.

Scheduled payments of principal on long-term debt at June 30, 2023, including current maturities, are
summarized as follows:

2024 S 373,729
2025 388,142
2026 403,111
2027 418,657
2028 434 803
Thereafter 1,426,284
Total $ 3,444,726
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Hillsboro Area Hospital, Inc.
Notes to Financial Statements

Note 10: Net Assets with Donor Restrictions and Endowments

Net assets with donor restrictions include assets set aside in accordance with donor restrictions as to time or use.
Net assets with donor restrictions are available for the following purposes at June 30:

2023 2022
Hospital programs including those supporting the treatment of childhood
obesity S 448,493 § 440,971
Scholarships and education 10,000 10,000
Funds held by Foundation 267,472 270,804
Total 725,965 721,775

In addition to the above donor-restricted funds, the Hospital has an endowment of $285,000 as of both
June 30, 2023 and 2022, which has been restricted by donors to be maintained in perpetuity, the income of which
is expendable to support maintenance and equipment needs of the Hospital.

The Hospital's endowment consists of one fund that is invested and maintained by the Foundation in U.S. Treasury
securities at financial institutions. The endowment includes only donor-restricted endowment funds. Net assets
associated with the endowment funds are classified and reported on the existence or absence of donor-imposed
restrictions.

The Board of Directors of the Hespital have interpreted the Uniform Prudent Management of Institutional Funds
Act (UPMIFA), as adopted by the lllinois state legislature, as requiring the preservation of the fair value of the
original gift to an endowment fund absent any explicit donor stipulations that would otherwise dictate the
contributed funds. As a result of this interpretation, the Hospital classifies as permanently restricted net assets
(a) the original value of the donor’s gifts to the permanent endowment, (b) the original value of a donor's
subsequent gifts to the permanently restricted endowment, and (c) accumulations to the permanent endowment
made in accordance with the direction of the applicable donor gift instrument at the time the accumulation is
added to the fund. The remaining portion of the donor-restricted endowment fund that is not classified in
permanently restricted net assets is classified as temporarily restricted net assets until those amounts are
appropriated for expenditure by the Hospital in a manner consistent with the standard of prudence prescribed by
UPMIFA. The Hospital relies on the adopted investment and spending policies of the Foundation for endowment
assets that attempt to provide a dependable method of funding programs supported by the endowment funds
while seeking to preserve the purchasing power of the endowment assets. Under this policy, the Foundation
invests the endowment assets it maintains for the Hospital only in interest-bearing bank depository accounts that
are not expected to dedine in value in the future. This method of investing will maintain the purchasing power of
the endowment assets that are required to be held in perpetuity as well as to provide additional purchasing ability
through new contributions and investment returns.
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Hillsboro Area Hospital, Inc.
Notes to Financial Statements

Note 10: Net Assets with Donor Restrictions and Endowments {Continued)

Changes in endowment net assets far the years ended June 30 consisted of the following:

Portion Available
Original Gifts With For Appropriation Total
Restrictions to be With Donor Endowment

Held in Perpetuity Restrictions Net Assets
Beginning balance at July 1, 2021 $ 285,000 $ 145,395 $ 430,395
Interest income - 3,084 3,084
Ending balance as of June 30, 2022 285,000 148,479 433,479
Interest income - 2,430 2,430
Ending balance as of June 30, 2023 5 285,000 $ 150,909 $ 435,909

Note 11: Net Patient Service Revenue

" The compaosition of net patient service revenue based on the geographic region the Hospital operates in as
outlined in Note 1, its lines of business, and timing of revenue recognition for the years ended June 30 are as

follows:
2023 2022
Service lines:
Hospital services $ 29,803,820 § 29,442,600
Assisted living services 1,236,016 904,862
Totals $ 31,039,836 § 30,347,462

The majority of all patient service revenue was recognized at the time of service by the Hospital during the years
ended June 30, 2023 and 2022 due to the types of hospital and assisted living services provided and their
respective contractual terms.
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Hillsboro Area Hospital, Inc.
Notes to Financial Statements

Note 11: Net Patient Service Revenue (Continued)

Patient service revenue |net of contractual allowances, discounts, and implicit price concessions) by payor
consisted of the following for the year ended June 30:

2023 2022
Medicare and Medicare Advantage plans $ 12,580,333 $ 15,816,209
Medicaid and Medicaid HMO plans 6,786,252 5,605,913
Other third-party payors 10,756,248 8,001,675
Uninsured patients 917,003 923,665

Totals $ 31,039,836 $ 30,347,462

Note 12: Charity Care and Community Benefits

The Hospital provides health care services and other financial support through various programs that are
designed, among other matters, to enhance the health of the community, induding the health of low-income
patients. Consistent with the mission of the Hospital, care is provided to patients regardless of their ability to pay,
including providing services to those persons who cannot afford health insurance because of inadequate
resources or who are underinsured.

Patients who meet certain criteria for charity care, generally based on federal poverty guidelines, are provided
care without charge or at a reduced rate, determined based on qualifying criteria as defined in the Hospital’s
charity care/uninsured patient discount policy and from applications completed by patients and their families.
The Hospital is also required to provide additional discounts to uninsured hospital patients under the Hospital
Uninsured Patient Discount Act as required by lllinois state law.

The estimated cost of providing care to patients under the Hospital's charity care/uninsured patient discount
policy was approximately $128,000 and $229,000 in 2023 and 2022, respectively. The cost was calculated by
multiplying the ratio of cost to gross charges for the Hospital times the gross uncompensated charges associated
with providing the chanity care,

During each year the Hospital accumulates the amount of shortfalls from payments from providing the services
previously described under its charity care/uninsured patient discount policy, as well as health care services to
patients who are covered under government health insurance programs including the Medicaid program and
patients unable or unwilling to pay a portion or all of their charges to the Hospital which are considered bad debts
to the Hospital. These shortfalls are measured in a method consistent with the determination of the charity care
shortfalls above, less any reimbursement received from patients and others. During 2023 and 2022, the total
costs of providing these services was approximately $1,636,000 and $2,054,000, respectively, and is considered a
significant benefit to the community and surrounding area the Hospital serves,

27

ATTACHMENT 34
174

555452594



Hillsboro Area Hospital, Inc.
Notes to Financial Statements

Note 12: Charity Care and Community Benefits (Continued)

As a part of its mission to provide health care services to those in need in the community, as well as to support the
general well-being of the community, the Hospital also commits significant time and resources to activities and
services that meet unmet community needs. Many of these activities are sponsored with the knowledge that they
will not be self-supporting or financially viable. Such programs indude, but are not limited to, health fairs and
events, health screenings and assessments, space for health care occupation casses and daycare programs
offered by the local school system and Lincoln Land Community College, support for vital community services,
trauma care, and various community educational services. The Hospital also participates with Southern Hlinois
University (SIU} School of Medicine on community research projects, providing funding, information, staffing, and
supplies.

Note 13: Retirement Plan

The Hospital sponsars a defined contribution tax-deferred annuity plan, which covers all employees.
Employees may contribute a percentage of their compensation to the annuity plan on a tax-deferred or after-
tax basis. The Hospital may contribute discretionary amounts up to 50% of employees’ tax-deferred
contribution, up to 6% of compensation. Total retirement plan expense was $278,935 and $275,488 for the
years ended June 30, 2023, and 2022, respectively.

Note 14: Self-Funded Health Insurance

The Hospital has a self-funded health care plan to provide medical benefits to employees and their dependents.
Employees share in the cost of health benefits. Health care expense is based upon actual claims paid, reinsurance
premiums, administration fees, and unpaid claims at year-end. The Hospital buys reinsurance to cover
catastrophic individual claims over specific individual and aggregate amounts.

Health care expense totaled $1,927,976 and $1,866,953 in 2023 and 2022, respectively. A liability of $200,000
and $195,000 for claims outstanding for each of the years ended June 30, 2023 and 2022, respectively, has been
recorded in accrued liabilities in the accompanying balance sheets. Management believes this liability is sufficient
to cover estimated claims, including claims incurred but not yet reported, as of June 30, 2023 and 2022.
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Hilisboro Area Hospital, Inc.
Notes to Financial Statements

Note 15: Malpractice Insurance

The Hospital purchases medical malpractice insurance under a claims-made policy. Under such a policy, only
claims made and reported to the insurer are covered during the policy term, regardless of when the incident
giving rise to the claim occurred. The Hospital would be able to purchase tail coverage from its insurance carrier if
it chose to do so. The Hospital has primary commercial insurance coverage for individual daims up to $1,000,000
and $3,000,000 in the aggregate during the policy pericd. In addition, the Hospital carries a claims-made hospital
professional liability supplement of $4,000,000 for each daim and in the aggregate. The professional liability
insurance policy is renewable annually and has been renewed by the insurance carrier for the annual period
extending to November 19, 2023.

under a claims-made policy, the risk for claims and incidents not asserted within the policy period remains with
the Hospital. Although there exists the possibility of claims arising from services provided to patients through
June 30, 2023, which have not yet been asserted even if covered by insurance policies, the Hospital has not been
given notice of any such material possible claims, and accordingly no provision or related insurance recoveries
have been made for them.

Note 16: Functional Classification of Expenses

The accompanying statements of operations present certain expenses that are attributed to more than one
program or supporting function. Therefore, expenses require allocation on a reasonable basis. Employee benefits
are allocated based on factors of either salary expense or actual employee expense. Overhead costs that include
things such as professional services, office expenses, information technology, insurance, and cther similar
expenses are allocated on a variety of factors including revenues and departmental expense.

The expenses reported in the statements of operations for the years ended June 30 supported the following
programs and functions:

2023 2022
Healthcare General Healthcare General
Services Administrative Total Services  Administrative Total
Salaries and wages $ 9254479 § 1,979,189 $ 11,233,668 $89563,196 $ 1,767,217 510,730,413
Employee benefits 2,712,195 649,430 3,361,625 2,604,938 570,770 3,175,708
Physician services 3,286,195 - 3,286,195 2,986,021 - 2,986,021
Other professional services 3,475,804 1,688,035 5,163,839 2,939,451 1,298,293 4,237,744
Supplies and pharmaceuticals 2,144,656 1,041,559 3,186,215 2,117,146 935,098 3,052,244
Other 2,151,789 1,045,024 3,196,813 2,009,507 887,557 2,897,064
Deprediation 923,515 321,997 1,245,512 873,706 313,038 1,186,744
Interest 136,241 - 136,241 151,412 - 151,412

$ 24,084,874 S 6,725,234 § 30,810,108 $22,645,377 § 5,771,973 $28,417,350
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Hillsboro Area Hospital, Inc.
Notes to Financial Statements

Note 17: Concentration of Credit Risk

Financial instruments that potentially subject the Hospital to credit risk consist principally of patient accounts
receivable and cash deposits in excess of insured limits.

Patient accounts receivable consist of amounts due from patients, their insurers, or governmental agencies
{primarily Medicare and Medicaid) for health care provided to patients. The majority of the Hospital's
patients are from Hillsborg, Illingis, and the surraunding area.

The mix of receivables from patients and third-party payors is as follows at June 30:

2023 2022
Medicare 39% 33%
Medicaid 19 % 11%
Commercial insurance 24 % 30%
Self-pay 18 % 26 %

Totals 100 % 100 %

The Hospital maintains depository relationships with area financial institutions that are Federal Deposit
Insurance Corporation (FDIC) insured institutions. Depository accounts are insured by the FDIC up to
$250,000. Operating cash needs often require that amounts on hand exceed FDIC limits. Mznagement has
entered into pledging agreements or obtained additional depository agreements with financial institutions to
provide collateral on amounts in excess of the FDIC-insured limits.

Note 18: Related-Party Transactions

Hillsboro Area Health System NFP {"System"} is the sole corporate member of the Hospital, Foundation, and
Hillsboro Area Health Services, Inc. ("Health Services").

The Hospital leases land, on which the Health Services operates a wellness center, to Health Services for a nominal
amount. The lease term is for 39 years and expires in August 2103. Health Services provides a workplace wellness
program for the benefit of Hospital staff and families. The Hospital paid $125,000 and $125,000 in connection
with this program to Health Services for the years ended June 30, 2023 and 2022, respectively.

The Hospital also leases physical therapy space from Health Services on an annual contract basis. Rental expense
paid to Health Services was $40,663 and $48,582 for the years ended June 30, 2023 and 2022, respectively.

The Hospital transferred $500,000 and $500,000 to the System in the years ended June 30, 2023 and 2022,
respectively. The Hospital also leases land to the System for a specialty clinic facility and classrooms for a nominal
amount. The lease term is for 99 years and expires in May 2112,
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Section VIII. 1120.130 — Financial Viability

Attachment 35

The Financial Viability Waiver does not apply, and financial ratios are attached.
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Section VIII. 1120.130 — Financial Viability

Attachment 36

Financial Viability Rations are attached which appear to show that the Applicant meets all states
standards.
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L Current Ratio Current Assets
Current Liabilities

FY 2021 §32,223 103
$7,947,406
FY 2022 30,909,072
$7,397,286
FY 2023 22,911,469
$4,917,144
Fy 2024 $30,854,627
$6,484,453
Fy 2028
{projected) $46,379,013
$9,510,185
2, Net Margin Percentage Net Income * 100

Net Operating Revenue

Fy 2021 $5,526,306 * 100
$30,567,240

FY 2022 53,878,182 * 100
531,871,775

FY 2023 $1,654,815 * 100
531,582,688

FY 2024 46,156,835 * 100
$36,974,957

FY 2028

(projected) £9,616,184.6 * 100
$57,064,507

Percent Debt to Total

3 Capitalization Long Term Debt
Long Term Debt + Net Assets

FY 2021 3,883,382
$3,883,382 + 543,934,509

FY 2022 i $3,525 852
$3,525,852 + $46,370,043

FY 2023 i $3,152,635
$3,152,635 + $48,020,903

FY 2024 $2,793,180
$2,793,180 + 553,817,531

FY 2028 (projected} $2,303,400 + $15,000,000
$2,303,400 $15,000,000+
$58,793,452
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4.05

4,18

4.66

4.76

4.88

18.08%

12.17%

5.24%

16.65%

16.85%

8.12%

7.07%

6.16%

4.93%

22.74%
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S. Days Cash on Hand

FY 2021

FY 2022

FY 2023

FY 2024

FY 2028 (projected)

7. Cushion Ratio

FY 2021

FY 2022

FY 2023

FY 2024

FY 2028 (projected)

55545259.4

Cash & Cash Equivalents + Short-Term Investments + Long-Term
Investments + Board Designated Funds + Restricted by Donors + Interest
in net assets of HAHF +Investment in Unconsolidated Affiliate -
Permanently Restricted Endowment in HAHF

Total Operating Expense - Depreciation
# Days in Year-to-Date Period

$10,477,437 + 517,469,822 + 52,000,780 + $9,215,866 + $453,996 + 5546,633 -
$285,000

$27,231,336 - $1,171,848
365

$4,829,610 + $22,132,455 + $5,656,114 + 58,569,953 + 5455,884 + $555,804 +
$100,000 - $285,000

528,417,350 - $1,186,744
365

$459,704 + $17,305,725 + $11,785, 780 + $9,245,033 + $461,185 + 552,472 +
$98,361 - 5285,000

$30,810,108 - $1,245,512
365

$3,445,664 + $21,050,433 + 59,015,000 + $10,470,128 + $478,401 + $656,645 +
$93,537 - $285,000

$33,402,857 - 51,368,724
366

$14,323,687 (includes short & long term investments) + $10,880,499 +
$954,304

$35,510,979 - $1,174,125
365

Cash & Cash Equivalents +Short-Term Investments + Long-Term
Investments + Board Designated Funds
Principle +Interest

$10,477,437 + $17,469,822 + $2,000, 780 + $9,215 866
$346,424 + 53,806,321 + 5164,276

$4,829,610 +$22,132,455 + 55,656,114 + 58,569,953
$359,784 + $3,446,537 + 151,412

$459,704 + $17,305,72S + $11,785,780 + $9,245,033
$373,729 + $3,070,997 + $136,241

$3,445,664 + 521,050,433 + $9,015,000 + $10,470,128
$359,316 + $2,711,542 + $123,969

$14,323,687 {includes short & [ong term investments) + $10,880,499
$359,316 + $2,503,400 + $111,463 + ($121,796*12)

558.57

563.17

489.18

513.28

278.83

.07

10.41

10.83

13.797

5.68
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Section IX. 1120.140 - Economic Feasibility

Attachment 37

Economic Feasibility
A, Reasonableness of Financing Arrangements.
A letter attesting to reasonableness of the financing arrangements is attached.

B. Conditions of Debt Financing.

The Project is being financed by cash on hand and debt financing. A letter attesting to
conditions of det financing is attached.

C. Reasonableness of Project and Related Costs.

The Project meets all the State Standards for Project Costs except the New Construction
standard. O’Shea Builders will be constructing the Project pursuant to a Guaranteed
Maximum Price (GMP) construction contract. Attached is an analysis from O’Shea
Builders addressing factors as reasons for the proposed construction cost.
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® SHEA

B U DERS

May 18, 2025
Hillsboro Health Hospital - Surgery, Central Utility Plant (CUP). & Front Entrance

The Project meets all the State Standards for Project Costs except the New Construction
standard. O'Shea Builders will be constructing the Project pursuant to a Guaranteed
Maximum Pnice {(GMP) construction contract. Below we have identified the following
factors as reasons for the proposed construction cost.

¢  Market Inflation/Conditons & Regional Cost Escalation
o Project-Specific Complexities
Displacement of services
Demolish a portion of the existing hospital,
Enclosing the removed section of hospital to maintain hospital services.
Complexity of lying new structure into the existing.
Relocated Central Utlity Plant into Existing Maintenance Facility Building for
the Surgery Suite and capabilities for future expansien for the rest of the hospital,
+ The budget includes a reasonable contingency and nsk reserve to account for unknowns
as design is in process and not complete.
e QOur budget reflects real-time, project-specific, and market-informed estimates. These
are based on:
o Subcontractor and supplier input.
o Current market intelligence
o Lessons learned from comparable projects in the region

0 00O0CQ0Q

0O’Shea Builders

y=

F. Breit Streb
Preconstruction Manager

n

BORN TO BUILD

osheabullders.com
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Attachment 37 | [ i
Gioss Square Feet Amount of Proposed Tolal Gross Square Feel That is.
Department Cost Existing [Proposed New Const. Modernized |Asls Vacated Space
CLINCAL
Operating Suite $ 4,593,465 2,113 3,827 3,827 2,113
Procedure Suite $ 794,700 883/ 883
Decontamination & Sterile Processing $ 804,750 196 1,073 1,073| 196
PACU $ 342,000 1,220 338 456
Pre/Post Opp $ 2,381,600 1,200 1,867 2977
Mechanical, Vestibute, Med Gas Storage,
Vendor Drop Of, Back of House Circulation,
Locker Rooms & Break Room $ 1381250 562 3.040 2,125 562
Outpatient Tesling $25,000 3,493 3,304 3,304
Contingency $654,535
Clinicat subtotal $ 10,977,300 8784 14,332 11,341 3,304 2,871
NON-CLINICAL
N/S Patient Corridor $ 216,039 1,638 1,638 1,638
Tetecom $ 27,644 147 147 147
Entry Canopy $ 367,462 2,755 2,755
Lobby/Reception $ 1,296,451 6,074 6,203 129 5,074
Storefront Cancpy $ 87,545 100) 100
Surgery Discharge Canopy $ 221,198 1,125 1,125
Central Ulility Plant $ 9301443 3.455 3.455
Central Utility Plant Connector Canopy $ 176,086 256 256
Contingency $ 685284
Non-clinical subtotal $ 12,379,152 11314 12,224 4,365 11,314
TOTAL $ 23,356,452 20.098 26,556 15,706/ 14,618 2,871
D. Project Operating Costs.
Estimated Costs, Procedures, and Cost per Patient Day
Projected Direct Operating Bpenses - 2 years after
Project Completion - Year 2030
Total Operating Costs $ 1,685,437
Euivalent Patient Days 911
Direct Cost per Eyuivalen Patient Day $ 1,644.98
E. Total Effect of Project on Capital Costs.
Project FY2030 Total Hospital FY 2030
Eyuivalent Patient Days 18,919
Total Project Capital Cost $ 28,000,000
Useful Life 275
Total Annual Depreciation $ 1,018,182 | $ 2,600,078.22
Depreciation cost per Fyuivalent Patient Day 1,117.60 137.43
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HILLSBORO

May 12, 2025
Mr. John Kniery
Administrator
ifiinocis Health Facilites and Services Review Board
525 West Jefferson Street, 2 Ficor
Springfield, lllincis 62761

Re:  Hillsboro Health Surgical Project
Reasonableness of Financing Arrangements 1120.140(a)(1)

Dear Mr. Kniery

Hillsboro Health is undertaking a project to expand and modernize its surgical services and make
other mechanical and infrastructure improvements. We anticipate that the total estimated project
costs and will be funded in part by borrowing because:

A) A portion or all of the cash and equivalents must be retained in the balance sheet asset
accounts in order to maintain a current ratio of at least 2.0 times for hospitals and 1.5 times
for all other facilities; or

B) Borrowing is less costly than the liquidation of existing investments, and the existing
investments being retained may be converted to cash or used to retire debt within a 60-day
period.

Hillsboro Health further attests that the conditions of dabt financing are reasonable in that the
selected form of debt financing for the Project will be at the lowest net cost available

Hillsbow

mrde:

Name. Alex Nazarian
Title: Chief Financial Officer

Notarization: OFFICIAL SEAL

. LINDA M WEISS
Su.fbscnbed and swom before me NOTARY PUBLIC STATE OF LLINGLS
this |2 day of May, 2025 ATY) T Ptatand

Ludon, s
Signature of Notary Public
ATTACHMENT 37
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Attachment 38

Section X. Safety Net Impact Statement

The proposed Project is classified as “non-substantive” under the Review Board’s rules.
Consequently, Safety Net Impact statements are not applicable.
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Section X. Charity Care

Attachment 39

Shown below is the amount of charity care provided by Hillsboro Health

Net Patient Revenue $28,442,600 29,803,819 34,720,474
Amount of Charity Care (charges) $552,650 $288,899 $522,415
Cost of Charity Care $117,661 $72,777 $225,830
Ratio of Charity Care Cost to Net Patient 0.4% 0.2% 0.7%
Revenue
ATTACHMENT 39
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